
Supporting documentation and attachments for items listed on this agenda can be viewed online at 
http://www.sdcounty.ca.gov/community/san-diego-county-oversight-board.html or in the Office of 
Economic Development & Government Affairs, 1600 Pacific Highway, Room 152, San Diego, CA 92101. 

ASSISTANCE FOR THE DISABLED: 
Agendas and records are available in alternative formats upon request.  Contact the Office of Economic Development 
& Government Affairs at (619) 531-5198 with questions or to request a disability-related accommodation. Individuals 
requiring sign language interpreters should contact the Americans with Disabilities Coordinator at (619) 531-4908. 
To the extent reasonably possible, requests for accommodation or assistance should be submitted at least 24 hours 
in advance of the meeting so that arrangements may be made. An area in the front of the room is designated for 
individuals requiring the use of wheelchair or other accessible devices. 

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 
COUNTYWIDE REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT BOARD 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

October 16 2025, 10:00 A.M. 
AT 1600 PACIFIC HIGHWAY, SAN DIEGO, ROOM 402A 

 AGENDA 
Attendance by Virtual Meeting made available. 

Zoom Link 
Phone Option: 1-669-444-9171; Meeting ID: 87893548493; Passcode (if prompted): 135246 

 
A. Call to Order   

 
B. Roll Call/Statement (just cause) and/or Consideration of a Request to Participate Remotely 

(emergency circumstances) pursuant to Assembly Bill 2449 by an Oversight Board 
Member (if necessary and applicable)  
 

C. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

D. Approval of Statement of Proceedings / Minutes of September 18, 2025 Regular Meeting 
 

E. Formation of Consent Calendar – Under this item, the Oversight Board may place action 
items under Section G on the consent calendar to be voted on in one motion.   
 

F. Public Communication Speakers: Members of the public may address the Oversight Board 
on subject matters within the Board’s jurisdiction, but not an item on this agenda.  
Comments on items on the agenda will be taken as each item comes up. Each speaker is 
limited to three minutes. 

 
G. Action Item(s)   

1. APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION OF THE SAN DIEGO COUNTYWIDE 
REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT BOARD APPROVING 
AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE SAN DIEGO SUCCESSOR AGENCY’S DESIGNATED AGENT 
AND KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR CIVIL ENGINEERING 
CONSULTING SERVICES ON THE B STREET PEDESTRIAN CORRIDOR 
PROJECT 

 
H. Communications Received: 

https://sdcounty-ca-gov.zoom.us/j/87893548493?pwd=zCPKFWK4y8kHgQvBLrl0ODAyEFNpFe.1


Supporting documentation and attachments for items listed on this agenda can be viewed online at 
http://www.sdcounty.ca.gov/community/san-diego-county-oversight-board.html or in the Office of 
Economic Development & Government Affairs, 1600 Pacific Highway, Room 152, San Diego, CA 92101. 

ASSISTANCE FOR THE DISABLED: 
Agendas and records are available in alternative formats upon request.  Contact the Office of Economic Development 
& Government Affairs at (619) 531-5198 with questions or to request a disability-related accommodation. Individuals 
requiring sign language interpreters should contact the Americans with Disabilities Coordinator at (619) 531-4908. 
To the extent reasonably possible, requests for accommodation or assistance should be submitted at least 24 hours 
in advance of the meeting so that arrangements may be made. An area in the front of the room is designated for 
individuals requiring the use of wheelchair or other accessible devices. 

1. Resignation of Oversight Board Seat 1 Member Brian Hagerty, effective after 
10/16/2025. 

2. Appointment of Steve Lockett to Oversight Board Seat 1 by the San Diego County 
Board of Supervisors, effective 10/17/2025. 

 
I. Future Agenda Item(s): 

1. Tentative item: National City Successor Agency, November 2025. 
 

J. Set Future Meeting Date(s): November 20, 2025 10:00 a.m., December 18th, 2025 10:00 
a.m., January 15th, 2026 10:00 a.m., February 19th, 2026 10:00 a.m. 
 

K. Adjournment 
 



 

Supporting documentation and attachments for items listed on this agenda can be viewed online at 
http://www.sdcounty.ca.gov/community/san-diego-county-oversight-board.html or in the Office of 
Economic Development & Government Affairs, 1600 Pacific Highway, Room 152, San Diego, CA 92101. 

ASSISTANCE FOR THE DISABLED: 
Agendas and records are available in alternative formats upon request.  Contact the Office of Economic Development 
& Government Affairs at (619) 531-5198 with questions or to request a disability-related accommodation. Individuals 
requiring sign language interpreters should contact the Americans with Disabilities Coordinator at (619) 531-4908. 
To the extent reasonably possible, requests for accommodation or assistance should be submitted at least 24 hours 
in advance of the meeting so that arrangements may be made. An area in the front of the room is designated for 
individuals requiring the use of wheelchair or other accessible devices. 

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 
COUNTYWIDE REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT BOARD 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

September 18 2025, 10:30 A.M. 
AT 1600 PACIFIC HIGHWAY, SAN DIEGO, ROOM 306A 

 Minutes 
 

A. Call to Order at 10:30am  
 

B. Roll Call/Statement (just cause) and/or Consideration of a Request to Participate Remotely 
(emergency circumstances) pursuant to Assembly Bill 2449 by an Oversight Board 
Member (if necessary and applicable) 
 
PRESENT: Brian Hagerty, Rebecca Jones, Jesse Robles, Scott Buxbaum, and Samuel 
Merrill  
ABSENT: Daniel Troy, Corinne Wilson 
 

C. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

D. Approval of Statement of Proceedings / Minutes of July 17, 2025 Regular Meeting 

On motion of Chair Buxbaum and seconded by Jones, THE COUNTYWIDE 
REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT BOARD approved the 
minutes of July 17, 2025 Regular Meeting. Oversight Board staff did a roll call vote of 
each OB member to indicate approval or non-approval. Motion passed. 

AYES: Hagerty, Jones, Robles, Buxbaum, and Merrill 
 

E. Formation of Consent Calendar – Under this item, the Oversight Board may place action 
items under Section H on the consent calendar to be voted on in one motion. No items were 
placed on the consent calendar.   
 

F. Public Communication Speakers: Members of the public may address the Oversight Board 
on subject matters within the Board’s jurisdiction, but not an item on this agenda.  
Comments on items on the agenda will be taken as each item comes up. Each speaker is 
limited to three minutes. No comments were received by the Board or were presented at 
the meeting. 
 



 

Supporting documentation and attachments for items listed on this agenda can be viewed online at 
http://www.sdcounty.ca.gov/community/san-diego-county-oversight-board.html or in the Office of 
Economic Development & Government Affairs, 1600 Pacific Highway, Room 152, San Diego, CA 92101. 

ASSISTANCE FOR THE DISABLED: 
Agendas and records are available in alternative formats upon request.  Contact the Office of Economic Development 
& Government Affairs at (619) 531-5198 with questions or to request a disability-related accommodation. Individuals 
requiring sign language interpreters should contact the Americans with Disabilities Coordinator at (619) 531-4908. 
To the extent reasonably possible, requests for accommodation or assistance should be submitted at least 24 hours 
in advance of the meeting so that arrangements may be made. An area in the front of the room is designated for 
individuals requiring the use of wheelchair or other accessible devices. 

G. Informational Item(s) 
1. Introduction of new Seat 3 Oversight Board Member: Jesse Robles 

Board Member Jesse Robles introduced himself and presented professional 
background. 

2. Announcement of new Oversight Board Counsel: Steven T. Mattas, Redwood Public 
Law 

Counsel Steven T. Mattas introduced himself and presented professional background 

H. Action Item(s)   
1. APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION OF THE SAN DIEGO COUNTYWIDE 

REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT BOARD APPROVING 
THE PROPOSED AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR 
PROPERTY TAX CONSULTING AND AUDIT SERVICES TO THE IMPERIAL 
BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

 
On motion of Chair Buxbaum and seconded by Hagerty, THE COUNTYWIDE 
REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT BOARD approved the 
APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION OF THE SAN DIEGO COUNTYWIDE 
REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT BOARD APPROVING 
THE PROPOSED AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR 
PROPERTY TAX CONSULTING AND AUDIT SERVICES TO THE IMPERIAL 
BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY. Oversight Board 
staff did a roll call vote of each OB member to indicate approval or non-approval. 
Motion passed. 

 
AYES: Hagerty, Jones, Robles, Buxbaum, and Merrill 

 
2. APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION OF THE SAN DIEGO COUNTYWIDE 

REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT BOARD APPROVING 
FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 SPECIAL LIABILITY INSURANCE PROGRAM (SLIP) 
FOR THE COUNTYWIDE REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
OVERSIGHT BOARD 

 
On motion of Chair Buxbaum and seconded by Jones, THE COUNTYWIDE 
REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT BOARD approved the 
APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION OF THE SAN DIEGO COUNTYWIDE 
REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT BOARD APPROVING 



 

Supporting documentation and attachments for items listed on this agenda can be viewed online at 
http://www.sdcounty.ca.gov/community/san-diego-county-oversight-board.html or in the Office of 
Economic Development & Government Affairs, 1600 Pacific Highway, Room 152, San Diego, CA 92101. 

ASSISTANCE FOR THE DISABLED: 
Agendas and records are available in alternative formats upon request.  Contact the Office of Economic Development 
& Government Affairs at (619) 531-5198 with questions or to request a disability-related accommodation. Individuals 
requiring sign language interpreters should contact the Americans with Disabilities Coordinator at (619) 531-4908. 
To the extent reasonably possible, requests for accommodation or assistance should be submitted at least 24 hours 
in advance of the meeting so that arrangements may be made. An area in the front of the room is designated for 
individuals requiring the use of wheelchair or other accessible devices. 

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 SPECIAL LIABILITY INSURANCE PROGRAM (SLIP) 
FOR THE COUNTYWIDE REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
OVERSIGHT BOARD. Oversight Board staff did a roll call vote of each OB member 
to indicate approval or non-approval. Motion passed. 

 
AYES: Hagerty, Jones, Robles, Buxbaum, and Merrill 
 

I. Communications Received: No communications received. 
 

J. Future Agenda Item(s): Introduction of new Seat 1 Board Member. To be determined 
pending Hagerty’s retirement and resignation which is currently anticipated to be 
become effective October 16, 2025.  
 

K. Set Future Meeting Date(s): October 16, 2025 10:00 a.m., November 20, 2025 10:00 
a.m., December 18th, 2025 10:00 a.m. 
 

L. Adjournment at 10:46am 
 



 

 

 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 

 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
COUNTYWIDE REDEVELOPMENT 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT 

BOARD 

COUNTYWIDE 
REDEVELOPMENT 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
OVERSIGHT BOARD 

 
BRIAN HAGERTY 

 
REBECCA JONES 

 
JESSE ROBLES 

 
SCOTT BUXBAUM 

 
DANIEL TROY 

 
SAMUEL MERRILL 

 
CORINNE WILSON 

 

 
 

 

 
DATE: October 16, 2025 01 
TO: Countywide Redevelopment Successor Agency Oversight Board 

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION OF THE SAN DIEGO COUNTYWIDE 
REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT BOARD 
APPROVING AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SAN DIEGO SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY’S DESIGNATED AGENT AND KIMLEY-HORN AND 
ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSULTING SERVICES 
ON THE B STREET PEDESTRIAN CORRIDOR PROJECT 
 

SUMMARY:  
  
 Overview 
 In September 2019, the Oversight Board and California Department of Finance approved 

a Civil Engineering Consulting Services Agreement (“Agreement”) between Civic San 
Diego (“CivicSD”), acting as the contracting agent for the City of San Diego, in its 
capacity as the Successor Agency to the former Redevelopment Agency of the City of 
San Diego (“Successor Agency”), and Kimley-Horn and Associates (“Consultant”) to 
provide civil engineering consulting services on a pedestrian corridor project (“Project”) 
(described in greater detail below). In October 2021, the Oversight Board and California 
Department of Finance approved a first amendment to the Agreement (First 
Amendment), which expanded Consultant’s Scope of Services and increased 
Consultant’s compensation. 
 
The construction documents and permit approvals for the Project are near complete. 
However, the Project has incurred delays due to design changes by unanticipated 
permitting requirements and coordination with stakeholders. 
 
Under this proposed Second Amendment (Attachment B) (“Second Amendment”), the 
Parties seek to (1) modify the Scope of Services to complete the Project construction 
documents and obtain the necessary permits for bidding and construction, (2) increase 
Consultant’s compensation by $100,000, and (3) extend the Term of the Agreement to 
December 31, 2026.  
 



 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION OF THE SAN DIEGO COUNTYWIDE 

REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT BOARD 
APPROVING AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SAN DIEGO SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY’S DESIGNATED AGENT AND KIMLEY-HORN AND 
ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSULTING SERVICES 
ON THE B STREET PEDESTRIAN CORRIDOR PROJECT 

 

- 2 - 

The Consultant was originally selected through a qualification-based process and was 
the best qualified firm for the Project’s requirements. This Agreement will complete the 
design and permitting phase and push the project into the construction phase so that the 
Successor Agency can continue to fulfill its recognized obligations. 

 
 Recommendation(s) 
  

1. Adopt the resolution entitled, A RESOLUTION OF THE SAN DIEGO 
COUNTYWIDE REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT 
BOARD APPROVING AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SAN DIEGO SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY’S DESIGNATED AGENT AND KIMLEY-HORN AND 
ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSULTING SERVICES 
ON THE B STREET PEDESTRIAN CORRIDOR PROJECT 

 
 Fiscal Impact 
 Funding from line item 164 in the Redevelopment Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) 

is available in the amount of $3,000,000. The current ROPS 25-26 period “A” that ends 
December 31, 2025 has $1,500,000 programmed to cover this agreement, along with 
$1,500,000 programmed for period “B” that ends June 30, 2026. The Project has been 
previously recognized as an enforceable obligation and there are sufficient funds 
programmed in the current ROPS periods to cover the contract. 

BACKGROUND: 
In 1993, the Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Diego (the “Former RDA”) executed an 
Amended and Restated Development Agreement and an Amended and Restated Owner 
Participation Agreement with Catellus Development Corporation (including its affiliates, 
“Catellus”) which revised development entitlements first granted in 1983 to Catellus’ predecessor 
for the approximate 17 acres in the environs of the Santa Fe Depot (together, the 
“Development/Owner Participation Agreements”).  
 
Under the terms of these Development/Owner Participation Agreements, Catellus was required 
to retrofit and complete base building improvements to the Santa Fe Depot Baggage Building 
(“Baggage Building”) and to transfer title of the Baggage Building to the City of San Diego 
(“City”), or any other governmental agency or non-profit entity designated by the City, for use as 
a museum or other cultural use. 
 
In December 2002, the Former RDA approved an agreement between the Former RDA, Catellus, 
and the Museum of Contemporary Art, San Diego (“Museum”) in which Catellus transferred title 
of the Santa Fe Depot Baggage Building to the Museum, with an option for the Former RDA to 
acquire title from the earlier of (a) a Museum default and (b) July 31, 2091 (“Transfer 
Agreement”) (Attachment C). Section 10.22 of the Transfer Agreement – Public Access 



 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION OF THE SAN DIEGO COUNTYWIDE 

REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT BOARD 
APPROVING AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SAN DIEGO SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY’S DESIGNATED AGENT AND KIMLEY-HORN AND 
ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSULTING SERVICES 
ON THE B STREET PEDESTRIAN CORRIDOR PROJECT 

 

- 3 - 

Improvements in B Street, states “it is a goal of the [Former RDA] to install a public pathway and 
landscaping between Kettner Boulevard and the Transit Courtyard within the vacated B Street 
right of way” (the “B Street Pedestrian Corridor”). Also under Section 10.22, the Museum 
obligated itself to “pay to [the Former RDA] $150,000 to assist [the Former RDA] in the funding 
of the improvements as contemplated on Exhibit K …” (i.e., the B Street Pedestrian Corridor). 
Construction and development of the B Street Pedestrian Corridor, including all ancillary 
improvements related thereto, shall be referred to in this Staff Report as the “Project.” And the 
$150,000 that the Museum agreed to contribute towards the Project shall be referred to as the 
“Project Contribution.” 
 
In October 2024, the City, the Museum, and The Regents of the University of California (the 
“Regents”) entered into an Agreement Satisfying and Terminating Obligations Under 2004 
Transfer Agreement and Amending 2004 City Option (“2024 Agreement”) as a condition 
precedent to the City’s consent to the Museum’s proposed sale of the Baggage Building to the 
Regents. The 2024 Agreement, among other things, transferred all obligations of the Museum 
under the Transfer Agreement to the Regents, including payment of the Project Contribution. 
 
The Successor Agency has received from the Regents the Project Contribution, which is currently 
being held in a dedicated account for the Project. 
 
The Successor Agency is responsible for the remaining funds to administer the Project, and the 
Transfer Agreement specifically states that the Former RDA “shall fund all amounts required to 
construct and install such improvements.” Furthermore, the Transfer Agreement states that “[i]t 
shall be the responsibility of the [Former RDA] to develop the final construction drawings for the 
improvements and landscaping implementing” the B Street Pedestrian Corridor. 
 
Pursuant to the Transfer Agreement, the Museum entered into a lease with AMTRAK in February 
2006 for the use of an approximately 2,755-square foot portion of the Baggage Building 
(“AMTRAK Lease”) (Attachment D). The AMTRAK Lease was amended on or about September 
8, 2006. Section 4 of the AMTRAK Lease states that the “Museum will install a driveway and 
walkway…for pedestrian purposes; such driveway and walkway shall be deemed to and shall 
constitute the Public Pedestrian Pathway until the one desired by the [Former RDA], as above 
described is constructed.”   
 

The Development/Owner Participation Agreements, the Transfer Agreement, and the AMTRAK 
Lease (collectively, the Controlling Documents) obligate the Successor Agency to acquire those 
certain public pedestrian easements within the vacated B Street right-of-way and pay for the 
design, development and construction of the Project.  
 
Consultant, in cooperation with the stakeholders adjacent to the B Street Pedestrian Corridor, 
including the Regents, AMTRAK, and the McClintock Building owner to the north have 
completely vetted the design for the B Street Pedestrian Corridor which would allow passage for 



 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION OF THE SAN DIEGO COUNTYWIDE 

REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT BOARD 
APPROVING AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SAN DIEGO SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY’S DESIGNATED AGENT AND KIMLEY-HORN AND 
ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSULTING SERVICES 
ON THE B STREET PEDESTRIAN CORRIDOR PROJECT 

 

- 4 - 

pedestrians and limited access for stakeholder vehicles.  
 
Throughout the coordination process, the permits required by the City of San Diego triggered 
additional building permits and surveys due to proposed improvements to existing walls. This 2nd 
Amendment with Kimley-Horn will continue the process to incorporate the input by the new and 
existing stakeholders, complete the construction drawings, and obtain permits through the City 
of San Diego. 
 
Pursuant to Assembly Bill x1 26 (“AB 26”) and Assembly Bill 1484, the Former RDA dissolved 
on February 1, 2012, at which time the Successor Agency assumed all of the Former RDA’s assets, 
rights, and obligations under the California Community Redevelopment Law. In addition, 
CivicSD, formerly Centre City Development Corporation (“CCDC”), has replaced CCDC as the 
Successor Agency’s representative for, among other duties, many aspects of the winding down of 
redevelopment in the City. 
 
Section 34177.3(a) of California Health and Safety Code, as recently amended, states that 
successor agencies “shall lack the authority to, and shall not, create new enforceable obligations 
or begin redevelopment work, except in compliance with an enforceable obligation . . . that existed 
prior to June 28, 2011.” Section 34177.3(b) permits successor agencies to “create enforceable 
obligations to conduct the work of winding down the redevelopment agency, including hiring staff, 
acquiring necessary professional administrative services and legal counsel, and procuring 
insurance.” Section 34171(d)(1)(E) defines “enforceable obligation” to include “any legally 
binding and enforceable agreement or contract that is not otherwise void as violating the debt limit 
or public policy.” Section 34171(d)(1)(F) further defines “enforceable obligation” to include 
“[c]ontracts or agreements for the administration or operation of the successor agency, in 
accordance with this part . . . .” Section 34177(a) requires the Successor Agency to continue to 
make payments due for enforceable obligations, and Section 34177(c) requires the Successor 
Agency to perform obligations required pursuant to any enforceable obligation.  
 
Under Section 34177.3(b), a post-AB 26 contract or amendment thereto is warranted if it allows 
the Successor Agency to fulfill a pre-AB 26 enforceable obligation. The DOF issued a letter dated 
November 8, 2013 that requires the Oversight Board and the DOF to approve all post-AB 26 
services contracts, management contracts and similar contracts, and post-AB 26 amendments to 
existing contracts of that nature, that will involve the Successor Agency’s expenditure of funds in 
the ROPS 13-14B time period and beyond.  
 
This Agreement should be permitted under Sections 34171(d)(1)(E), 34171(d)(1)(F), 34177(a), 
34177(c), and 34177.3(b) as it will allow Successor Agency, through CivicSD, to utilize the 
Consultant to fulfill an enforceable obligation that existed prior to June 28, 2011. The enforceable 
obligation was created through the Controlling Documents that obligate the Former RDA to 
design, develop, and construct the B Street Pedestrian Corridor. To fulfill this pre-AB 26 
enforceable obligation, CivicSD, on the Successor Agency’s behalf, seeks to modify its Agreement 



 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION OF THE SAN DIEGO COUNTYWIDE 

REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT BOARD 
APPROVING AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SAN DIEGO SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY’S DESIGNATED AGENT AND KIMLEY-HORN AND 
ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSULTING SERVICES 
ON THE B STREET PEDESTRIAN CORRIDOR PROJECT 

 

- 5 - 

with the Consultant to obtain the permits, complete the design, and move into the construction 
phase of the Project. 
 
Project Description – Kimley-Horn utilized the previously approved schematic drawings 
developed by CivicSD and the stakeholders’ input to prepare construction drawings for the B 
Street Pedestrian Corridor improvements between Kettner Boulevard and the railroad tracks. Staff 
negotiated the 2nd Amendment amount to be $100,000, which includes completing the design and 
obtaining permits through the City of San Diego.  
 
Project Budget – The Preliminary Cost Estimate for the entire Project is $3.1 million and as part 
of the amended scope of services, the Consultant will provide a new opinion of probable cost. Staff 
has estimated the contract is within the Project Budget.  
 
Project Schedule of Performance – The following is a preliminary schedule for the proposed 
Project work.  
 

Phase Action Dates 
1 Obtain Permits December 2025 
2 Construction Phase January 2026 
3 Completion Early 2027 

 
Environmental Impact:  This activity is not a “Project” for purposes of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) because it does not fit within the definition of a “Project” 
set forth in Public Resources Code Section 21065 or State CEQA Guidelines Section 15378. 
Therefore, this activity is not subject to CEQA pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section 
15060(c)(3). 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
STEVE LOCKETT 
Deputy Director, EDGA 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
A – Resolution No. OB-2025-23  
B – Draft 2nd Amendment with Kimley Horn and Associates 
C – Transfer Agreement  
D – AMTRAK Lease 



 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION OF THE SAN DIEGO COUNTYWIDE 

REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT BOARD 
APPROVING AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SAN DIEGO SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY’S DESIGNATED AGENT AND KIMLEY-HORN AND 
ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSULTING SERVICES 
ON THE B STREET PEDESTRIAN CORRIDOR PROJECT 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET 
 

 
PREVIOUS RELEVANT BOARD ACTIONS: 
On September 19, 2019, the Successor Agency Oversight Board approved a contract for 
consulting services with Kimley-Horn to prepare schematic design drawings and preliminary cost 
estimate for the B Street Pedestrian Corridor project.  

On October 21, 2021, the Successor Agency Oversight Board approved the First Amendment for 
consulting services with Kimley-Horn to prepare construction documents for the subject Project. 

MANDATORY COMPLIANCE: 
Per the Controlling Documents, the Successor Agency is required and monetarily responsible for 
the completion of the B Street Pedestrian Corridor and associated activities to complete the 
subject Project.  

 
CONTACT PERSON(S):      
 
Steve Lockett  Matthew Ostlund 
Name  Name 
619-984-0697  619-929-6662 
Phone  Phone 
Steve.Lockett@sdcounty.ca.gov  Matthew.Ostlund@sdcounty.ca.gov 
E-mail  E-mail 



Attachment A 
Resolution No: OB-2025-23 
Meeting Date: 10/16/2025 
  
 

1 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE SAN DIEGO COUNTYWIDE 

REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY OVERSIGHT BOARD 
APPROVING AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO THE PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SAN DIEGO 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY’S DESIGNATED AGENT AND KIMLEY-

HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR CIVIL ENGINEERING 
CONSULTING SERVICES ON THE B STREET PEDESTRIAN 

CORRIDOR PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, the former Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Diego (Former RDA) 

administered the implementation of various redevelopment projects, programs, and activities 

within designated redevelopment project areas throughout the City of San Diego (City); and 

WHEREAS, under California’s redevelopment dissolution laws, the Former RDA 

dissolved as of February 1, 2012, at which time the City, solely in its capacity as the designated 

successor agency to the Former RDA (Successor Agency), assumed the Former RDA’s assets 

and obligations and commenced winding down the Former RDA’s operations; and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency is required to administer the winding down of the 

Former RDA’s operations and to ensure compliance with the Former RDA’s obligations in 

accordance with Assembly Bill x1 26 (AB 26), as subsequently amended (collectively, the 

Dissolution Laws); and 

WHEREAS, the Dissolution Laws specify that the Oversight Board and the California 

Department of Finance (DOF) must review and approve certain actions and decisions of the 

Successor Agency, including the Successor Agency’s approval of each Recognized Obligation 

Payment Schedule (ROPS); and 

WHEREAS, among other things, each ROPS shows the estimated payments owed by the 

Successor Agency to third parties for enforceable obligations during the upcoming fiscal period 

and identifies the funding sources that will be used to make such payments; and 



Attachment A 
Resolution No: OB-2025-23 
Meeting Date: 10/16/2025 
  
 

2 
 

WHEREAS, California Health and Safety Code (Code) section 34177.3(a) states that 

successor agencies “shall lack the authority to, and shall not, create new enforceable obligations 

or begin redevelopment work, except in compliance with an enforceable obligation . . . that 

existed prior to June 28, 2011”; and   

WHEREAS, Code section 34177.3(b) permits successor agencies to “create enforceable 

obligations to conduct the work of winding down the redevelopment agency, including hiring 

staff, acquiring necessary professional administrative services and legal counsel, and procuring 

insurance”; and 

WHEREAS, Code section 34171(d)(1)(E) defines “enforceable obligation” to include 

“[a]ny legally binding and enforceable agreement or contract that is not otherwise void as 

violating the debt limit or public policy”; and 

WHEREAS, Code section 34171(d)(1)(F)(i) further defines “enforceable obligation” to 

include “[c]ontracts or agreements for the administration or operation of the successor agency, in 

accordance with this part . . . .”; and 

WHEREAS, Code section 34177(a) requires the Successor Agency to continue to make 

payments due for enforceable obligations, and Code section 34177(c) requires the Successor 

Agency to perform obligations required pursuant to any enforceable obligation; and 

WHEREAS, the DOF issued a letter dated November 8, 2013 (November 2013 Letter) 

that effectively requires the Oversight Board and the DOF to approve all post-AB 26 services 

contracts, management contracts and similar contracts, and post-AB 26 amendments to existing 

contracts of that nature, that will involve the Successor Agency’s expenditure of funds in the 

ROPS 13-14B time period and beyond; and 



Attachment A 
Resolution No: OB-2025-23 
Meeting Date: 10/16/2025 
  
 

3 
 

WHEREAS, the DOF also issued a letter dated April 1, 2014 (April 2014 Letter), 

interpreting the Dissolution Laws to mean the Oversight Board must find that any post-AB 26 

contract amendment for the provision of services is in the best interests of the local taxing 

entities in accordance with Code section 34181(e) or that the contract amendment, including any 

increase in compensation or scope of services, is necessary for the administration or operation of 

the Successor Agency in accordance with Code section 34171(d)(1)(F)(i); and 

WHEREAS, Civic San Diego (CivicSD) performs certain administrative functions on the 

Successor Agency’s behalf related to winding down the Former RDA’s operations; and 

WHEREAS, to comply with the November 2013 Letter and the April 2014 Letter, the 

Successor Agency is now presenting, for approval by the Oversight Board and the DOF, 

Amendment Number 2 to the Professional Services Agreement (Second Amendment) between 

CivicSD (the Successor Agency’s designated agent) and Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 

(Consultant), which involves the expenditure of ROPS-approved funds for civil engineering 

consulting services to prepare construction documents and obtain permits for the completion of 

certain pedestrian pathway and landscaping improvements in the B Street corridor in downtown 

San Diego (Project) pursuant to an enforceable obligation, as described further below; and 

WHEREAS, in 1993, the Former RDA and Catellus Development Corporation 

(collectively with its affiliates, Catellus) entered into the Amended and Restated Development 

Agreement and the Amended and Restated Owner Participation Agreement (collectively, 

Development/Owner Participation Agreements), which revised development entitlements first 

granted in 1983 to Catellus’ predecessor for approximately 17 acres of land near the Santa Fe 

Depot in downtown San Diego; and 



Attachment A 
Resolution No: OB-2025-23 
Meeting Date: 10/16/2025 
  
 

4 
 

WHEREAS, the Development/Owner Participation Agreements required Catellus to 

retrofit and complete base building improvements to the Santa Fe Depot Baggage Building 

(Baggage Building) and to transfer title of the Baggage Building to the City, or any other 

governmental agency or non-profit entity designated by the City, for use as a museum or other 

cultural use; and 

WHEREAS, in 2004, the Former RDA, Catellus, and the Museum of Contemporary Art, 

San Diego (Museum) entered into the Transfer Agreement and Escrow Instructions (Transfer 

Agreement), by which Catellus transferred title of the Baggage Building to the Museum, with an 

option for the City to acquire title from the earlier of (a) a Museum default and (b) July 31, 2091; 

and 

WHEREAS, Section 10.22 of the Transfer Agreement requires the Successor Agency, as 

successor to the Former RDA, to acquire certain public pedestrian easements within the vacated 

B Street right of way and, subject to a contribution of $150,000 from the Museum (Project 

Contribution), to pay for the design, development, construction, and installation of the pedestrian 

pathway and landscaping improvements in the B Street corridor (i.e., the Project), as further 

described in the staff report accompanying this Resolution; and 

WHEREAS, in 2024, the City, the Museum, and The Regents of the University of 

California (the Regents) entered into an Agreement Satisfying and Terminating Obligations 

Under 2004 Transfer Agreement and Amending 2004 City Option (2024 Agreement) as a 

condition precedent to the City’s consent to the Museum’s proposed sale of the Baggage 

Building to the Regents. The 2024 Agreement, among other things, transferred all obligations of 

the Museum under the Transfer Agreement to the Regents, including payment of the Project 

Contribution; and 



Attachment A 
Resolution No: OB-2025-23 
Meeting Date: 10/16/2025 
  
 

5 
 

WHEREAS, the City has received from the Regents the Project Contribution, which is 

currently being held in a dedicated account for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. OB-2019-025 adopted on September 19, 2019, 

the Oversight Board approved the original Professional Services Agreement between CivicSD 

and the Consultant, involving the maximum expenditure of $49,600 in ROPS-approved funds for 

an initial phase of civil engineering consulting services, which included schematic design, 

preliminary cost estimate, and public outreach associated with the Project; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. OB-2021-020 adopted on October 21, 2021, the 

Oversight Board approved the First Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement between 

CivicSD and the Consultant, increasing the compensation by $140,747.75 from the previous 

amount of $49,600 for a total amount of $190,347.75 to complete the second phase of civil 

engineering consulting services for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. OB-2025-12 adopted on January 16, 2025, the 

Oversight Board approved the Successor Agency’s ROPS for the period of July 1, 2025 through 

June 30, 2026 (ROPS 25-26), which includes authorization to pay Consultant for services 

performed for the Project up to the total amount of $3,000,000.00 (ROPS 25-26 Limit); and 

WHEREAS, the proposed form of the Second Amendment is attached to the staff report 

accompanying this Resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the Second Amendment will benefit the local taxing entities and will be in 

their best interests, in that it will permit the Successor Agency to carry out its contractual 

obligation under the Transfer Agreement, a pre-AB 26 contract, to complete the design, 

development, construction, and installation of the Project, and will avoid the Successor Agency’s 

breach of its contractual obligations; and 



Attachment A 
Resolution No: OB-2025-23 
Meeting Date: 10/16/2025 
  
 

6 
 

WHEREAS, the Second Amendment involves an increase in the scope of services to 

encompass the Consultant’s ongoing coordination with new and existing stakeholders and 

unforeseen permitting requirements to secure necessary permits for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Second Amendment also involves an increase in compensation by 

$100,000, from the previous amount of $190,347.75 to the current amount of $290,347.75, to 

allow the Consultant to complete the design, obtain permits, and finalize the construction 

documents for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the increased compensation is warranted in that it is directly attributable to 

the increased scope of services, is permissible under the Oversight Board-approved ROPS 25-26, 

and does not exceed the ROPS 25-26 Limit; and 

WHEREAS, the Second Amendment is necessary for the operation or administration of 

the Successor Agency because it permits the Successor Agency to complete the final design, 

development, construction, and installation of the Project and thereby fulfill its contractual 

obligations under the Transfer Agreement related to the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency, or CivicSD as the contracting agent on its behalf, 

will pay for the Consultant’s services performed under the Second Amendment utilizing the 

funding sources shown in line item 164 of the ROPS 25-26. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oversight Board as follows: 

1. The Board finds, in accordance with Code section 34181(e), that the Second 

Amendment is in the best interests of the local taxing entities. 

2. The Board finds, in accordance with Code section 34171(d)(1)(F)(i), that the 

provision of services under the Second Amendment, including the increase in scope of services 



Attachment A 
Resolution No: OB-2025-23 
Meeting Date: 10/16/2025 
  
 

7 
 

as well as the related increase in compensation by $100,000, is necessary for the administration 

or operation of the Successor Agency. 

3. The Second Amendment is approved. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Oversight Board at a duly noticed meeting of the 

Oversight Board held on October 16, 2025. 

Approved as to From and Legality 
By Steven T. Mattas, Oversight Board Counsel 
 

     ________________________________ 
      Scott Buxbaum 

Chair, Oversight Board 



Second Amendment to Professional Services Agreement         Page 1 of 4 
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BY AND 

BETWEEN CIVIC SAN DIEGO 

 AND 

KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 

This Second Amendment (“Amendment”), dated this               day of ______, 2025, for 
reference purposes only, is entered into by and between Civic San Diego, a California nonprofit 
public benefit corporation, with its principal place of business at 8989 Rio San Diego Drive Suite 
100, San Diego, California 92108 (“Civic”) and Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., a North 
Carolina corporation, with its principal place of business at 401 B Street, Suite 600, San Diego, 
California 92101, United States (“Consultant”).  Civic and Consultant are sometimes referred to 
in this Amendment individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”   This Amendment 
is entered into in light of the following recited facts (each a “Recital”). 

RECITALS 

A. Civic is a nonprofit public benefit corporation organized under the California
Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law (Corp. Code § 5110 et seq.), for charitable purposes to 
raise capital for and engage in activities that promote economic growth and community 
development and provide project management, consulting, and other similar community 
development services to public and private entities or persons. Under the Professional Services 
Agreement dated August 22, 2019 (“Agreement”), Civic has retained the services of Consultant, 
a engineering firm, design firm, to provide professional services relating to B Street Pedestrian 
Corridor (the “Project”). 

B. On December 3, 2021, Civic and Consultant amended the Agreement to add scope
of work for B Street Pedestrian Corridor and increase the Time and Material Not to Exceed 
Amount by $140,747.75 from the previous amount of $49,600 (“First Amendment”).  

C. The Parties now desire to enter into a Second Amendment and to amend the
Agreement to add to the Scope of Services, increase the maximum compensation, and extend the 
term. 

D. Amendment Authority.  This Amendment is authorized pursuant to Section 14(h)
of the Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the Recitals and the terms and conditions set 
forth in this Amendment, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties set forth their mutual covenants and understandings 
as follows: 

TERMS 

Attachment B 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



 

 
Second Amendment to Professional Services Agreement                                     Page 2 of 5  
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.  

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES: The Scope of Services, Agreement Exhibit “A”, is 
hereby amended and supplemented by the Scope of Services (SUPPLEMENTAL), attached to this 
Amendment as Exhibit “A” and incorporated into the Agreement by this reference.   

2. COMPENSATION:  The Time and Materials Not to Exceed Amount 
defined in Section 2 “COMPENSATION” of the Agreement is hereby amended to increase by 
$100,000.00, from the previous amount of $190,347.75 to the current amount of $290,347.75, 
attached to this Amendment as Exhibit “B”.   

3. EXTENSION OF TERM: The Term of the Agreement is hereby extended 
through December 31, 2026. 

4. CONTINUING EFFECT OF AGREEMENT.   Except as amended by this 
Amendment, all other provisions of the Agreement as previously amended, remain in full force 
and effect.  From and after the date of this Amendment, whenever the term “Agreement” appears 
in the Agreement, it shall mean the Agreement as amended by this Amendment and prior 
amendments. 

5. AUTHORIZATION.   The individual executing this Amendment on behalf 
of the Consultant represents and warrants they have the legal power, right and actual authority to 
bind Consultant to the terms and conditions of this Amendment. 

6. ADEQUATE CONSIDERATION.  The Parties stipulate and agree that 
they have each received adequate and independent consideration for the performance of 
obligations undertaken pursuant to this Amendment.   

7. COUNTERPARTS.   This Amendment may be executed in duplicate 
originals, each of which is deemed to be an original, but when taken together shall constitute one 
and the same instrument. 

 
[SIGNATURES ARE ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE.] 

  

Attachment B 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



 

 
Second Amendment to Professional Services Agreement                                     Page 3 of 5  
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to be executed and 
delivered by their respective representatives, thereunto duly authorized, as of the date first written 
above.  

   
  CIVIC SAN DIEGO  
 
 
 
  By: ____________________________________________                                                                                

                   Andrew T. Phillips 
                   President & CEO 
 

  Dated this _____ day of ______________________ 2025 
 
 

 
 KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 

                                                                             
  By: ____________________________________________ 
 
  Print Name: _____________________________________ 
 
  Position/Title: ___________________________________ 
   
  Dated this _____ day of ______________________ 2025 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 
CIVIC SAN DIEGO CORPORATE COUNSEL 
 
By (Signature): _______________________________ 
 Shawn Hagerty, Esq. 
 Corporate Counsel 
 
Dated this ______ day of _____________________2025 
 

 

Attachment B 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



 

 
Second Amendment to Professional Services Agreement                                     Page 4 of 5  
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.  
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES (SUPPLEMENTAL) 

Wall Mural Design 

Consultant will prepare a “paint-by-numbers” design for a new mural to be included on the 
existing wall on the north side of the corridor. This task includes up to three (3) design revisions 
based on Client and/or stakeholder comments.  

Right of Way Survey 

Consultant will perform a field survey and site investigation to establish a clear right of way 
boundary line based on visible monumentation and a review of available record documents. The 
right of way line will be added to the revised plans prior to City resubmittal. 

Building Permit Plans 

Consultant will prepare a separate Building Permit design package for submittal to the City.  
This additional design package was directed by City Staff and is to include all design items 
proposed outside of the existing easement.  

Building Permit Processing 

Consultant will assist Civic with submittal of the plans to the City of San Diego Building 
Department (DSD) for review. Consultant anticipates up to two (2) cycles of minor review 
comments prior to approval. Consultant will review comments upon receipt, coordinate with 
Civic and City staff regarding the comments, and prepare revisions to the Building Permit Plans 
and a comment response memo for each resubmittal.  

Revised Cost Estimate 

Consultant will revise the project Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (OPCC) for the revised 
design scope described herein. The OPCC will be for reference and City bond purposes. 

Bid Phase Assistance 

Consultant will assist Civic with limited bid phase services. This task assumes up to fifteen (15) 
hours of Consultant staff effort. Specifically: 

1. Review and respond to contractor requests for information (RFI) related to the plans and 
contract documents during for bidding 

2. Attend one (1) in-person pre-bid meeting with Civic and bidding contractors 

3. Assist Civic with limited bid-related documentation and coordination. 

Attachment B 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



 

 
Second Amendment to Professional Services Agreement                                     Page 5 of 5  
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.  

 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

T&M Fee Schedule  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Scope Fee 
Wall Mural Design $22,000 
Right of Way Survey $10,000 
Building Permit Plans $15,000 
Building Permit Processing $13,000 
Revised Design Plans $15,000 
ROW Permit Processing $11,000 
Revised Cost Estimate $5,000 
Bid Phase Assistance $9,000 
Total  $100,000 

Attachment B 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



ORIGINAL 
DUPLICATE 

TRANSFER AGREE!VIENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS 

CATELLUS OPERATING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 

CITY OF SAN DIEGO 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO 

and 

MUSEUM OF CONTEMPORARY ART, SAN DIEGO 

Covering certain real property at the SANTA FE DEPOT SITE commonly known as the· 

Effective Date: 

BAGGAGE BUILDING SITE 

and 

REA SITE 

The date on which this Agreement is signed by the last to sign as between 
the City or Agency, that date being July L' 2004 

DOCUMEtiT No.i£:2-9940 6_ 

FILED _______ J1,1JL?c~~~!l0!L-o---:-
OffiCE OF THE CITY CLERK 

SCMV -version 22 SAN DIEGO. CALifORNIA 6-15-04 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



TABLE CONTENTS 

1. FUNDAMENTAL PROVISIONS AND DEFINITIONS .................................................. 1 

1.1 Development Agreement or DA. ............................................................................ 1 
1.2 Owner Participation Agreement or OPA. ............................................................... 1 
1.3 Escrow Agent. ......................................................................................................... 1 
1.4 Escrow No ............................................................................................................... 1 
1.5 Title Company ........................................................................................................ 1 
1.6 Purchase Price ......................................................................................................... 1 
1.7 Close of Escrow ...................................................................................................... 2 
1.8 Address for Notices to Catellus .............................................................................. 2 
1.9 Address for Notices to City ..................................................................................... 2 
1.10 Address for Notices to Agency ............................................................................... 2 
1.11 Address for Notices to CCDC ................................................................................. 2 
1.12 Address for Notices to Museum ............................................................................. 3 
1.13 Address for Notices to Escrow Agent.. ................................................................... 3 
1.14 Property ................................................................................................................... 3 

1.14.1 Baggage Building Site; Baggage Building ................................................. 3 
1.14.2 REA Site; REA Building ............................................................................ 3 

1.15 Breezeway Easement. ............................................................................................. 3 
1.16 Definitions ............................................................................................................... 4 

2. AGREEMENT TO TRANSFER AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS ................................... 4 

2.1 Agreement to Transfer. ........................................................................................... 4 
2.1.1 Baggage Building Site ................................................................................ 4 
2.1.2 REA Site ..................................................................................................... 4 
2.1.3 Amtrak Lease .............................................................................................. 4 

2.2 Catellus Acknowledgments .................................................................................... 4 
2.2.1 Baggage Building ........................................................................................ 5 
2.2.2 REA Site ..................................................................................................... 5 

3. CLOSING DELIVERIES ................................................................................................... 5 

3.1 Catellus' Closing Deliveries ................................................................................... 5 
3.1.1 Grant Deed .................................................................................................. 5 
3.1.2 Maintenance Covenant. ............................................................................... 5 
3.1.3 Breezeway Easement. ................................................................................. 5 
3.1.4 Fa<;:ade Easement. ........................................................................................ 5 
3.1.5 Non-Foreign Affidavit. ............................................................................... 5 
3.1.6 Closing Costs .............................................................................................. 6 

3.2 City's Closing Deliveries ........................................................................................ 6 

1 

SD\440017 .2 07-23-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



3.2.1 City Option .................................................................................................. 6 
3.2.2 Breezeway Easement. ................................................................................. 6 
3.2.3 Fa9ade Easement. A Fa9ade Easement, as described in Section 3.1.4 ...... 6 
3.2.4 Closing Costs. City's title costs (if any) as provided in Section 8 ............. 6 

3.3 Museum's Closing Deliveries ................................................................................. 6 

4. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT ............................................................................................ 7 

4.1 Conditions Precedent. ............................................................................................. 7 
4.1.1 City Council and Agency Approval... ......................................................... 7 
4.1.2 ConditionofTitle ........................................................................................ 7 
4.1.3 Baggage Building Improvements ............................................................... 7 
4.1.4 Form ofFa9ade Easement.. ......................................................................... 7 
4.1.5 REA Building Demolition .......................................................................... 7 
4.1.6 Baggage Building Additional Improvements ............................................. 7 

4.2 Waivers, Approvals and Disapprovals .................................................................... 8 

5. ENVIRONMENTAL PROVISIONS ................................................................................. 8 

5.1 Exculpation of Escrow Agent. ................................................................................ 8 
5.2 Environmental Definitions ...................................................................................... 8 

5 .2.1 Hazardous Substance .................................................................................. 8 
5.2.2 Hazardous Substance Condition ................................................................. 8 
5.2.3 Contractual Response Requirements .......................................................... 8 
5 .2.4 Response Costs ........................................................................................... 9 
5.2.5 Qualified Environmental Professional.. ...................................................... 9 

5.3 Catellus Report ........................................................................................................ 9 
5.4 Environmental Clean Up ......................................................................................... 9 

5.4.1 Preparation of Soils Management Plan ....................................................... 9 
5.4.2 "No Further Action" Letter ....................................................................... 10 
5.4.3 Catellus's Response Requirements ........................................................... 11 
5.4.4 Environmental Clean-Up Standard ........................................................... 11 
5.4.5 Acceptance of Lead Based Paint Conditions ............................................ 12 
5.4.6 Disclaimer of Obligations by the City of San Diego ................................ 12 
5.4.7 Non-Contractual Response Requirements Remain ................................... 12 

6. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, ETC ................................................................ 12 

6.1 Transferee Inspection ............................................................................................ 12 
6.2 No Brokers ............................................................................................................ 13 
6.3 No Encumbrances ................................................................................................. 13 

7. THE CLOSING ................................................................................................................ 13 

7.1 Escrow ................................................................................................................... 13 

ii 

C:\Documents and Settings\allsbrook\Local Settings\ Temporary Internet Files\OLKE\Catellus -Museum Transfer Agreement 22.doc 

SD\440017.2 07-23-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



7.2 General Provisions ................................................................................................ 13 
7.3 Closing .................................................................................................................. 13 

7.3 .1 Documents and Funds ............................................................................... 13 
7.3.2 Conditions Precedent. ............................................................................... 13 
7.3.3 Title Policies ............................................................................................. 13 

7.4 Early Closing ........................................................................................................ 14 
7.5 Late Closing .......................................................................................................... 14 
7.6 Termination Procedures ........................................................................................ 14 
7.7 Retention of Rights ............................................................................................... 14 
7.8 Possession ............................................................................................................. 14 

8. PRORATIONS, FEES AND COSTS ............................................................................... l5 

8.1 Prorations .............................................................................................................. 15 
8.2 Catellus' Charges .................................................................................................. 15 
8.3 Museum's Charges ................................................................................................ 15 
8.4 City's Charges ....................................................................................................... 15 
8.5 Utility Charges ...................................................................................................... 15 

9. FURTHER REQUIREMENTS OF AMTRAK LEASE AND EFFECT OF NO 
AMTRAK LEASE ............................................................................................................ 15 

10. MUSEUM OBLIGATIONS FOR BENEFIT OF CITY: ................................................. 16 

10.1 No Catellus or Escrow Agent Responsibility ....................................................... 16 
10.2 Uses ....................................................................................................................... 16 
10.3 Related Council Actions ....................................................................................... 16 
10.4 Competent Management. ...................................................................................... 16 
10.5 Operation of Property ........................................................................................... 16 
10.6 Rates and Charges ................................................................................................. 17 
10.7 Political Activities ................................................................................................. 17 
10.8 Public Use ............................................................................................................. 17 
10.9 Indemnity .............................................................................................................. 17 
10.10 Insurance ............................................................................................................... l7 
1 0.11 Waste, Damage, or Destruction ............................................................................ 18 
10.12 Entry and Inspection ............................................................................................. 19 
10.13 Maintenance .......................................................................................................... 19 
10.14 Facade Protection .................................................................................................. 19 
10.15 Improvements/Alterations ..................................................................................... 20 
10.16 Utilities .................................................................................................................. 20 
10.17 Liens. . .................................................................................................................. 20 
10.18 Taxes .................................................................................................................... 20 
10.19 Signs .................................................................................................................... 21 
10.20 Unavoidable Delay ................................................................................................ 21 

i11 

C:\Documents and Settings\al\sbrook\Local Settings\ Temporary Internet Fi\es\OLKE\Catellus ~Museum Transfer Agreement 22.doc 

SD\4400 17.2 07-23·2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



1 0.21 Development Plans ............................................................................................... 21 
10.22 Public Access Improvements in B Street.. ............................................................ 21 
10.23 Hazardous/Toxic Waste ........................................................................................ 23 
1 0.24 Asbestos Disclosure .............................................................................................. 23 
1 0.25 Hazardous Materials Disclosure ........................................................................... 23 
1 0 .26 Compliance with Law ........................................................................................... 24 
10.27 Nondiscrimination ................................................................................................. 24 
10.28 Relocation Payments ............................................................................................. 24 
10.29 Survival. The provisions of Section 10 survive the Closing ............................... 24 

11. GENERAL PROVISIONS ............................................................................................... 24 

11.1 Assignment. .......................................................................................................... 24 
11.1.1 By Catellus ................................................................................................ 24 
11.1.2 By Other Parties ........................................................................................ 24 

11.2 Force Majeure ....................................................................................................... 24 
11.3 Attorneys' Fees ...................................................................................................... 25 
11.4 Prior Agreements .................................................................................................. 25 
11.5 Amendments ......................................................................................................... 25 
11.6 Pronouns ............................................................................................................... 25 
11.7 Captions ................................................................................................................ 25 
11.8 Exhibits ................................................................................................................. 25 
11.9 Further Documents and Assurances ...................................................................... 26 
11.10 Time of Essence .................................................................................................... 26 
11.11 Governing Law ..................................................................................................... 26 
11.12 Construction of Agreement. .................................................................................. 26 
11.13 Time for Acceptance; Date of Agreement. ........................................................... 26 

IV 

C:\Documents and Settings\allsbrook\Local Settings\ Temporary Internet Files\OLKE\Catellus- Museum Transfer Agreement 22.doc 

S D\4400 I 7 .2 07-23-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



TRANSFER AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS 

This Transfer Agreement and Escrow Instructions (Agreement) is made as of the date 
described in Section 11.14 below, between CATELLUS OPERATING LIMITED 
PARTNERSHIP, a Delaware limited partnership, as successor by merger to Catellus 
Development Corporation, a Delaware corporation (Catellus), the CITY OF SAN DIEGO, a 
municipal corporation of the State of California (City), the REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF 
THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO, a public body corporate and politic of the State of California 
(Agency), and the MUSEUM OF CONTEMPORARY ART, SAN DIEGO, a California non­
profit public benefit corporation (Museum), and is intended both as an agreement concerning the 
transfer of the real property herein described (Property), and as escrow instructions to 
COMMONWEALTH LAND TITLE COMPANY (Escrow Agent). Catellus, the City, the 
Agency and the Museum agree as follows: 

I. 
FUNDAMENTAL PROVISIONS AND DEFINITIONS 

1.1 Development Agreement or DA. Catellus entered into an- Amended and Restated 
Development Agreement dated April 9, 1993 with the City, as amended by a First Amendment 
thereto dated March 5, 1996, a Second Amendment thereto dated December 4, 1997, and a Third 
Amendment thereto dated February 18, 2003, and a Fourth Amendment thereto to be approved 
by City concurrently with.the approval of this Agreement (collectively, the DA). 

1.2 Owner Participation Agreement or OPA. Catellus entered into an Amended and 
Restated Owner Participation Agreement dated April9, 1993 with the Agency, as amended by a 
First Implementation Agreement thereto dated March 4, 1996, a Second Implementation 
Agreement thereto dated December 4, 1997, a Third Implementation Agreement thereto dated 
Febmary 10, 2003, and a Fourth Implementation Agreement thereto to be approved by Agency 
concurrently with the approval of this Agreement (collectively, the OPA). 

1.3 Escrow Agent. Commonwealth Land Title Company. 

1.4 Escrow No. 10026120 

1.5 Title Companv. Commonwealth Land Title Company. 

1.6 Purchase Price. None. Catellus is conveying the Baggage Building Site to the 
Museum (as tl1e non-profit entity designated by City pursuant to Section 2.1.1) as required by the 
DA and OPA. Catellus also hereby agrees to convey the REA Site to the Museum concurrently 
with its conveyance of the Baggage Building Site, although not required to do so by the DA and 
OPA. The parties agree that the value of the REA Site shall be established by an independent 
appraisal to be obtained by Catellus. The parties aclmow1edge that such value shall not apply as 
a credit toward Catellus' commitment to a Fine Arts Program at the Santa Fe Depot Site, as set 
forth in Revised Attachment C-1 to the DA, and Revised Attachment No. 5 to the OPA, 
respectively (Obligations ofCatellus, Paragraph A.10). 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



1.7 Close of Escrow. The actual Closing Date may be earlier than the Close of Escrow, 
as set forth in Article 7 below. 

1.8 Address for Notices to Catellus. 

Catellus Operating Limited Partnership 
201 Mission Street 
2nd Floor 
San Francisco, California 94105 
Attn: Tim Carey 
Telephone: (415) 974-4500 
Telecopier: (415) 974-4613 

1.9 Address for Notices to Citv. 

City Administration Building 
202 C Street, M.S. 9B 
San Diego, California 92101-4155 
Attn: Will Griffith, Director of Real Estate Assets 
Telephone: (619) 236-2237 
Telecopier: (619) 236-7003 
Email: wgriffith@sandiego.gov 

1.10 Address for Notices to Agencv. 

Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Diego 
Executive Director 
202 C Street, 9'h Floor 
San Diego, California 92101 
Attn: Hank Cunningham 
Assistant Executive Director 
Telephone: (619) 236-6550 
Telecopier: (619) 533-6514 
Email: hcunningham@sandiego.gov 

1.11 Address for Notices to CCDC. 

SD\4400 17.2 

Centre City Development Corporation 
225 Broadway, Suite 1100 
San Diego, CA 92101-5074 
Attil: Pamela M. Hamilton, 
Senior Vice President 
Telephone: (619) 235-2200 
Telecopier: (619) 236-9148 
Email: hamilton@ccdc.com 

2 

06-15·2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



1.12 Address for Notices to Museum. 

Museum of Contemporary Art, San Diego 
700 Prospect Street 
La Jolla, California 92037-4291 
Attn: Charles Castle 
Telephone: (858) 454-3541 
Telecopier: (858) 454-6985 
Email: cecastle@mcasd.org 

1.13 Address for Notices to Escrow Agent. 

Commonwealth Land Title Company 
750 B Street, Suite 2350 
San Diego, California 92101 
Attn: Maureen Casey 
Telephone: (619) 230-6340 
Telecopier: (619) 233-4196 
Email: mcasey@landam.com 

1.14 Property. The real property (Property) is in the downtown area of San Diego, 
California, consisting of two fee parcels generally described as follows, and more particularly 
described on Exhibit A attached hereto: 

1.14.1 Baggage Building Site; Baggage Building. The southerly fee parcel is 
commonly referred to as the Baggage Building Site, on which the Baggage Building is situated. 
The Baggage Building is to be upgraded by Catellus prior to the Close of Escrow as required by 
the DA and OPA. 

1.14.2 REA Site; REA Building. The adjacent northerly fee parcel is commonly 
referred to as the REA Site, on which the REA Building was situated. The REA Site includes 
the southerly 50% ofB Street adjacent to the REA Site which has previously been vacated by the 
City. As part of this transaction, the REA Building has been demolished by Catellus, at Catellus' 
expense, in connection with its upgrading of the Baggage Building. 

1.15 BreezewaY. Easement. In addition to conveying fee title to the Property to the 
Museum, Catellus shall concurrently convey a non-exclusive easement to the City across the 
accessway located between the Baggage Building and the nearby building commonly referred to 
as the Depot Building, such easement being more particularly described on Exhibit B attached 
hereto (the Breezeway Easement). 

3 

SD\4400 17.2 06·15·2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



1.1 (i Definitions. The following words and phrases have the following meanings: 

(a) New Museum Building- means the new building to be constructed by 
Museum on the REA Site. 

(b) Amtrak - means National Railroad Passenger Corporation, a corporation 
organized and existing under the National Rail Passenger Service Act and 
the laws of the District of Columbia. 

(c) Development Plan- means the plans to develop the Property in substantial 
accordance with the Basic Concept/Schematic Drawings submitted to and 
approved by City, as same may have been or may be modified with the 
consent of City. 

(d) City Option- means the Option Agreement between the Museum and the 
City in the form of Exhibit C. 

(e) Amtrak Lease - means the contemplated Lease between Museum and 
Amtrak substantially in the form of Exhibit D. _The Amtrak Lease shall 
require the City's and the Agency's consent prior to its execution. With 
such consent City shall agree that City shall honor and be bound by the 
terms of the Lease if City becomes the owner of the New Museum 
Building during the Lease term. 

2. 
AGREEMENT TO TRANSFER AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

2.1 Agreement to Transfer. 

2.1.1 Bag2:age Building Site. Catellus hereby reaffirms its obligation set forth 
in the DA and OPA to transfer fee title to the Baggage Building Site to the Museum (as the non­
profit entity designated by the City), including the Baggage Building itself, pursuant to the Grant 
Deed attached as Exhibit E. See, Revised Attachment C-1 to the DA, and Revised Attachment 
No.5 to the OPA, respectively (Obligations ofCatellus, Paragraphs A.lO and A.ll). 

2.1.2 REA Site. Catellus hereby agrees also to transfer the REA Site to the 
Museum pursuant to this Agreement. 

2. t .3 Amtrak Lease. City, Agency and Museum agree to negotiate in good faith 
for Amtrak's lease of approximately 2,725 sq. ft. within the New Museum Building. If the 
Amtrak Lease is not executed by Museum and by Amtrak in a form acceptable to the City and 
the Agency by September 1, 2004, the Museum shall use the contemplated Amtrak space for 
Museum purposes in accordance with Section 10.2. City, Agency and Museum may, if they so 
jointly decide, extend such date. 

2.2 Catellus Acknowledgments. 

4 

SD\4400 17.2 06-15-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



2.2.1 Baggage Building. Catellus confirms its obligation under the DA and 
OPA to perform certain work as provided therein to upgrade the Baggage Building prior to 
transferring it to the Museum. Catellus also acknowledges that the Museum is the entity selected 
by the City to use the Baggage Building as a museum. 

2.2.2 REA Site. Catellus acknowledges that (a) the Museum will have the right 
and ability to use the REA Site for constructing the New Museum Building on a portion thereof, 
(b) upon completion of the New Museum Building, that Building will be used by the Museum in 
conjunction with the Baggage Building and for similar purposes as described herein, (c) in the 
New Museum Building, the Museum may lease pursuant to Section 2.1.3 an area of 
approximately 2, 725 square feet to Amtrak, and (d) the portion of the REA Site not devoted to 
the New Museum Building will be used for Museum or public access purposes as shown in 
Exhibit K Preliminary Plan for the B Street Pathway improvements, as agreed to between 
Museum and City. A Right of Entry Agreement shall be entered into between Museum and 
Agency concurrently with the Closing in the form of Exhibit M attached hereto. 

3. 
CLOSING DELIVERIES 

3.1 Catellus' Closing Deliveries. Prior to the Close of Escrow, Catellus shall deliver the 
following documents or funds to the Escrow Agent, in time for delivery to Museum or to the 
City, or for use by Escrow Agent, as applicable, at the Closing: 

3 .1.1 Grant Deed. A grant deed to the Property (Grant Deed), from Catellus as 
grantor, to the Museum as grantee, duly executed and acknowledged by Catellus so as to be 
suitable for recording, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E. 

3 .1.2 Maintenance Covenant. A Maintenance Covenant under California Civil 
Code Section 1468 (Maintenance Covenant), by and between Catellus and the Museum, duly 
executed and acknowledged by Catellus so as to be suitable for recording, substantially in the 
forn1 attached hereto as Exhibit F. 

3 .1.3 Breezeway Easement. A Breezeway Easement (Breezeway Easement), by 
and between Cateiius as grantor, and the City as grantee, duly executed and acknowledged by 
Catellus so as to be suitable for recording, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit G. 

3.1.4 Facade Easement. A Fa9ade Easement (Fa9ade Easement), protecting the 
fa9ade of Santa Fe Depot and the Baggage Building (but not the REA Building, which has been 
demolished) in accordance with the requirements of the DA and OPA, from Catellus as grantor, 
to tl1e City as grantee, duly executed and acknowledged by Catellus so as to be suitable for 
recording, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit H. 

3.1.5 Non-Foreign Affidavit. An affidavit executed by Catellus to the effect 
that Catellus is not a "foreign person" within the meaning of Internal Revenue Code Section 
1445 or successor statutes, and an equivalent affidavit with respect to the State of California. If 

5 

SD\4400 17.2 06-15-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Catellus does not provide such affidavits in forms reasonably satisfactory to the Escrow Agent at 
least three (3) business days prior to the Close of Escrow, Escrow Agent may at the Closing 
deduct from Catellus's proceeds and remit to Internal Revenue Service and to the State of 
California, such sums as may be required by applicable Federal and California law with respect 
to purchases from foreign Sellers. 

3.1.6 Closing Costs. Catellus's share of title, escrow and closing costs, as 
provided in Section 8, plus $99,440 to be paid to Museum (as provided in Subsection 4.1.6). 

3.2 Citv's Closing Deliveries. Prior to the Close of Escrow, the City shall deliver the 
following documents to the Escrow Agent, to which the Museum and Catellus hereby agree, in 
time for delivery to Seller or to the Museum or for use by Escrow Agent, as applicable, at the 
Closing: 

3 .2.1 Citv Option. Duplicate originals of an option in the form of Exhibit C 
with respect to the Property (City Option), from the Museum as Optionor to tite City as 
Optionee, duly executed by the Museum and City. The City Option shall provide that the City 
may, if it so elects, become the owner of the Property on or after July 31, 2091, or earlier in the 
event of a Default by Museum as defmed in the City Option. 

3.2.2 Breezeway Easement. A Breezeway Easement Grant Deed, as described 
in Section 3 .1.3. 

3.2.3 Facade Easement. A Fa9ade Easement, as described in Section 3.1.4. 

3.2.4 Closing Costs. City's title costs (if any) as provided in Section 8. 

3.3 Museum's Closing Deliveries. Prior to the Close of Escrow, Museum shall deliver 
the following documents or funds to the Escrow Agent, in time for delivery to Catellus or to the 
City, or for use by Escrow Agent, as applicable, at the Closing: 

~ .~. The Maintenance Covenant, as described in Section 3 .1.2 duly executed 
and acknowledged by the Museum so as to be suitable for recording, substantially in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit F. 

3 3.2 Two executed originals of the Amtrak Lease, if such Lease has been 
executed by the Museum and Amtrak prior to the Close of Escrow. 

~.c.J Museum's share of title, escrow and closing costs, as provided m 
Section 8. 

6 

SD\4400 17.2 06-15-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



4. 
CONDITIONS PRECEDENT 

4.1 Conditions Precedent. The parties' obligations to proceed with the Closing with 
respect to the Property are subject to the satisfaction or waiver of each of the following 
conditions precedent, on or before the Close of Escrow unless otherwise stated: 

4.1.! Citv Council and Agency Approval. On or before the Close of Escrow, 
the City Council of the ·city, and the Board of the Agency shall both have approved this 
Agreement, the Fourth Amendment to the DA as referred to in Section 1.1, and the Fourth 
Implementation Agreement to the OPA as referred to in Section 1.2. 

4.1.2 Condition of Title. The City and the Museum shall have given written 
approval of a current preliminary title report concerning the Property (PTR) issued by the Title 
Company, as well as all underlying documents (Underlying Documents) referred to in the PTR, 
and the Title Company shall be prepared to issue the title policies described in Section 7.3.3 
below. Catellus has caused the PTR and all Underlying Documents to be delivered to the City 
and the Museum before the execution of this Agreement. The City's and the Museum's approval 
or disapproval thereof shall be given within ten days after their receipt of. the PTR and 
Underlying Documents. The disapproval of any monetary encumbrance, which by the terms of 
this Agreement is not to remain against the Property after the Closing, shall not be considered a 
failure of this condition, for Catellus shall have the obligation, at its expense, to satisfy and 
remove any such disapproved monetary encumbrance at or before the Closing. 

4.1.3 Baggage Building Improvements. Catellus, at its own cost, shall have 
completed the Improvements to the Baggage Building required by the DA. 

4.1.4 Form of Facade Easement. Catellus, the City and the Museum shall have 
agreed on the form of the Fa9ade Easement. The parties acknowledge that this condition 
precedent has now been satisfied by the approval of the form of Exhibit H attached hereto. 

4.1.5 REA Building Demolition. Catellus, at its own cost, shall have completed 
the demolition of the REA Building. The parties acknowledge that this condition precedent has 
now been satisfied. 

4.1.6 Baggage Building Additional Improvements. In accordance with a mutual 
understanding reached by Catellus and Museum, Catellus has completed additional 
improvements to the floor of the Baggage Building such that the floor is in a condition 
reasonably acceptable to the Museum at the Closing; certain additional improvements to the 
floor of the Baggage Building will be completed by the Museum after the Closing. Catellus shall 
have caused $99,440 in immediately available funds to be deposited with the Escrow Agent to 
pay the costs associated with completing such additional improvements, which amount shall be 
released to tl1e Museum concurrently with the Close of Escrow; the breakdown of how the 
$99,440 was computed is shown on Exhibit 0 attached hereto. If the cost of completing such 
additional improvements exceeds $99,440, or if the Museum elects to perform any additional 

7 

SD\4400 17.2 06·15-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



improvements beyond what was contemplated by Exhibit 0, the cost thereof shall be borne 
solely by the Museum. Museum shall have the sole use of such $99,440 and may spend such 
funds in its sole discretion in any manner it deems appropriate for the construction of its 
improvements on the Property and Catellus shall have no claim to such funds following the 
Closing. 

4.2 Waivers, Approvals and Disapprovals. Any waiver of a condition precedent shall 
be effective only if it is (a) in writing, (b) signed by the appropriate waiving party or parties, and 
(c) delivered to Escrow Agent and the other parties on or before the Close of Escrow. If a.'ly 
party fails to approve or disapprove of any contingency within the applicable time specified for 
approval, it shall be presumed that the party has disapproved of the item, matter or document that 
is the subject of such contingency. A conditional approval shall constitute a disapproval. 

5. 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROVISIONS 

5.1 Exculpation of Escrow Agent. Escrow Agent shall have no concern with, or 
liability or responsibility for this Article 5. 

5.2 Environmental Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement: 

5 .2. I Hazardous Substance. The term "Hazardous Substance" shall mean any 
chemical or substance whose nature or quantity of existence, use, manufacture, disposal or 
effect, render it subject to Federal, state or local regulation, investigation, remediation or removal 
as potentially injurious to public health or environment. 

5.2.2 Hazardous Substance Condition. A "Hazardous Substance Condition" 
shall mean the existence of a Hazardous Substance on, under, or which originated on or under, 
and thereafter migrated off, the Property that requires remediation or removal under applicable 
Federal, state or local law. 

5.2.3 Contractual Response Requirements. "Contractual Response 
Requirements" which Catellus or Museum (or both) are obligated to undertake pursuant to this 
Agreement are to prepare (to the mutual satisfaction of Catellus and the Museum) and implement 
a Soils Management Plan as defined and discussed below in Section 5.3, and to assess, remediate 
or remove, as appropriate, Hazardous Substance Conditions encountered at the Property during 
the course of construction of the New Museum Building, to the extent required in order to meet 
the Environmental Clean-Up Standard set forth in Section 5.3.2 below. In agreeing to assess, 
remediate or remove Hazardous Substance Conditions at the Property, to the extent required in 
order to meet the Environmental Clean-Up Standard set forth in Section 5.3.2 below, the parties 
hereto are not (a) limiting or expanding any environmental responsibility which Catellus may 
have independent of this Agreement, or (b) releasing or relieving Catellus from any statutory, 
legal or contractual obligation which Catellus may have independent of this Agreement, related 
to the remediation or removal of Hazardous Substances or Hazardous Substance Conditions, or 

8 

SD\4400 17.2 06-15-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



to the presence of any Hazardous Substances or Hazardous Substance Condition( s) on or about 
the Property (collectively, "Non-Contractual Response Requirements"). 

5.2.4 Response Costs. The term "Response Costs" shall mean all 
disbursements, expenses and costs of any kind or nature, including without limitation 
consultants', experts' and attorneys' fees, site assessment costs, governmental agency oversight 
costs, fines, penalties, permitting fees, costs of sampling, excavation and disposal of groundwater 
and soils containing Hazardous Substances, installation and removal of groundwater wells, 
monitoring costs, and any other costs related to the remediation or removal of Hazardous 
Substance Conditions, reasonably necessary in order to fulfill any Contractual Response 
Requirements, which Catellus or the Museum have under this Agreement or under applicable 
Federal, state or local law, as a result of the construction of the additional improvements to the 
floor in the Baggage Building described in Exhibit 0 and the completion of construction of The 
New Museum Building, including the receipt of a "no further action" letter to conclude any 
regulatory enforcement action (in the event there is a regulatory enforcement action that is 
expected to result in the issuance of a "no further action letter). 

5.2.5 Qualified Environmental Professional. The term "Qualified 
Environmental Professional" shall mean an environmental consultant who: (i) ·shall be either a 
registered geologist, certified engineering geologist, or registered civil engineer; (ii) shall be 
licensed by the state of California; (iii) shall have experience in the assessment and remediation 
of petroleum hydrocarbons, volatile organic compounds including chlorinated solvents and 
BTEX, lead and other Title 22 metals, and PCBs; and (iv) shall have experience in the 
assessment and remediation of downtown San Diego properties (e.g., burn ash and burn ash­
related compounds). 

5 . .3 Catellus Report. Catellus has furnished to Museum and City the reports listed on 
Exhibit P attached hereto. Catellus does not warrant or represent that such reports are accurate. 

5.4 Environmental Clean Up. 

SA 1 Preparation of Soils Management Plan. The Museum shall cause to be 
prepared a Soils Management Plan ("SMP") consistent with the principles outlined by the parties 
in this Section 5. The SMP shall be prepared by a Qualified Environmental Professional, 
engaged by the Museum, at the Museum's cost and expense (but Catellus agrees to reimburse 
Museum for any fees or costs of the Qualified Environmental Professional which relate to a 
Hazardous Substance Condition for which Catellus is responsible pursuant to this Section 5). 
The SMP shall provide a protocol to be followed by the Museum during the construction of the 
additional improvements to the floor in the Baggage Building described in Exhibit 0, and by the 
Museum during the construction of the New Museum Building. The SMP shall include, but not 
be limited to, the performance of the following activities: (i) identification of potential 
constituents of concern, which shall include, but not be limited to, lead and other related Title 22 
metals, chlorinated solvents and other volatile organic compounds, petroleum hydrocarbons, 
polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs), and PCBs; (ii) provide a methodology for soil 
screening (i.e. XRF, odor, staining, PID/OVA meters) to. be conducted at the time of active 

9 

SD\4400 17.2 06·15·2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



excavation and any other related activities that may justify real-time monitoring; (iii) provide a 
response and potential soil sampling plan for identified constituents of concern, and for which 
sampling shall-occur during excavation and/or construction activities; (iv) identify mitigation or 
remedial options for any discovered Hazardous Substance Condition(s); (v) outline a protocol for 
the on-site soil management and profiling; (vi) provide parameters for on-site soil reuse; (vii) 
outline a protocol for off-site soil disposal and manifesting; (viii) preparation of a report detailing 
the activities undertaken as outlined in the SMP; (ix) documentation of the off-site disposal or 
reuse of soils containing Hazardous Substances; and (x) identify when reporting to any State or 
County Agency is required. 

Subject to the reimbursement obligations of Catellus set forth in Section 5.4.1 (first paragraph 
above) and in Section 5.4.3 below, the Museum shall, at its sole cost and expense, be responsible 
for the day-to-day implementation of the SMP, including, but not limited to hiring a Qualified 
Environmental Professional to perform each of the tasks identified in the SMP, and to complete 
any necessary and/or required mitigation and remediation of Hazardous Substance Conditions at 
the Property, pursuant to Section 5 of this Agreement. 

In the event that a Hazardous Substance Condition is detected at the Baggage Building Site or 
the REA Site which, in the opinion of the Qualified Environmental Pmfessional pursuant to the 
Soils Management Plan, requires notice to, or oversight by, any governmental regulatory agency, 
the Museum shall give notice to the appropriate governmental regulatory agency with 
jurisdiction promptly and in accordance with all applicable laws. Furthermore, the Museum will 
obtain such agency's oversight, if required, of any potential mitigation, potential remediation or 
continued excavation efforts at the Baggage Building Site and/or the REA Site. Further, in the 
event that a Hazardous Substance Condition is discovered which, in the opinion of the Qualified 
Environmental Professional, may have the potential to negatively impact the health and safety of 
construction workers and/or future occupants of the Property, a health risk assessment shall be 
performed by the Qualified Environmental Professional, as defined above, to ensure that no 
unacceptable health risk exists from any discovered Hazardous Substance. 

5.4.2 "No Further Action" Letter. If in the opinion of the Qualified 
Environmental Professional, circumstances indicate that it would be reasonable to expect the 
County of San Diego Department of Environmental Health or any other State or County agency 
administering environmental programs to respond to such a request, the Museum, using its 
reasonable best efforts and with the full cooperation of Catellus, shall diligently undertake all 
reasonable steps (including, if required, the submittal of a Voluntary Assistance Program 
application to the County of San Diego Department of Environmental Health, or to another 
equivalent State or County program) to obtain written confirmation in the form of a "no further 
action" letter (or confirmation of equivalent effect), stating in effect that the response actions 
taken by the Museum and/or Catellus, with agency oversight, to address Hazardous Substance 
Conditions encountered at the Baggage Building Site and/or REA Site (if applicable) are 
acceptable, using generally acceptable human health risk protocols, for allowing reuse of such 
Property as non-residential commercial/industrial property. The circumstances indicating that "it 
would be reasonable to expect [any such governmental agency] to respond to such a request" 
shall include an evaluation of whether there is any data known to, or that ought to be made 

10 

SD\440017.2 06-15-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



known to, any such agency, which would cause such an agency to commence any review or 
oversight, or require any action to be taken on an Hazardous Substance Condition. The 
"reasonable steps" referred to in the first sentence of this Section 5.4.2 shall include reasonable 
best efforts by the Museum to satisfy all conditions required under applicable law in order to 
obtain such agency concurrence or confirmation. 

5.4.3 Catellus's Response Requirements: Catellus shall, at its sole cost and 
expense, reimburse the Museum for any and all Response Costs incurred as a result of any 
necessary and/or required remediation of the Property, necessitated by the construction of the 
additional improvements to the floor in the Baggage Building described in Exhibit 0, and by the 
construction of the New Museum Building. 

Catellus' s Contractual Response Requirements shall be limited to the assessment, remediation 
and/or removal of Hazardous Substance Conditions, as required under applicable Federal, state 
or local law, encountered at the Property during the course of construction of the additional 
improvements to the floor in the Baggage Building, and during the construction of the New 
Museum Building, to the extent required to complete the new floor in the Baggage Building and 
the construction of the New Museum Building, or obtain a "No Further Action" letter to 
conclude any governmental regulatory action. 

5.4.4 Environmental Clean-Up Standard. With respect to the work which 
Catellus and/or the Museum are to perform in order to fulflll the Contractual Response 
Requirements, and without limiting any legal liability or responsibility which Catellus or 
Museum may have independent of this Agreement under applicable Federal, state or local law to 
fulfill any Non-Contractual Response Requirements: 

(a) All Aoolicable Legal Standards. Catellus's and/or t.~e Museum's 
environmental clean-up of the Baggage Building and REA Site shall meet all applicable 
standards in effect as of the date on which such environmental cleanup is performed for 
properties to be redeveloped or used for non-residential commercial/industrial purposes. 

ib.i More Stringent Clean-Up Standard Left to City and/or Museum. 
The City, the Agency and the Museum recognize that more stringent standards of environmental 
clean-up exist, or may hereafter exist, than the Environmental Clean-Up Standard applicable to 
the reuse of the Property as non-residential commercial/industrial property (for example, a more 
stringent standard exists for property to be used as residential property). The City, the Agency 
and the Museum nevertheless agree that, once the Environmental Clean-Up Standard has been 
met, if the City, the Agency, the Museum or their successors or assigns (including, without 
limitation, Amtrak under any lease) wish to use all or any portion of the Property for any other 
purposes or activities to which a more stringent clean-up standard applies, it shall be the Ci!';'s, 
the Agency's, the Museum's or their successors' or assigns' responsibility, and not Catellus's, to 
carry out any additional environmental clean-up required to achieve regulatory approval for such 
other purposes or activities. 

11 

SD\4400 17.2 06-15-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



(C) Construction Work and Costs. If more stringent standards of 
environmental clean-up have to be met for the protection of construction workers during the 
course of construction on the Property, the costs for meeting those more stringent standards will 
be recognized by the parties as a cost of construction, and not as Response Costs for which 
Catellus is responsible under the Contractual Response Requirements. 

5.4.5 Acceptance of Lead Based Paint Conditions. The Museum acknowledges 
that lead based paints have been discovered within the Baggage Building, and that said lead 

.based paints have previously been encapsulated upon the recommendation of Catellus's 
environmental consultants and with the concurrence of the Museum. The Museum is accepting 
the transfer of the Property with full knowledge of the encapsulated lead based paints, and 
releases Catellus from any future liability with respect to any assessment, remediation or removal 
of said lead based paints. The City and Agency acknowledge that they have been informed of 
the encapsulated lead based paint condition at the Baggage Building, and agree that while the 
City may consider the encapsulated lead based paint condition in deciding whether or not to 
exercise the City Option, Catellus shall have no future obligation to the City or the Agency to 
assess, remediate or remove any lead based paints from the Baggage Building. 

5 .4.6 Disclaimer of Obligations by the Citv of San. Diego. The-responsibility to 
prepare and implement the SMP rests entirely with Catellus and the Museum, and the City and 
Agency hereby disclaim any responsibility for the preparation, approval or implementation of the 
SMP, and neither the City nor the Agency shall participate in the development of the SMP, 
review or approve the contents of the SMP or the work performed thereto, or direct the 
implementation of the SMP. Catellus and the Museum agree to provide the City and Agency 
with copies of all SMPs, workplans, reports, studies, correspondence between Catellus and/or the 
Museum and any governmental regulatory agency, or any other documentation generated in the 
preparation of the SMP and the performance of the activities set forth in the SMP and this 
Section 5.4. 

5.-i-. 7 Non-Contractual Response Requirements Remain. Nothing in these 
Sections 5.2 or 5.4 is intended, or shall be construed, (a) to limit any Non-Contractual Response 
Requirements which Catellus may have independent of this Agreement, or (b) to release or 
relieve Catellus from any statutory, legal or contractual obligation which Catellus may have 
independent of this Agreement related to the remediation or removal of Hazardous Substances 
or Hazardous Substance Condition(s), or to the presence of any Hazardous Substances or 
Hazardous Substance Condition on or about the Property. 

6. 
REPRESENTATIONS. WARRANTIES. ETC. 

6.1 Transferee Inspection. By the Close of Escrow, the City, the Agency and the 
Museum shall ma!ce or have waived all inspections of the Property which they believe are 
necessary to protect their own interests in, and their contemplated uses of, the Property. 

12 

SD\4400 l7 .2 06-lS-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



6.2 No Brokers. Each party to this Agreement represents and warrants to each other 
party that it has had no dealings with any broker or finder in connection with the negotiation of 
this Agreement or the consummation of the transfer contemplated herein, and no broker or fmder 
is entitled to any commission or fee in connection with this transaction as the result of any 
dealings or acts of such party. Each party hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, protect and hold 
the other parties harmless from and against any claims, losses and liabilities, including attorneys' 
fees, expert witness fees and costs, which may arise by reason of any alleged acts or dealings of 
the indemnifying party inconsistent with the representation and warranty made herein. 

6.3 No Encumbrances. Museum may not encumber the property or any portion thereof 
to secure a promissory note or any other obligation of Museum. 

7. 
THE CLOSING 

7.1 Escrow. Upoh execution hereof by the parties, this Agreement shall constitute not 
only the agreement of transfer among the parties, but also instructions to Escrow Agent for the 
consummation of this Agreement through an escrow (Escrow) administered_by Escrow Agent. 

7.2 General Provisions. Escrow Agent is authorized and instructed to conduct the 
Escrow in accordance with this Agreement, applicable law, custom and practice of the 
community in which Escrow Agent is located, including any reporting requirements of the 
Internal Revenue Code and California Revenue and Taxation Code. The parties shall execute 
such additional general provisions and other instructions as may reasonably be requested by 
Escrow Agent in order to consummate this transaction, provided that the same are not 
inconsistent with this Agreement, the DA or the OP A 

7.3 Closing. Escrow Agent shall close the Escrow on the Close of Escrow by (a) filing 
for record the Grant Deed and such other documents as may be necessary to procure the Title 
Policies described below, and (b) delivering funds and documents as set forth in this Agreement, 
·wHEN Al'ID ONLY WHEN each of the following conditions has been satisfied: 

7.3.1 Documents and Funds. All documents and funds required by Article 3 
have been delivered to Escrow Agent. 

7.3.2 Conditions Precedent. Each of the conditions precedent set forth m 
Article 4 has been, or upon such closing will be, satisfied or waived. 

7.3.3 Title Policies. Escrow Agent has procured, or can procure, the following 
title insurance policies for the City and the Museum, respectively: 

(a) For the Museum, the Title Company's ALTA extended coverage 
owner's policy of title insurance (Owner's Policy), with liability in an amount of $5,000,000, 
insuring that fee title to the Property all vests in Museum; and; 

13 

SD\4400 17.2 06-15-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



(b) A separate policy for City in the same amount insuring City's 
rights under the City Option (Optionee's Policy, and together with the Owner's Policy, the Title 
Policies). 

7.4 Earlv Closing. If all of the conditions precedent set forth in Article 4 above become 
satisfied or waived at a date earlier than the July 20, 2004, then Escrow Agent shall close the 
Escrow at such earlier date. 

7.5 Late Closing. If Escrow Agent cannot close the Escrow on or before July 20, 2004, 
it will, nevertheless, close the Escrow when all conditions have been satisfied or waived, 
notwithstanding that one or more of such conditions has not been timely performed unless 
Escrow Agent receives a written notice to terminate the Escrow and this Agreement from a party 
who, at the time such notice is delivered, is not in default hereunder. The right to terminate the 
Escrow and this Agreement shall be optional, not mandatory. No delay in the giving of such 
notice shall affect the rights heretmder of the party giving the same. 

7.6 Termination Procedures. Escrow Agent shall have no liability or responsibility for 
determining whether or not a party giving a notice of termination is .or is not in default 
hereunder. Within two (2) working days after receipt of such notice from a party,.Escrow Agent 
shall deliver a copy of such notice to the other parties. Unless written objection to the 
termination of the Escrow is received by Escrow Agent within ten (10) days after Escrow Agent 
delivers such notice to the other parties, Escrow Agent shall forthwith terminate the Escrow and 
return all funds, documents and other items held by it to the party depositing same, except that 
Escrow Agent may retain such documents and other items usually retained by escrow agents in 
accordance with standard escrow termination procedures and practices, and may deduct from any 
cash or other funds held by it, a sum sufficient to pay its escrow termination charges in fulL If 
written objection to the termination of the Escrow is delivered to Escrow Agent within such ten 
(10) day period, Escrow Agent is authorized to hold all funds, documents and other items 
delivered to it in connection with the Escrow and may, in Escrow Agent's sole discretion, take no 
further action until otherwise directed, either by the parties' mutual written instructions or final 
order of a court of competent jurisdiction. 

7.7 Retention of Rights. Neither (a) the exercise of the right of termination, (b) delay in 
the exercise of such right; (c) the failure to object to a termination, nor (d) the return of funds, 
documents or other items, shall affect the right of any party to pursue legal remedies for any 
other party's breach of this Agreement (including, without limitation, damages for the payment 
of all or any portion of Escrow Agent's escrow termination charges). Nor shall the termination 
of the Escrow or this Agreement in any way constitute a termination or amendment of the DA or 
OPA or of any of the parties' rights or obligations thereunder. 

7.8 Possession. Possession of the Property shall be given to Museum at the Closing, free 
and clear of all leases, tenancies and other rights of occupancy, and also free and clear of all liens 
and encumbrances other than those expressly permitted herein. 

14 

SD\440017.2 06-15-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



8. 
PRORATIONS, FEES AND COSTS 

8.1 Prorations. Escrow Agent shall prorate real property taxes and assessments as of the 
close of Escrow, based upon the latest available tax bills. The Museum and the City are both 
exempt from being subject to real property taxes. 

8.2 Catellus' Charges. Catellus shall pay (a) the County Documentary Transfer Tax 
related to the Grant Deed, in the amount Escrow Agent determines to be required by law, (b) 
one-half of Escrow Agent's escrow fee or escrow termination charge, (c) usual transferor's 
charges related to the Grant Deed, and (d) 50% of any other costs, prorations, expenses and 
adjustments. Catellus is also responsible for the payment of 50% of the cost for the Title Policies 
(excluding any endorsements thereto). 

8.3 Museum's Charges. The Museum shall pay (a) any County Documentary Transfer 
Tax related to the Amtrak Lease, in the amount determined to be required by law, (b) one-half of 
Escrow Agent's escrow fee or escrow termination charge, (c) 50% of. the cost for the Title 
Policies, (d) the cost of any endorsements on the Owner's Policy requested by the Museum and 
(e) 50% of any other costs, prorations, expenses and adjustments ... 

8.4 Citv's Charges. The City shall pay the cost of any additional endorsements on the 
Optionee's Policy requested by the City. The parties acknowledge that the City does not 
currently expect to request any additional endorsements. 

8.5 Utilitv Charges. Escrow Agent shall have no concern with, or liability or 
responsibility for, this Section 8.5. Charges for utilities (including, without limitation, water, 
sewer, electricity, gas and telephone charges) shall be prorated within sixty (60) days after the 
Close of Escrow, based on the most recent bills available for such services. Catellus shall pay 
for all such services to the Property for all periods before the Close of Escrow. The Museum 
shall pay for all such services to the Property for all periods from and after the Close of Escrow. 

9. 
FURTHER REQUIREMENTS OF AMTRAK LEASE 

AND EFFECT OF NO AMTRAK LEASE 

9.1 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, Amtrak, City and Agency 
have not yet concluded negotiations of the Amtrak Lease. Any Amtrak Lease to be executed by 
Museum and Amtrak must be substantially in the form of Exhibit D or otherwise acceptable to 
Museum, Amtrak, City and Agency, and shall be consistent with the other provisions of this 
Agreement. If the Amtrak Lease is not executed by Museum and Amtrak, then the following 
shall be effective with respect to the terms of this Agreement: 

(i) The $150,000 payment required to be paid by Museum to Agency pursuant to 
paragraph 2 of Section !0.22 shall be reduced to $90,000; and 

15 

SD\440017.2 06-15-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



(ii) Museum (not Amtrak) shall be responsible for the maintenance of the 16' pathway 
described as an Amtrak obligation in the first paragraph of Section 10.22, except that the 16' 
pathway shall be used only for pedestrian purposes. 

10. 
MUSEUM OBLIGATIONS FOR BENEFIT OF CITY: 

10.1 No Catellus or Escrow Agent Responsibilitv. Neither Escrow Agent nor 
Catellus shall have any concern with, or responsibility or liability for, the matters set forth in this 
Section 10. 

10.2 Uses. Museum will continuously operate a contemporary art museum featuring 
exhibitions and public programs exploring contemporary art forms and media (consistent with 
the activities and events conducted at Museum's La Jolla or downtown facilities), and for such 
other purposes as may be approved in writing by the City and for no other purpose whatsoever. 
That portion of the New Museum Building to be constructed on the REA site which the City 
consents to be leased to Amtrak is exempted from this exclusive use provision during the term of 
Amtrak's lease. 

10.3 Related Council Actions. Neither City nor the Council of City is obligating itself 
to any other governmental agent, board, commission, or agency with regard to any other 
discretionary action relating to development or operation of the Property, except that City has 
given permission, subject to Museum's compliance with the provision of the next sentence, to 
Museum to constmct the New Museum Building on the REA site. Discretionary action includes 
but is not limited to issues which may be required for the development and operation of the 
premises in accordance with applicable laws or governmental regulations. 

10.4 Competent Management. Museum shall provide competent management of the 
Property. For the purposes of this paragraph, "competent management" shall mean demonstrated 
ability in the management and operation of a contemporary art museum and the operation, 
maintenance and repair of the Baggage Building and the New Museum Building, and related 
activities in a fiscally responsible manner. 

10.5 Operation of Propertv. A regular schedule of days and hours of operation shall 
be established by Museum to serve the public. The initial schedule is intended to provide for the 
Museum to be open to the public at least six days a week with evening hours at least four 
evenings per month, but this schedule is subject to modification by Museum, The Museum will 
feature an active and innovative program of contemporary art exhibitions, artists' residencies and 
commissioned projects, and educational activities for adults and children. Programming options 
will include changing installation of works from Museum's permanent collection or temporary 
exhibitions bon-owed from other museums, large community-wide celebrations, film showings or 
poetry readings, musical perfom1ances and free tours for school children. Museum will engage 
in active, multi-disciplinary interpretive programs that include partnerships with local arts and 
education organizations. Docents will be available year-round to offer special tours of 
exhibitions, including labels and ancillary texts in English and Spanish. Museum anticipates that 

16 

SD\4400 17.2 06·15·2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



there will be on-going, year-round series of special events, performances, educational programs, 
exhibition openings, and other well-publicized and well-attended activities to enliven the space 
and surrounding area, day and night, weekdays and weekends. Museum shall diligently and in a 
creditable manner furnish services to the public in conformity with all existing applicable rules 
and regulations of the City. These provisions do not apply to the premises leased to Amtrak. 

10.6 Rates and Charges. Admission fees charged by Museum shall be reasonable in 
the opinion of the City and comparable with those charged at similar facilities in San Diego 
County. The current anticipated adult admission fee will be $6. 

10.7 Political Activities. The Property shall be used exclusively for the purposes 
specified herein. The Property shall not be used for working or campaigning for the nomination 
or election of any individual to any public office, be it partisan or nonpartisan. Provided, 
however, that Museum shall not be precluded from providing a forum for open public debate by 
candidates such as occurs at a "candidate forum" and similar events. 

10.8 Public Use. Museum shall not discriminate with respect to the general public's 
access to the Property. Museum may develop reasonable restrictions for the facility use provided 
they are consistent with the rights of the general public and are designed to allow Museum to use 
the Property for the purposes specified herein. Museum agrees that all activities conducted on 
the Property will be consistent with the provisions ofthis Agreement. 

10.9 Indemnity. Museum agrees to defend, indemnify, protect, and hold the City, 
Agency, CCDC and their agents, officers, and employees harmless from and against any and all 
claims asserted or liability established for damages or injuries to any person or property, 
including injury to Museum's employees, invitees, guests, agents, or officers, which arise out of 
or are in any manner directly or indirectly connected with Museum's development or operation 
of the Property or the work and operations to be performed under this Agreement, and all 
expenses of investigating and defending against same; provided, however, that Museum's duty to 
indemnify and hold harmless shall not include any claims or liability arising from the established 
active negligence, sole negligence, or sole willful misconduct of the City, Agency, CCDC and 
their agents, officers, or employees. 

10.10 Insurance. Museum shall take out and maintain at all times the following 
insurance at its sole expense: 

(1) Public liability and property damage insurance in the amount of not less than 
Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000) Combined Single Limit Liability with an occurrence 
claims form. This policy shall cover all injury or damage, including death, suffered by 
any party or parties from acts or failures to act by City or Museum or by authorized 
representatives of City or Museum on or in connection with the use or operation of the 
Property. 

17 

SD\4400 17.2 06-15-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



(2) Fire. extended coverage, and vandalism insurance policy on all insurable property 
on the Property in an amount to cover 100 percent of the replacement cost Any proceeds 
from a loss shall be payable jointly to City and Museum. The proceeds shall be placed in 
a trust fund to be reinvested as needed in rebuilding or repairing the damaged property. 
If there are excess proceeds (which Museum believes will not be the case), City shall be 
entitled to them. 

Museum's responsibility to maintain said insurance also includes the following: 

(1) Additional Insureds. All insurance policies will name City, Agency and CCDC 
as additional insureds, protect City, Agency and CCDC against any legal costs in 
defending claims, and will not terminate without sixty (60) days' prior written notice to 
City. All insurance companies must be satisfactory to City and licensed to do business in 
California. All policies will be in effect when the Museum opens, except "course of 
construction fire insurance" shall be in force on commencement of all authorized 
construction on the Property, and full applicable fire insurance coverage shall be effective 
upon completion of each insurable improvement A current copy of the insurance policy 
will remain on file with City during the entire period of Museum's ownership. At least 
thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of each policy, Museum -shall furnish a 
certificate(s) showing that a new or extended policy has been obtained which meets these 
requirements. 

(2) Modification. City may require reasonable revisions of amounts and coverages at 
any time by giving Museum sixty (60) days' prior written notice. City's requirements 
shall be designed to assure protection from and against the kind and extent of risk 
existing on the Property. Museum also agrees to obtain any additional insurance required 
by City for new improvements, in order to meet the requirements of this Agreement 

(3) Accident Reports_ Museum shall report to City any accident or event causing 
more than Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) worth of property damage or any serious 
injury to persons on the Property_ This report shall contain the names and addresses of 
the parties involved, a statement of the circumstances, the date and hour, the names and 
addresses of any witnesses, and other pertinent information. 

(4) Failure to Comply. If Museum fails or refuses to take out and maintain the 
required insurance or fails to provide the proof of coverage, City has the right to obtain 
the insurance. Museum shall reimburse City for the premiums paid with interest at the 
maximum allowable legal rate then in effect in California. City shall give notice of the 
payment of premiums within thirty (30) days of payment stating the amount paid, names 
of the insurer(s), and rate of interest Said reimbursement and interest shall be paid by 
Museum on the first (1st) day of the month following the notice of payment by City. 

10,11 Waste, Damage, or Destruction. Museum agrees to give notice to City of any 
fire or other damage that inay occur on the Property within ten (10) days of such fire or damage_ 

18 

SD\4400 17.2 06-15-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Museum agrees not to commit or suffer to be committed any waste or injury or any public or 
private nuisance, to keep the Property clean and clear of refuse and obstructions, and to dispose 
of all garbage, trash, and rubbish in a manner satisfactory to City. If the Property shall be 
damaged by any cause which puts the Property into a condition which is not decent, safe, 
healthy, and sanitary, Museum agrees to make or cause to be made full repair of said damage and 
to restore the Property to the condition which existed prior to said damage; or, at City's option, 
Museum agrees to clear and remove from the Property all debris resulting from said damage and 
rebuild the Property in accordance with plans and specifications previously submitted to City and 
approved in writing in order to replace in kind and scope the operation which existed prior to 
such damage, using for either purpose the insurance proceeds as set forth above. 

Museum agrees that preliminary steps toward performing repairs, restoration, or replacement of 
the Property shall be commenced by Museum within thirty (30) days, and the required repairs, 
restoration, or replacement shall be completed within a reasonable time thereafter. 

10.12 Entrv and Inspection. City reserves and shall always have the right, but not the 
obligation, to enter Property for the purpose of viewing and ascertaining the condition of the 
same, or to inspect the operations conducted thereon. In the event that such entry or inspection 
by City discloses that Property is not in a decent, safe, healthy, and-sari.itary condition, City shall 
have the right, but not the obligation, after ten (10) days' written notice to Museum, to have any 
necessary maintenance work done at the expense of Museum, and Museum hereby agrees to pay 
promptly any and all costs incurred by City in having such necessary maintenance work done, in 
order to keep its Property in a decent, safe, healthy, and sanitary condition. Further, if at any 
time City determines that the Property is not in a decent, safe, healthy, and sanitary condition, 
City may at its sole option, without additional notice, require Museum (but not Amtrak, as the 
lessee) to file with City a faithful performance bond to assure prompt correction of any condition 
which is not decent, safe, healthy, and sanitary. Said bond shall be in an amount adequate in the 
opinion of City to correct the said unsatisfactory condition. Museum shall pay the cost of said 
bond. The rights reserved in this Section shall not create any obligations on City or increase 
obligations elsewhere in this Agreement imposed on City. 

10.13 Maintenance. Museum agrees to assume full responsibility and cost for the 
operation and maintenance of the Property. Museum shall make all repairs and replacements 
necessary to maintain and preserve the Property in a decent, safe, healthy, and sanitary condition 
satisfactory to City and in compliance with the Development Plan described in Section 10.21, 
Development Plans, and with all applicable laws. The obligations imposed on Museum pursuant 
to this subsection shall include the maintenance of the exterior of the fa~ade of the Baggage 
Building. 

iO.l4 Facade Protection. Museum shall be required to maintain, preserve and protect 
the exte1ior facade of the Baggage Building (so as to preserve its historic appearance). This 
obligation shall remain in effect for a maximum of two years after the City becomes the fee 
owner of the Baggage Building, pursuant to the City Option Agreement to be entered into 
concurrently with the Close of Escrow, subject to the City's using its best efforts to obtain a new 

19 

SD\4400 17.2 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



tenant or occupant of the Baggage Building. The exterior facade shall be kept in good condition 
and repair, as an obligation running with the land and appurtenant to the fee ownership of Parcel 
3. Nothing herein modifies or alters in any way the obligations of Catellus under Section A.6 of 
Revised Attachment C-1 to the DA, specifically including, without limitation, Catellus's 
agreement to guarantee the preservation and maintenance of the exterior facades of the Baggage 
Building. 

10.15 Improvements/Alterations. No improvements, structures, or installations shall 
be constructed on the Property, and the Property may not be altered by Museum without prior 
written approval of the City. Further, Museum agrees that major structural or architectural 
design alterations to any improvements, structures, or installations (other than art) may not be 
made on the Property without prior written approval by the City and that such approval shall not 
be unreasonably withheld. This provision shall not relieve Museum of any obligation under this 
Agreement to maintain the Property in a decent, safe, healthy, and sanitary condition, including 
structural repair and restoration of damaged or worn improvements. City shall not be obligated 
by this Agreement to make or assume any expense for any improvements or alterations. 

10.16 Utilities. Museum agrees to order, obtain, and pay for al-l utilities-and service and 
installation charges in connection with the development and operation of the Property. All 
utilities will be installed underground. 

10.17 Liens. Museum shall at all times save City free and harmless and indemnify City 
against all claims for labor or materials in connection with operations, improvements, alterations, 
or repairs on or to the Property and the costs of defending against such claims, including 
reasonable attorney's fees. 

If improvements, alterations, or repairs are made to the Property by Museum or by any party 
other than City, and a lien or notice of lien is filed, Museum shall within five (5) days of such 
filing either: 

a. take all actions necessary to record a valid release of!ien, or 

b. file with City a bond, cash, or other security acceptable to City sufficient to 
pay in full all claims of all persons seeking relief under the lien. 

10.18 ·Taxes. Museum agrees to pay, before delinquency, all taxes, assessments, and 
fees assessed or levied upon Museum or the Property, including the land, any buildings; 
structures, machines, equipment, appliances, or other improvements or property of any nature 
whatsoever erected, installed, or maintained by Museum or levied by reason of the business or 
other Museum activities related to the Property, including any licenses or permits. Museum 
recognizes and agrees that it may be subject to a possessory interest subject to property taxation, 
and that Museum may be subject to the payment of taxes levied on such interest, and that 

20 

SD\4400!7.2 06·!5-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Museum shall pay all such possessory interest taxes. Museum is acknowledged by City to be a 
50l(c)(3) organization, and thus exempt. 

10.19 Signs. Museum agrees not to erect or display any banners, pennants, flags, 
posters, signs, decorations, marquees, awnings, or similar devices or advertising without 
complying with City's requirements; this provision does not, however, apply to works of art. If 
any such unauthorized item is found on the Property, Museum agrees to remove the item at its 
expense within 24 hours notice thereof by City, or City may thereupon remove the item at 
Museum's cost. 

10.20 Unavoidable Delay. If the performance of any act required of City or Museum is 
directly prevented or delayed by reason of strikes, lockouts, labor disputes, unusual 
governmental delays, acts of God, fire, floods, epidemics, freight embargoes, or other causes 
beyond the reasonable control of the party required to perform an act, said party shall be excused 
from performing that act for the period equal to the period of the prevention or delay. In the 
event Museum or City claims the existence of such a delay, the party claiming the delay shall 
notify the other party in Writing of such fact within ten (10) days after the beginlling of any such 
claimed delay. 

10.21 Development Plans. Museum agrees to develop the Property in substantial 
accordance with the Basic Concept/Schematic Drawings submitted to and approved by City and 
as documented in, and subject to the conditions of Centre City Development Permit/Local 
Coastal Permit No. 41-0560. Such Basic Concept/Schematic Drawings have been revised and 
may be further revised by mutual agreement of City and Museum, as long as such revisions are 
consistent with Centre City Development Permit/Local Coastal Permit No. 41-0560. Museum 
shall diligently pursue after the Close of Escrow the obtaining of all permits, and shall 
commence construction of its improvements on the Property within 60 days after the permits are 
obtained (but in all events within 180 days of the Close of Escrow) and shall proceed diligently 
to complete all improvements in accordance with Centre City Development Permit/Local Coastal 
Permit No. 41-0560 within 30 months of the Close of Escrow. 

10.22 Public Access Improvements in B Street. The parties acknowledge that it is a 
goal of the Agency to install a public pathway and landscaping between Kettner Boulevard and 
the Transit Courtyard within the vacated B Street right of way. The parties acknowledge that 
each will cooperate with the Agency to achieve this objective (as will Amtrak, as required by the 
Amtral< Lease). The Preliminary Plan for the B Street Pathway improvements is attached hereto 
as Exhibit K. The Preliminary Plan illustrates a non-exclusive Public Pedestrian Easement 
granted to the City by the Museum over and across the northerly 8' of the Property and a non­
exclusive Public Pedestrian Easement requested by the City from TWELVE 0 TWO KETTNER 
LLC, owner of Assessor's Parcel No. 533-395-02 (the "Adjacent Owner"), for the southerly 8' of 
such Adjacent Owner's property. Further, the Preliminary Plan illustrates a non-exclusive 
Limited Vehicular Access Easement which may be granted by the Adjacent Owner to Amtral< for 
the southerly 8' of such Adjacent Owner's property; Museum shall permit Amtrak, if Amtral< is 
its Lessee, to use the northerly 8' of its Property for non-exclusive limited vehicular access as 

21 

SD\4400 17.2 06·t;.zo04 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025

sanchez
Highlight



provided in the Amtrak Lease, and such Lease shall require that Amtrak maintain the combined 
16' pathway (such maintenance to include sweeping, removal of trash, and cleaning [including 
the removal of oil stains and the like], repairing and reconstructing the pavers as necessary to 
keep the pathway in a safe, clean and attractive condition). Within the 16' of Public Pedestrian 
Easement area (if such 16' is secured in easement by the Agency) the Agency Will install a 16' 
paved pathway and the Preliminary Plan illustrates additional paving and landscaping to be 
installed by the Agency adjacent to the 16' pathway within the Property and within Assessor 
Parcel No. 533-395-02. 

Within ten days of the Agency's request, but in any event not sooner than the Close of Escrow, 
the Museum shall timely execute and deliver to the Agency the following documents (which 
shall be recorded by the Agency either at the conveyance of the Property from Catellus to the 
Museum or by separate instruments recorded subsequently), (1) the non-exclusive Public 
Pedestrian Easement which will be granted to the City substantially in the form attached hereto 
as Exhibit L affecting the northerly 8' of the Property, (2) a Right of Entry substantially in the 
form attached hereto as Exhibit M affecting the northerly 22' of the Property (but excluding the 
northerly 8' of the Property which is subject to the Easement) providing access to the Agency for 
the Agency's installation of the additional paving and landscaping implementing the B Street 
Pathway, and (3) a Covenant to Maintain Paving and Landscaping substantially in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit N affecting the northerly 22' of the Property (but excluding the 
northerly 8' which is subject to the Easement). Museum shall also pay to Agency $150,000 to 
assist Agency in the funding of the improvements as contemplated on Exhibit K; Agency shall 
fund all amounts required to construct and install such improvements. 

The Agency intends to enter into an agreement with the Adjacent Owner providing for (1) the 
demolition of the existing exterior stairway and its reconstruction (and site improvements related 
thereto) within the northerly half of vacated B Street, without which the Agency would be unable 
to construct the B Street Pathway improvements, as they are shown on Exhibit K, (2) the 
Adjacent Owner's agreement to permit such demolition/reconstruction work in accordance with 
plans and a schedule approved by the Agency, and (3) the Adjacent Owner's execution and 
delivery to the Agency of documents substantially similar to Exhibits L, M and N but pertaining 
to the southerly 22' of Adjacent Owner's property, and (4) the Adjacent Owner's execution and 
delivery to Amtrak of a non-exclusive Limited Vehicular Access Easement substantially similar 
to Exhibit Q, if Amtrak is -a Lessee of the Museum in the REA Site. 

It shall be the responsibility of the Agency to develop the fmal construction drawings for the 
improvements and landscaping implementing the B Street Pathway in consultation with the 
Museum and Adjacent Owner (and Amtrak, if Amtrak is a Lessee of the Museum in the REA 
Site). If Agency is unsuccessful in its efforts to obtain the cooperation of Adjacent Owner as 
contemplated by the provisions of this section 1 0.22, or if Agency decides to proceed in some 
other manner with respect to the B Street Pathway improvements, Agency has the right to cause 
Museum to provide it with documents in recordable form similar to Exhibits N, 0 and P, but 
pertaining to other locations within the northerly 22' of the Property. 

22 

SD\440017.2 06-15-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025

sanchez
Highlight



., 
10.23 Hazardous/Toxic Waste. Museum will not allow the installation of additional 

underground storage tanks or release of hazardous substances in, on, under, or from the Property. 
For the purposes of this provision, a release shall include but not be limited to any spilling, 
leaking, pumping, pouring, emitting, emptying, discharging, injecting, escaping, leeching, 
dumping, or otherwise disposing of hazardous substances. "Hazardous substances" shall mean 
those hazardous substances listed by the Environmental Protection Agency in regularly released 
reports and any other substances incorporated into the State's list of hazardous substances. A 
copy of the presently effective EPA and the State lists is on file in the Office of the City Clerk as 
Document 769704 and by this reference is incorporated herein. 

In the event of any release of a hazardous substance, Museum shall be responsible for all costs of 
remediation and removal of such substances in accordance with all applicable rules and 
regulations of governmental authorities. 

Museum agrees to assume the defense of, indemnify, and hold City and Agency harmless from 
any and all claims, costs, and expenses related to environmental liabilities resulting from 
Museum's construction activities and operations on the Property, including but not limited to 
costs of environmental assessments, costs of remediation and removal, any necessary response 
costs, damages for injury to natural resources or the public, and costs orany health assessment or 
health effect studies. 

If Museum knows or has reasonable cause to believe that any hazardous substance has been 
released on or beneath the Property, Museum shall give written notice to the City within ten (10) 
days of receipt of such knowledge or cause for belief. Provided, however, if Museum knows or 
has reasonable cause to believe that such substance is an imminent and substantial danger to 
public health and safety, Museum shall notify the City immediately upon receipt of this 
lmowledge or belief and shall take all actions necessary to alleviate such danger. Museum will 
notify the City immediately of any notice of violation received or initiation of environmental 
actions or private suits relative to the Property. In addition, Museum and Museum's lessee shall 
not utilize or sell any hazardous substance on the property without the prior written consent of 
City. 

10.24 Asbestos Disclosure. Catellus discloses to Museum that portions of the structural 
components of the Property may have contained asbestos, which Catellus has caused to be 
removed. Museum acknowledges having received notice from Catellus of the former presence 
of such asbestos in accordance with Health and Safety Code Section 25915. Museum shall, to 
the extent required, disclose the fom1er existence of asbestos on the Property, as required by 
Health and Safety Code Section 25915. Museum agrees to indemnify and hold City and Agency 
harmless from any loss or claim which may result from the existence of asbestos on the Property. 

10.25 Hazardous Materials Disclosure. Catellus discloses to Museum that portions of 
the structural components of the Property may have contained hazardous materials, which 
Catellus has removed or encapsulated. Museum acknowledges having received notice from 
Catellus of the former presence of such hazardous materials in accordance with Health and 

23 

SD\4400 17.2 06-15-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Safety Code Section 25915. Museum shall, to the extent required, disclose the former existence 
of hazardous materials on the Property, as required by Health and Safety Code Section 25915. 
Museum agrees to indemnifY and hold City and Agency harmless from any loss or claim which 
may result from the existence of hazardous materials on the Property. 

10.26 Compliance with Law. Museum shall at all times in the construction, 
maintenance, occupancy, and operation of the Property comply with all applicable laws, statutes, 
ordinances, and regulations of City, county, state, and federal governments at Museum's sole 
cost and expense. In addition, Museum shall comply with any and all notices issued by the City 
or his authorized representative under the authority of any such law, statute, ordinance, or 
regulation. 

10.27 Nondiscrimination. Museum agrees not to discriminate in any manner against 
any person or persons on account of race, color, religion, gender, sexual orientation, medical 
status, national origin, age, marital status, or physical disability in Museum's use of the Property, 
including but not limited to the providing of goods, services, facilities, privileges, advantages, 
and accommodations, and the obtaining and holding of employment. 

10.28 Relocation Pavments. Museum understands and.agrees that·it· shall not be 
entitled to any relocation payment whatsoever upon termination of this Agreement. 

:';.:s Survival. The provisions of Section 10 survive the Closing. 

11. 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

11.1 Assignment. 

11.1.1 By Catellus. This Agreement may not be assigned by Catellus without the 
prior written consent of all other parties hereto, except that Catellus may assign this Agreement, 
without any further consent, to a party to whom Catellus has assigned all or any relevant interest 
in the DA and OPA, in full compliance with the requirements for such an assignment under the 
DA and OP A (including, without limitation, any requirements therein for approval by the City 
and the Agency). 

11.1.2 By Other Parties. Except as provided in Section 11.1.1 above, this 
Agreement may not be assigned by any party hereto without the prior written consent of all other 
parties hereto. 

11.2 Force Majeure. The performance by any party under this Agreement shall not be 
deemed to be in default where delays are due to war, insurrection, strikes, lockouts, riots, floods, 
earthquakes, fires, casualties, acts of God, acts of the public enemy, epidemics, quarantine 
restrictions, freight embargos, lack of transportation, governmental restrictions or priority (other 
than that such restrictions or priority adopted by the City shall not excuse performance by the 
City, and such restrictions or priority adopted by the Agency shall not excuse performance by the 

24 

SD\4400 17.2 06-15-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Agency), litigation, unusually severe weather, inability to secure necessary labor, materials or 
tools, delays of any contractor, subcontractor or suppliers, acts of the other parties, acts or failure 
to act of the City or Agency or any other public or governmental agency or entity (other than that 
acts or failure to act by the City shall not excuse performance by the City, and acts or failure to 
act by the Agency shall not excuse performance by the Agency), or any other causes beyond the 
control or without the fault of the party claiming an extension of time to perform. 

11.3 Attornevs' Fees. In the event of any litigation or arbitration among the parties, or 
any of them, concerning this transaction, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the 
other parties its reasonable attorneys' fees, expert witness fees and costs. 

11.4 Prior Agreements. This Agreement supersedes any and all prior agreements 
between Catellus and the Museum regarding the Property. This Agreement does not, however, 
in any way supercede or amend the DA or OPA. 

U.S Amendments. No modification, waiver, amendment, discharge or change of this 
Agreement shall be valid unless the same is in writing and signed by all of the parties to this 
Agreement. 

.·. 
11.6 Pronouns. The use herein of (a) the neuter gender includes the masculine and the 

feminine, and (b) the singular number includes the plural, whenever the context so requires. 

11.7 Captions. Captions in this Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference 
only and do not define, describe or limit the scope or intent of this Agreement or any of the terms 
hereof 

11.8 Exhibits. All exhibits referred to herein and attached hereto are incorporated 
herein by reference. The Exhibits are as follows: 

Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Exhibit C 
Exhibit D 
Exhibit E 
Exhibit F 
Exhibit G 
ExhibitH 
Exhibit I 
Exhibit J 
ExhibitK 
Exhibit L 

ExhibitM 
Exhibit N 

SD\4400!7.2 

Legal Description of Baggage Building Site and REA Site 
Legal Description of Breezeway 
Form of City Option Agreement 
Amtrak Lease 
Forn1 of Grant Deed 
Form of Maintenance Covenant 
Form of Breezeway Easement Grant Deed 
Form ofFa9ade Easement 
Intentionally Deleted 
Intentionally Deleted 
Preliminary Plan for the Vacated B Street Pathway Improvements 
Form of Public Pedestrian Easement (affecting the northerly 8' of the 
Property) 
Form of Right of Entry (affecting the northerly 22' of the Property) 
Form of Covenant to Maintain Paving and Landscaping (affecting the 
southerly 14' of the northerly 22' of the Property) 

25 

06-!5-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Exhibit 0 
Exhibit P 
Exhibit Q 

Catellus letter dated December 3, 2003 
List of reports provided by Catellus 
Form of Limited Vehicular Access Easement (affecting the northerly 8' of 
the Property) 

11.9 Further Documents and Assurances. The parties shall each, diligently and in 
good faith, undertake all actions and procedures reasonably required to place the Escrow in 
condition for Closing as and when required by this Agreement. 

11.10 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 

11.11 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance 
with the laws ofthe State of California. 

11.12 Construction of Agreement. This Agreement and any document or instrument 
delivered pursuant to this Agreement shall be construed without regard Jo the identity of the 
perso11 who drafted it. The parties agree that any rule of construction that a document is to be 
construed against the drafting party shall not be applicable to this Agreement or any document or 
instrument delivered pursuant to this Agreement. 

11.13 Time for Acceptance; Date of Agreement. This Agreement, when executed by 
Catellus and the Museum and delivered to the City and Agency, must be authorized, executed 
and delivered by the City and Agency to Escrow Agent before the Outside Close of Escrow. The 
effective date of this Agreement shall be the date on which it is signed by the last to sign as 
between the City or Agency. 

[Signatures on next page] 

26 

SD\4400 17.2 06-15-2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties as of the 
date described in Section 11.14 above. 

Date: (p ·I cf"'O 'f , 2004 

Date: ;::J"~ lt ( , 2004 

APPROVED: 

CASEY GWINN 
City Attorney 

CATELLUS OPERATING LIMITED 
PARTNERSHIP, a Delaware limited partnership (as 
successor by merger to Catellus Development 
Corporation, a Delaware corporation) 

By: Catellus Development Corporation, a Delaware 
corporation (formerly known as Catellus 
SubCo, Inc., a Delaware corporation), its sole 
general partner 

By: Catellus Urban Development 
Corporation, a Delaware corporation, as 
its Agent 

By: 
-----===~ ".---, 

Urban Development 

CITY OF SAN DIEGO, a municipal corporation of the 
S Ia te of" <;::al-ifufi\Y<I 

By: CLt --""-·ti ~ 
Name:------------­
Title: 

$0 440017.2 

27 

06-15-:!004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Date: 7/Yki ,2oo4 

APPROVED: 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF 
SAN DIEGO, a public body corporate and politic of the 
State of California 

By: 

Name:~~~~~~~~~~~~--~ 
Title: 

CASEY GWINN (!__ 
. City Attarney- b~ -llN'-.J.R)___ 

By:~~ 
Name: ------------------------
Title: 

APPROVED: 

KANE, BALLMER & BERKMAN 
Agency Special Counsel 

By:~ 
Name: ______________________ __ 

Title: 

Date: ..)L.LJv,e_ ~~ , 2004 

SD\440017.2 

MUSEUM OF CONTEMPORARY ART, SAN 
DIEGO, a California non-profit public benefit 
corporation 

By:~~# 
Name: 
Title: ~.---7':;>--.--. -a-:---z~r-------

28 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Exhibit "A" 

All that certain real property situated in the County of San Diego, State of 
California, described as follows: 

Parcel A: Baggage Building Fee Parcel 

Being all of Parcel 3 of Parcel Map No. 19378, in the City of San Diego, County of 
San Diego, State of California, filed in the Office of the County Recorder of San 
Diego County, November 26, 2003 as File No. 2003-1418318 of Official Records, 
together with that portion of Kettner Boulevard (formerly Arctic Street) as said 
street is dedicated to Public use, which upon closing would revert, by operation of 
law, to the above described land. 

Parcel B: REA Site Fee Parcel 

Being all of Parcel 4 of Parcel Map No. 19378, in the City of San Diego, County of 
San Diego, State of California, filed in the Office of the County Recorder of San 
Diego County, November 26, 2003 as File No. 2003-1418318 of Official Records, 
together with that portion of Kettner Boulevard (formerly Arctic Street) as said 
street is dedicated to Public use, which upon closing would revert, by operation of 
law, to the above described land. 

Assessor's Parcel Number: [533-472-02] {Portion) 

S0\43492.2.1 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Exhibit ·B· 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF BREEZEWAY 

3EI:•IG A PORTION OF PARCEL 2 OF P.'\."".CE:.. M!\.P NO. 19378, IN THE CIT'! 0? s.o._c; 
DEGO, com,;TY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE OF C..liliiFORNIA, ?ILED IN T::!E OFFICE OF 
T!'!E CO\JNTY RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY, MORE PAP.TICULAP.LY DESC?.IB.SD .O;S 
FOLLOWS: 

BEG:INNING .?>..T THE NORTHE.~.ST CORNER OF SAID PARCEL 2; THENCE SOCTHERLY ALOKG 
THE E.l\STERLY LINE THEREOF, SOUTH 00°32'19" WEST, 16.35 FEET, 'fO A LH,'E 
B3ING THE EASTERLY PROJECTION OF THE NORTHERLY FACE OF ·THE EXIST DEPOT 
BUILDING; THENCE ALONG SAID LINE, NORTH 89°20' 16" WEST, 128.32 FSET TC THE 
INTERSEC'!'ION NITH THE EASTERLY LINE OF THAT CERTADJ EASEl1ENT AGRE!;;HEXT B'.:' 
AND EET'.-IEEN CA'ISLLt:S DEVELOPME,.'JT CORPORATION AND THE A·TC:iiSON, TOPEKA & 

S.'<l-:TA FE RAILI'/JI.Y C011PANY RECORDED JA._llluARY 9, 19S1 AS FILE NO. 19:11-0010998 
OF OFFICLl\.L RECORDS, SAID EASTERLY LIN:: BEING THE C0Ml10N LD!E BET't!EE~i 

PA..".CE:. 1 AND ?ARCEL 2 OF SAID PARCEL t-rAP NO. 19378; THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG 
SAID COMMON LINE, NORTH 00°32'19" EAST,l6.27 FEET TO T!-iE NORTHWEST COP..c'IER 
OF SAID PARCEL 2; THENCE ALONG TF.E NORTHERLY LINE THEREOF, SOT:TE 89°27' 50" 
EAST, 128.32 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

CONTAINS 0.043 ACRES, 2106 SQ.FT. MORE OR LESS. 

/2- 4--o3 
D.'ITE 

LS 4768 
EXPIRATION DATE 03/31/04 

PAGE 1 OF l 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



J 

____ " __ _ 

-------- -------- -------- --------------------- ··-- ---------------------------------------------------------------

:.c::-

N I') 

C<HIRIT 'B' 
SANTA FE DEPOT 

BR£U£WA Y EXHIBIT 

>­
<{ 

s: w 
N 

___ __j J ~L lli -~ ffi 
l __ m \ BOULEVARD- _______ ) ____________ _ 

KETrNER 
II J\HCL! 8 ·-. .... -- ·-- .. --- _________ -, 

tJ ~111-ITH 
N0T 11 PART ~ P/I.RC[L 

~1-----::----,-'t;i f---
1- ~-l:'/(Hl"!l ..., TWELt"IH 
l1 J 1 f' Af<Cf l ~ - A.RCEL ,,_, i--- ---
Ct . 
I-- ---!-.-..-- -------------- -
VI 

.. I I ,;.:~tci~/ """" II 
~ P/IPCf-_1_ 

NOT A PART REA 
PAR 

------ ----- I 
CI\LIFORNIP, STREET I[N Til 

PARCEL 
:t:" 

'" ,, ----- ----[ •"';! X TH 

f OtJI~ n i n ARCCL 
PAr<Ct:L --r-

T::;T" 
-~ 1\" 

T -......, .. ---

j:ld 
i ·,-, 

---- ----------- ------- --

-------., "--
~ 

,, .,·.; '. ,, ......, ~ 1'---., 
Sf:CONf) ' ::;J~I 

u__ _ It I ~::c: I 1 
f_l< •• TH •• c I I 

PA.RClL 
I 

r 1/(S 1 

P.".RCEL 

rM1Cfi PJ\CIFIC HIGHWJ\Y 

)­

<! 
;;< 
0 
<! 
0 
Ct 
I]) 

~ F'ROJEcrDESIGN CoNsULTANI:s 
Pl~ • ~AL • I!:HcliM'DJNO • !VRWYIOI'S 

- ' "!(It n S1<<'d.. Sa~~- !'>•~ Ooqo>,l".\ <>2t(H 
ll10J-~\1--M1f fAX l'tf'1-Jt~ nr~•1 

·I 1 i_! .!.-:1 i •• l f! 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



EXHIBITC 

CITY OPTION 

THIS CITY OPTION (Option) is made as of July _, 2004 ("Effective Date"), between 
Museum of Contemporary Art, San Diego (Museum) and City of San Diego (City), who agree as 
follows: 

!. Recitals. This Option is made with reference to and in contemplation of the 
following facts and circumstances: 

1.1 Pursuant to a Transfer Agreement and Escrow Instructions among Catellus 
Operating Limited Partnership, City, Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Diego and 
Museum executed concurrently herewith (Transfer Agreement), Museum will become the owner 
of certain real property described on Exhibit I (Property). 

1.2 City wants to reserve the right to acquire the Property (a) in the event 
Museum commits a Default (as defined in 1.3) under the Option; or (b) on or after July 31, 2091. 

1.3 A Default is the failure of Museum to perform any substantive covenant or 
condition required by the Transfer Agreement to be performed by Museum, without curing such 
failure within thirty days following the receipt of written notice from City specifying such failure 
to perform (or if such failure to perform is not curable within thirty days, if Museum shall not 
commence the necessary actions to cure such failure within said thirty day period and thereafter 
diligently pursue such cure to completion). Any failure of Museum to continuously operate for 
60 days shall constitute a default. 

2. Grant of Option. 

2.1 Museum hereby grants to City an exclusive option to acquire fee title to 
the Property upon the provisions and conditions set forth in this Option. 

3. Museum's Covenants. Museum hereby agrees that Museum will perform all of 
its obligations pursuant to the Transfer Agreement. 

4. Exercise of Option. City may exercise the Option if the Museum commits a 
Default, or on or after July 31, 2091 by delivering written notice of exercise of the Option 
("Notice of Exercise") to Museum as set forth in Paragraph 6 below. 

5. Escrow Instmctions. Concurrently with its delivery of the Notice of Exercise to 
Museum, City shall also deliver a copy to such escrow company with the offices in the City of 
San Diego as City may select. The escrow company shall prepare escrow instructions to be 
signed by City and Museum consistent with the following: 

a. The Property shall be conveyed by Museum to City subject only to matters 
of record as of the acquisition of the Prope1iy by Museum plus any other matters 
of record which may have been approved by City. 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



b. The Property shall be in the physical condition required by the Transfer 
Agreement. 

c. The escrow shall close within sixty days after the Notice of Escrow is 
delivered to Museum. 

d. All costs of escrow and title (City shall be entitled to obtain a policy of 
title insurance in the amount of$1 0 million) shall be paid by Museum. 

e. City shall be entitled to possession of the Property as of the close of 
escrow. 

f. The obligations of Museum pursuant to Section 10.14 of the Transfer 
Agreement shall remain in effect after the close of escrow. 

6. Notice. Any notice required or permitted hereunder shall be deemed to have been 
received either: (a) when delivered by hand and the party giving such notice has received a 
signed receipt thereof; or (b) one (1) day following the date deposited with Federal Express or 
other recognized overnig)lt courier; or (c) when sent by telecopy machine or. (d) on the day 
following the date deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, by registered or certified 
mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows (or addressed in such other manner as the 
party being notified shall have requested by written notice to the other party): 

If to the City: 

If to the Museum: 

With a copy to: 

City Administration Building 
202 C Street, M.S. 9B 
San Diego, California 92101-4155 
Attn: Will Griffith 
Telephone: (619) 236-2237 
Telecopier: (619) 236-7003 
Email: w:niffith@sandiego.gov 

Museum of Contemporary Art, San Diego 
700 Prospect Street 
La Jolla, California 92037-4291 
Attn: Charles Castle 
Telephone: (858) 454-3541 
Telecopier: (858) 454-6985 
Email: cecastle@mcasd.of!2: 

Robert Caplan, Esq. 
Seltzer Caplan McMahon Vitek 
750 B Street, Suite 2100 
San Diego, California 92101 
Telephone: (619) 685-3070 

2 

C:\Documents and Settiu.gs\haley\Local Settings\ Temporary Internet Files\OLK51\Exhibit C Option Agreement 07.doc 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



If to Escrow Agent: 

Facsimile: (619) 702-6688 
Email: rcaplan@scmv.com 

Commonwealth Land Title Company 
750 B Street, Suite 2350 
San Diego, California 92101 
Attn: Maureen Casey 
Telephone: (619) 230-6340 
Telecopier: (619) 233-4196 
Email: mcasey@landam.corn 

7. Governing Law and Venue. This Option shall be governed and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California. Sole and proper venue for any action related 
to this Option shall be in San Diego, California. 

8. Entire Agreement. This Option, together with the exhibits attached hereto, 
constitute the entire agreement between the parties concerning the Option and supercede all prior 
agreements or undertakings with respect thereto. 

9. Amendments. This Option may not be modified except by the written agreement 
of the parties. 

10. Severabilitv. In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in this 
Option are held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or 
unenforceability will not affect any other provisions hereof, and this Option shall be construed as 
if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had not been contained herein. 

ll. Attorneys' Fees. If an action is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of 
this Option, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its actual attorneys' fees and costs. 

12. Time of the Essence. Time is expressly made of the essence with respect to the 
performance hereof. 

13. Captions. Any paragraph headings or captions contained in this Option shall be 
for convenience of reference only and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of any 
provisions of this Option .. 

14. Further Acts. Each party shall perform any further acts and execute and deliver 
any additional documents which may be reasonably necessary in the opinion of either party to 
carry out the provisions of this Option. 

[Signatures on next page] 

3 

C:\Documents and Settings\haley\Local Settings\Temporary lntemet Files\OLK51\Exhibit C Option Agreement 07.doc 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



MUSEUM OF CONTEMPORARY ART, SAL'J DIEGO 

By: ----------------------------

By: ____________________________ _ 

CITY OF SAN DIEGO 

By: ----------------------------

4 

C:\Documents and Settings\ha!ey\Loca! Settings\Tempora!J' lntemet Fi!es\OLK51\Exhibit C Option Agreement 07.doc 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



EXHIBIT "I" 

LEGAL DESCRJPTION OF PROPERTY 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



0:\5\5950\53445\Trans\Exhibits to Museum Trans agrrnt\Exhibit C Option Option 05.doc 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



EXIDBIT D 

AMTRAK LEASE 

This Amtr<J.k Lease ("Lease") is executed as of ______ ,, 2004, between the 

Museum of Contemporary Art, San Diego, a California non-profit public benefit corporation, 

("Museum") and National Railroad Passenger Corporation, a corporation organized and existing 

under National Rail Passenger Service Act and the laws of District of Columbia ("Amtrak") who 

agree as follows: 

RECITALS 

A. On or about July 20, 2004, Museum is acqmnng pursuant to a Transfer 

Agreement and Escrow Instructions ("Transfer Agreement") by and between Cat ell us Operating 

Limited Partnership, a Delaware corporation (Catellus), the City of San Diego, a municipal 

corporation of the State of California (City), the Redevelopment Agency of the City of San 

Diego, a public body corporate and politic of the State of California (Agency), and Museum, the 

real property as set forth in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and made a part hereof, with the 

existing baggage building (Baggage Building) adjacent to the railway depot in San Diego, 

California and real estate, adjacent to and located north of the Baggage Building, and commonly 

known as the "REA Site" as also set forth on Exhibit A, to construct and thereafter operate, for 

uses ancillary to a museum, a building on the REA Site (New. Museum Building). The legal 

description of the REA Site is Parcel4 of Parcel Map No. 19378 filed in the Official Records of 

San Diego County, California on November 26,2003 as File No. 2003-1418318. A fonn of this 

Lease (but different from this executed Lease) is Exhibit D to the Transfer Agreement. 

B. The New Museum Building shall contain approximately 13,563 square feet. 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



C. Museum desires to lease and Amtrak desires to lease for railroad uses a portion of 

the New Museum Building, such portion to consist of approximately 2,755 square feet as set 

forth in Exhibit "B" attached hereto and made a part hereof (Premises). 

D. The New Museum Building shall be constructed in accordance with plans and 

specifications to be prepared for Museum ("Plans") and within the time period designated by 

Museum ("Construction Schedule"). Such Plans and Construction Schedule are set forth on 

Exhibit "C" attached hereto and made a part hereof. Museum shall be required to provide at its 

own separate expense within the Premises only such improvements and finish items as are so 

designated in the Plans, which will include separate utility services for the Premises. 

I. LEASE OF PREMISES 

Museum hereby leases, as of the date of substantial completion of the New Museum 

Building, to Amtrak, and Amtrak leases from Museum, upon the provisions and conditions set 

forth herein, the Premises which consist of the space shown on Exhibit B. In addition, Amtrak 

shall have a non-exclusive right with Museum to access to Museum's loading area in the New 

Museum Building as follows: Amtrak's use of the Museum loading area is anticipated to be 

primarily for regular garbage removal service. Parking, storage, engine idling, and garbage 

storage by Amtrak in the loading area, arcade, landscaped areas, and the Public Pedestrian 

Walkway (as referred to herein) are prohibited. Amtrak's access to the Museum loading area for 

other pLLrposes will be reasonably accommodated by the Museum by prior arrangement with the 

Museum. The Museum shall not have access to the exclusive Amtrak loading area located on 

the west side ofthe building. 

2 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



2. TERM 

The term of this Lease ("Term") shall commence when Museum notifies Amtrak that the 

Premises are available for occupancy ("Effective Date"), and expire on July 31, 2091 

("Expiration Date"). Museum shall provide to Amtrak prior to the Effective Date a certificate of 

occupancy (or other appropriate pem1ission for Amtrak to occupy the Premises) plus a 

certification that the Premises have been substantially completed pmsuant to the Plans. 

Notwithstanding the Tenu, Amtrak may at any time, by the giving of written notice to Museum, 

elect to tetminate the Lease ninety (90) days after the giving of such notice ("Early 

Termination"). In the event of an Early Termination, Amtrak shall not be entitled to the retlll'n of 

any amounts paid to Museum. 

3. RENT AND OTHER FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS OF AMTRAK 

A. Amtrak shall pay $850,000 to Museum, as rental for the entire Term as follows: 

[AMTRAK AND MUSEUM TO AGREE ON PAYMENT SCHEDULE, AND THE 

AMOUNT MAY HAVE TO BE INCREASED BECAUSE OF "BUILD OUT" REQUESTS 

AND AMTR4K'S REQUESTED GARBAGE AREA]. 

B. If Amtrak fails to make any payment of rent to Museum according to the schedule 

described in 3 .A. above, then Amtrak shall be in default of this Lease, this Lease shall terminate 

and Amtrak shall thereafter have no rights to use or occupy the Premises. 

4. USE 

The Premises shall be used for any lawful purpose reasonably related to the operation of 

a railroad and Amtrak's bttsiness operations including but not limited to storage, maintenance, 

and related railroad purposes, and for no other use without the prior wtitten consent of Museum. 

3 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Amtrak shall not do or pem1it anything to be done which will invalidate or increase the cost of 

any fire, extended coverage or other insurance policy covering the New Museum Building or 

Museum's property located therein. Amtrak shall not do or pem1it anything to be done in or 

about the Premises which in any way unreasonably interferes with the use by the Museum ofthe 

remainder of the New Museum Building as a museum and related uses (which includes, without 

limitation, the generation of a level of noise, odors, or vibrations incompatible with the operation 

of a museum) or which in any way will violate any of the obligations imposed on Museum under 

the Transfer Agreement. The 22' area immediately north of the New Museum Building owned by 

Museum is intended to be improved by the City with the southerly 14' thereof to be a landscaped 

and paved area (generally as shown in Exhibit K. to the Transfer Agreement), and with the 

northerly 8' thereof(in conjunction with the southerly 8' of the adjacent owner's property, if such 

atTangements can be made) to be a Public Pedestrian Pathway (such reference to include all 16' 

as indicated). The Public Pedesttian Pathway can be utilized by Amtrak for limited vehicular 

ingress and egress consistent with the following: (1) no vehicle (other than an emergency 

vehicle such as a fire truck) using such vehicular ingress and egress shall be larger than nine feet 

wide and twenty-two feet long; (2) the Public Pedestrian Pathway shall be maintained by Amtrak 

(such maintenance to include sweeping, removal of trash, an cleaning [including the removal of 

oil stains and the like], repairing and reconstructing the pavers a.s necessary to keep the pathway 

in a safe, clean and attractive condition); and (3) no vehicle may be parked, and nothing can be 

stored or maintained (including without limitation trash containers) on any portion of the Public 

Pedestrian Pathway (or any portion of the landscaped area south of the Public Pedestrian 

Pathway, or the arcade to the east of the Premises (which is an area owned by Museum which it 

intends to use primarily for sculpture, art exhibitions and other Museum purposes). Amtrak 

4 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



agrees, as a condition to the effectiveness of this Lease, that it will cooperate with Museum and 

Agency in providing easements and other documents that may be required to accommodate the 

an·angements ultimately made by City with respect to the Public Pedestrian Pathway (and related 

landscaped areas), which ammgements Amtrak acknowledges may differ from those 

contemplated by the foregoing provisions. 

5. UTILITIES, SERVICES, MAINTENANCE AND CONSTRUCTION 

A. Amtrak shall pay for all utilities and services for the Premises; Museum will 

an·ange for same to be separately metered. Museum shall have no obligations with respect 

thereto, except to provide the services to the Premises as required by the Plans. 

B. With respect to the New Museum Building Amtrak shall only be required to 

maintain the interior of the Premises. Museum shall maintain the remainder of the New Museum 

Building including without limitation the roof, windows, structural elements, exterior walls, 

plumbing, drainage, and sewage systems, and the loading area. 

6. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

This Lease is made upon the express condition that Museum shall be free from all 

liability and claims for damages, except those damages solely caused by the gross negligence of 

Museum, by reason of any injury to any person(s) or property of any kind, from any cause(s) in 

any way connected with the Premises or their use or occupancy thereof during the Tetm of this 

sublease or any extensions. Museum shall not be liable for the conduct of any other visitor to the 

Premises or the New Museum Building. Museum shall not be liable under any circumstances for 

consequential damages or damages or injury to Amtrak's business or potential business. Amtrak 

5 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



shall not be liable for damages or injuries to portions (including the loading area) of the New 

Museum Building, other than the Premises, except those caused by Amtrak's negligence. 

7. fNDEMNITY 

A. With the exception that this Lease shall in no event be construed to reqmre 

indemnification by Amtrak to a greater extent than pem1itted by the laws and the public policy of 

the State of California or any applicable Federal law, and without in any marmer limiting 

Museum's rights and remedies in the event of a breach of this Lease by Amtrak, Amtrak agrees 

to indemnify, defend, and hold hannless Museum, City and Agency, and their respective 

officers, agents, employees, affiliated parent and subsidiary compames, lenders, members, 

managers, successors and ass1gns (individually, "Indemnified Party" and collectively the 

"Indemnified Parties") from and against any and all claims, causes of action, liabilities, losses, 

costs, damages and/or expenses in law or equity (including, without limitation, attorneys' fees 

and expenses) of every kind and nature whatsoever (collectively, "Claims") arising out of or in 

connection with this Lease, the Premises, the New Museum Bui !ding, the Public Pedestrian 

Pathway, or the arcade, provided that the Claim (i) is based upon or relating to personal or bodily 

injury to or death of any person or persons, or damage to or loss of property of any kind 

whatsoever, including, without limitation, loss of use thereof, or the violation of any Califomia 

law or regulation or any Federal law, and (ii) is caused in whole ·or in part by any act or omission 

to act or any willful misconduct by Amtrak, anyone directly or indirectly employed by Amtrak or 

anyoae for whose acts Amtrak may be liable, regardless of whether such injury, death or damage 

is caused or contributed to by any act or omission to act by any Indemnified Party, anyone 

directly or indirectly employed by any Indemnit!ed Party, or anyone for whose acts any 

Indemnified Party may be liable. Amtrak's obligation to indemnify and hold the Indemnified 

6 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Parties harmless shall apply with full force and effect regardless of any active and/or passive 

negligent act or omission by any Indemnified Party or its agents or employees and regardless of 

any concun·ent negligence, whether active or passive, primary or secondary, by any Indemnified 

Pat1y, by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any Indemnified Party, or by anyone for 

whose acts any Indemnified Party may be liable. However, Amtrak shall have no obligation to 

indemnify any Indemnified Pat1y against liability for death, injury or damage or other loss, 

damage or expense arising solely from the negligence or willful misconduct of such Indemnified 

Party. 

B. Museum shall indemnify, defend, and hold Amtrak harmless from any and all 

expenses, demands, actions, causes of action, claims, liability, loss, cost, or obligations, 

including actual attorneys' fees, relating to use of the New Museum Building (other than the 

Premises) by Museum and its employees, agents, and invitees, or anything done or allowed to be 

done by Museum and its employees, agents, and invitees in the New Museum Building (other 

than the Premises). 

8. IMPROVEMENTS AND ALTERATIONS 

Museum has made no promise to alter or improve the Premises and has made no 

representations concerning the condition thereof, except that Museum will require its general 

contractor to construct the New Museum Building in substantial accordance with the Plans and 

the Construction Schedule. Amtrak shall maintain the Premises in good condition and repair 

(nom1al wear and tear excepted) and shall not make any penetrations through the walls of the 

Premises. Amtrak will not cause or permit the Premises (including, without limitation, the 

exterior of the New Museum Building) to be damaged or defaced in any manner whatsoever and 

Amtrak shall immediately repair any damage it causes to the New Museum Bttilding, including, 

7 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



without limitation, rebuilding the New Museum Building to its condition before damage caused 

by Amtrak, its employees, officers, directors, patrons, contractors or agents. Amtrak shall not 

make any material alterations or additions to the Premises without Museum's prior written 

consent, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Amtt'ak will return the 

Premises at the end of the Term in the same condition and repair as when Amtrak took 

possession, except for normal wear and tear. 

9. DESTRUCTION OF PREMISES, EMINENT DOMAIN 

A. [n the event of destruction or substantial damage to the Premises dming the Tenn 

which renders the Premises unusable to Amtrak, Museum shall have the option of: 

(i) Within one hundred eighty days after such damage or destruction, 

replacing or rebuilding the New Museum Building, including the Premises, and in such 

matUler and according to such plans and specifications which would restore the New 

Museum Building, including the Premises, to substantially the same condition as 

immediately before its destruction or substantial damage. 

(ii) Declining to replace or rebuild, in which event Amtrak shall have the 

option of terminating this Lease by written notice. l f Amtrak elects to terminate this 

Lease pursuant to this subsection 1 O.a. (ii) during the first fifteen (15) years of the Term 

and Museum receives casualty insurance proceeds related to the destruction of the New 

Museum Building, then Museum shall pay to Amtrak, in full compensation for all 

amounts paid by Amtrak hereunder, a portion of the insurance proceeds actually received 

by Museum related to the reconstruction of the New Museum Building (and not related to 

the personal property, including art displayed or stored in the New Museum Building) 

8 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



equal to the percentage of the rental paid by Amtrak hereunder as related to the cost of 

the construction of the New Museum Building (e.g. if the cost of the New Museum 

Building is· $17,000,000 and Amtrak paid $850,000 in rentals, then Amtrak would be 

entitled to received 5% of the insurance proceeds actually received by the Museum 

directly related to the New Museum Building structure, not to exceed $850,000). 

(iii) Museum shall notify Amtrak within thirty days after such damages or 

destruction of Museum's decision to rebuild the New Museum Building including the 

Premises or declining to rebuild. During the 180-day repair or replacement period 

[dentified in Subsection (a) above, Amtrak shall have no obligation to: (l) pay any costs 

or expenses associated with the Premises required under this Lease; or (2) provide any 

services to the Premises required under this Lease. 

B. In the event that all or part of the Premises shall be taken under the power of 

eminent domain or sold under threat of such taking, this Lease shall terminate. The entire award 

of proceeds from such taking or sale of land and/or improvements, including severance damages, 

except for that portion related to the Premises for which Amtrak has paid, shall belong to 

Museum; Amtrak shall also be entitled to the portion of the award specifically allotted to its 

personal. property which may be taken, and any relocation allowance actually paid by the 

condemn[ng author[ty. 

10. INSURANCE 

A. Unless Amtrak makes the elect[on permitted by b., Amtrak shall maintain at all 

times during the Ten11 of this Lease a comprehensive commercial liability insurance policy 

covering the use of the Prem[ses on an occurrence basis with a minimum coverage of $3,000,000 

9 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



(to be increased every five years consistent with increases in the national consumers price index) 

and a property insurance policy for the full replacement value of the Premises. The coverage 

shall be proportioi1ate increases at least every five years to take into account cost of living 

increases occurring within such five year period. Prior to occupying the Premises, Amtral< shall 

furnish Museum with a Certificate ofinsurance evidencing such coverage and showing Museum 

as additional insureds. 

B. Amtrak may elect to self-insure its obligations as long as Amtrak has in place, 

nationwide, a comprehensive and properly funded self-insurance program. If Amtrak mal<es 

such election, it shall provide Museum the principal aspects of such self-insurance program upon 

Museum's written request. 

11. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING 

Amtrak may not transfer or assign this Lease, or sublet the Premises or any pati thereof, 

without Museum's written approval. These prohibitions shall not apply to a transfer or 

assignment by Amtrak to a successor entity resulting from Congressional or judicial action. The 

rights and obligations of this Lease shall benefit and burden all successors and assigns of this 

Lease. 

12. DEFAULTS 

Neither party shall be deemed to be in default under this Lease unless and until it has 

failed to perform any obligation within thirty days after receipt of written notice from the other 

specifying the manner in which it has falled to perform such obligation; provided, however, that 

if the nature of such obligation is such that more than thirty days are required for its 

perfonnance, then the party receiving such written notice shall not be deemed to be in default if 

10 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



it shall commence performance within such thirty day period and thereafter diligently prosecute 

the same to completion. 

!3. MISCELLANEOUS 

A. Amtrak shall pem1it Museum and its agents at all reasonable times to enter the 

Premises as may be necessary or desirable for the operation or improvement of the Premises or 

in order to comply with the laws, orders or requirements of governmental or other authorities. 

B. Amtrak shall not affix, paint, erect or inscribe any sign, projection, awning, signal 

or advertisement of any kind to any part of the Premises, or the New Museum Building, 

including, without limitation, the inside or outside of windows or doors, without the written 

consent of Museum. 

C. Museum acknowledges it is aware that pursuant to 494.S.C. § 2430, Amtrak is 

exempt from all State and local taxes, surcharge or fees. 

D. The parties shall promptly take such actions and sign all documents reasonably 

requested to give effect to the provisions of this Lease. 

E. As indicated in the Recitals, Museum is acquiring the Baggage Building and the 

REA Site pursuant to the Transfer Agreement. Amtrak acknowledges receipt of a copy of the 

Transfer Agreement. 

F. This Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 

State of California. Proper venue for any action shall be in the federal courts of San Diego, 

California. 

1 I 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



G. Time is of the essence with respect to the performance of every provision of this 

Lease. 

H. If any condition or provision of this Lease shall be held invalid or unenforceable 

to any extent under any applicable law or by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder 

of this Lease shall not be affected thereby, and each condition and provision of this Lease shall 

be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

I. This Lease, along with any Exhibits affixed hereto, constitutes the entire and 

exclusive agreement between Museum and Amtrak relative to the Premises. 

J. Any notice required or permitted to be gtven hereunder shall be in writing and 

may be served personally or by United States mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

Museum of Contemporary Art, San Diego 
Attention: Dr. Hugh M. Davies 
700 Prospect Street 
La Jolla, California 92037 

AMTRAK 
National Railroad Passenger Corporation 
30'11 Street Station 
Fourth Floor, South Tower 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania I 9104 
Attention: Vice President Real Estate Development 

AMTRAK 
National Rail Passenger Corpot·ation 
530 Water Street 
5'h Floor 
Oakland, Califomia 94607 
Attention: Project Director Real Estate Development 

ot·, at such appropriate address designated in writing by the respective party. 

12 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



K. Any party entitled or required to recetve notice Lmder this Lease may by like 

notice designate a different address to which notices shall be sent. 

L. Amtrak shall not record this Lease or any short form memorandum referring to 

this Lease. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed their signatures the day and year first 
above written. 

MUSEUM: 

MUSEUM OF CONTEMPORARY ART, SAN DIEGO, 
a California non-profit public benefit 
corporation 

By:c--__________ _ 
Its: _____________ _ 

AMTRii..K: 

NA TlONAL RAILROAD PASSENGER CORPOR..A. TION, 
a corporation organized and existing under National Rail 
Passenger Service Act and the laws of District of Columbia 

By: ---------------

0:\5\5950\53445\Trans\Lease (Amtrak) l l.doc 

l3 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



EXHIBITE 
RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 

WHEN RECORDED MAIL THIS 
GRANT DEED AND ALL TAX 

STATEMENTS TO: 

Museum of Contemporary Art, 
San Diego 
700 Prospect Street 
La Jolla, California 92037-4291 
Attn: Charles Castle 

APN: --------- SPACE ABOVE THIS UNE FOR RECORDER'S USE 

GRANT DEED 

The undersigned grantor(s) declare(s): 
Documentary transfer tax is $_-;;-----
( ) computed on full value of property conveyed (open space lots), or 
( ) computed on full value less value of liens and encumbrances remaining at time of sale. 

l. Grants from Grantor to Museum. 

l.l Grant of Propertv. For valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, by this Grant Deed (the "Grant Deed"): 

hereby grants to: 

CATELLUS OPERATING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, 
a Delaware limited partnership, as successor by merger to Catellus 
Development Corporation, a Delaware corporation ("Grantor"), 

MUSEUM OF CONTEMPORARY ART, SAN DIEGO, a California non­
profit public benefit corporation ("Museum") 

all of Grantor's right, title and interest (subject, however, to the terms, conditions and other 
provisions set fo1ih below in this Grant Deed) in and to that certain real property (the "Property") 
located in the City of San Diego, County of San Diego, State of California, more particularly 
described in Exhibit I attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. As noted in 
Exhibit I, the Property consists of the "Baggage Building Site" and the "REA Site." 

1 

SD\331124.12 06-15-2004 14:16 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



1.2 Grant of Eaves Encroachment. As an appurtenance to the Baggage 
Building Site conveyed by the grant set forth in Section 1.1 above, Grantor hereby also grants to 
the Museum, a right of encroachment for the Eaves of the Baggage Building (as those terms are 
hereinafter defined) which overhang the westerly boundary of the Property above Grantor's Land 
(as hereinafter defmed), more particularly set forth as follows (the "Eaves Encroachment"). 

1.2.·1 Grantor is the owner of certain real property also located in the 
City of San Diego, County of San Diego, State of California, lying westerly of the Property, 
commonly lmown as the "Transit Courtyard" (the "Grantor's Land"). 

1.2.2 There is an existing historic building on the Baggage Building Site, 
commonly known as the "Baggage Building." The easterly portion of the Baggage Building 
consists of an enclosed, roofed building space, and the westerly portion of the Baggage Building 
consists of an open air, roofed pedestrian arcade (the "Colonnade"). 

1.2.3 The westerly boundary of the Property is a straight line along the 
westerly base of the colunms supporting the roof of the Colonnade. The westerly edge of the 
roof of the Colonnade overhangs those colunms, encroaching over a portion of Grantor's Land. 
That portion of the roof of the Colonnade which encroaches over a portion of Grantor's Land 
will hereinafter be referred to as the "Eaves" of the Baggage Building. 

1.2.4 Grantor hereby grants to the Museum a right of encroachment for 
the Eaves of the Baggage Building, within the air space coinciding with the location of the Eaves 
as they exist on the date of recordation of this Grand Deed, that is, with the underside of the 
Eaves at an elevation approximately eighteen feet (18) feet above grade, and extending out over 
Grantor's Land as more particularly described in Exhibit II attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by this reference. · 

1.2.5 The right of encroachment granted by this Section 1.2 is perpetual, 
subject, however, to earlier automatic termination if and when, as a result of damage, destruction 
or removal, the roof of the Colonnade ceases to exist in its present configuration, without a 
commencement of reconstruction, in substantially the same configuration as presently exists, 
within four (4) years after the date of such damage, destruction or removal. 

2. Limitation to Permitted Uses. 

2.1 Museum. Cultural and Institutional Uses Onlv. The Museum, its 
successors and assigns shall use and manage the Property only as a museum or for other CulturaL 
or Institutional Uses (as hereinafter defined), together with certain ancillary uses of portions of 
the Property for a cafe, a gift shop, Public Pedestrian Pathway, landscaping, and similar 
supporting uses. 

2.1.1 For purposes of this Grant Deed, the phrase "Cultural or 
Institutional Uses" shall mean uses by institutions displaying or preserving objects of interest in 
one or more of the arts and sciences, such as musemns, libraries and art galleries. 

2 

SD\33 1124.12 06-15-2004 14:16 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



2.1.2 In support of the uses specified in Subsection 2.1.1 above, the 
Museum, its successors and assigns may also allow ancillary uses of portions of the Property for 
a cafe, a gift shop, driveways, public access and similar supporting uses. 

2.1.3 Notwithstanding Subsections 2.1.1 and 2.1.2 above, in any 
building hereafter constructed on the REA Site, the National Railroad Passenger Corporation 
(commonly known as "Amtrak"), or any successor to the railway interests of Amtrak, may lease 
or sublease and use approximately 2,755 useable square feet of space, and such a lease, sublease 
or use shall not constitute a breach of the limitations on use set forth in Subsections 2.1.1 and 
2.1.2 above. 

2.1.4 The uses of the Property permitted by this Section 2 will hereafter 
be referred to as the "Permitted Uses." 

3. Successors and Assigns. 

This Grant Deed shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of, Grantor, 
the Museum, their successors and assigns. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Grant Deed has been executed by the Grantor on the date 
set opposite its name. 

Date: -------' 2004 

SD\331124.12 

CATELLUS OPERATING LIMITED 
PARTNERSHIP, a Delaware limited partnership (as 
successor by merger to Catellus Development 
Corporation, a Delaware corporation) 

By: Catellus Development Corporation, a Delaware 
corporation (formerly known as Catellus 
SubCo, Inc., a Delaware corporation), its sole 
general partner 

3 

By: Catellus Urban Development 
Corporation, a Delaware corporation, as 
its Agent 

By: 
Name: Timothy B. Carey 
Title: Executive Vice President, 

Urban Development 

06·15·2004 14:16 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO ) 

On , 2004, before me,----------------
Notary Public, personally appeared--------------------· 

Personally known to me 
Or 

proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence 

to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he/she executed the same in his/her authorized capacity, and that by his/her signature on the 
instmment, the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the within 
instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal: 

SIGNATURE OF NOTARY PUBLIC 
(SEAL) 

4 

SD\33 1124.12 06-15-2004 14c16 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



EXHIBIT I 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND MAP OF THE PROPERTY 

Baggage Building Site and REA Site 

5 

SD\33ll24.12 06-15-2004 14:16 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



EXHIBIT II 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND MAP OF THE EA YES ENCROACHMENT 

SD\331124.12 06-15-2004 14; 16 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 

Catellus Operating Limited Partnership 

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

LATHAM & WATKINS LLP 
600 West Broadway, Suite 1800 
San Diego, California 92101 
Attn: Sarah Rosen, Esq. 

EXHIBITF 

(Space Above for. Recorder's Use) 

MAINTENANCE COVENANT 
UNDER CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE SECTION 1468 

THIS MAINTENAJ.'\fCE COVENANT UNDER CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE 
SECTION 1468 (the "Covenant") is made as of , 2004, by and between 
CATELLUS OPERATING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, a Delaware limited partnership, as 
successor by merger to Catellus Development Corporation, a Delaware corporation ("Catellus" 
or "Covenantee"), and the MUSEUM OF CONTEMPORARY ART, SAN DIEGO, a California 
non-profit public benefit corporation (the "Museum" or "Covenantor"). 

Recitals 

A. Santa Fe Depot Site. In the central business district in the City of San Diego, 
County of San Diego, State of California, there is a railway depot building (the "Santa Fe Depot" 
or "Depot Building") on a site which includes several adjacent blocks of land, commonly known 
as the "Santa Fe Depot Site," more particularly described on Exhibit I attached hereto. The 
Museum Site (as defined in Recital B below) and the Remaining Catellus Property (as defined in 
Recital C below) are both part of the Santa Fe Depot Site. 

B. Museum Site. By Grant Deed recorded concurrently with this Covenant, 
Catellus, as grantor, has conveyed to the Museum, as grantee, certain real property (the 
"Museum Site"), constituting a portion of the Santa Fe Depot Site, consisting of two fee parcels 
generally described as follows, and more particularly described on Exhibit II attached hereto: 

l 

SD\304906.15 06-15-2004 16:40 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Baggage Building Site; Baggage Building. The southerly fee parcel is 
commonly referred to as the "Baggage Building Site," on which the existing "Baggage 
Building" is situated. 

REA Site; New Museum Building. The adjacent northerly fee parcel is 
commonly referred to as the "REA Site," on which the Museum intends to construct a 
new Museum building (the "New Museum Building"). The REA Site includes the 
southerly 50% ofB Street adjacent to the REA Site, which has previously been vacated 
by the City. 

The Museum Site is the land of the Museum, as Covenantor, affected by this Covenant. 

C. Remaining Catellus Property. As a result of the conveyance described in 
Recital B, Catellus is now the owner of the real property located in the City of San Diego, 
County of San Diego, State of Califomia, constituting a portion of the Santa Fe Depot Site, more 
particularly described on Exhibit III attached hereto (the "Remaining Cate\]us Property"). The 
Remaining Catellus Property is the land of Catellus, as Covenantee, to be benefited by this 
Covenant. · -

D. Pm·pose. In consideration for Catellus's conveyance of the Museum Site to the 
Museum, the Museum, as Covenantor, enters into this Covenant with Catellus, in order to make 
the Museum responsible for maintenance and repair of the exterior skin of all Improvements (as 
hereinafter defined) now existing or hereafter constructed or installed on the Museum Site, and 
all other portions of the Museum Site exterior to such buildings (collectively, the "Museum Site 
Exterior Areas"), which are visible from the Remaining Catellus Property or from the public 
streets along the boundaries of the Santa Fe Depot Site (together, the "Exterior View Areas"). 
The provisions in this Covenant implementing the foregoing purpose are intended (a) to serve as 
agreements by the parties as owners of adjoining lands, and covenants by the Museum (as 
grantee of the Museum Site), with Catellus (as grantor of the Museum Site), to do or refrain from 
doing certain acts on the Museum Site, for the benefit of the Remaining Catellus Property, and 
(b) to run with the land of both the Museum and Catellus, pursuant to California Code of Civil 
Procedure Section 1468. 

Agreement 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

l. Limited Term. The term of this Covenant shall commence upon the date of recordation 
hereof in the Office of the County Recorder of San Diego County, California, and shall expire on 
December 31, 2030; provided, however, that Section 4.10 hereof, entitled Legal Fees, shall 
survive such expiration. 

2. Maintenance, Repair and Replacement. 

2.1 Museum Responsibility. 

2 
SD\304906.!5 06-!5-2004 l6:4Q 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



(a) As used in this Covenant, "Improvement" means any structure or 
appurtenance thereto, constructed (or to be constructed), installed (or to be installed) or 
substantially altered (or to be substantially altered) on the Museum Site, which has (or upon 
construction, installation or substantial alteration will have) a physically imposing and material 
impact on the aesthetic appearance of the Museum Site, and which is (or upon construction, 
installation or substantial alteration will be) visible from the Exterior View Areas. 

(b) The Museum shall maintain, repair or replace, as reasonably required, 
both (i) the facades of all Improvements on the Museum Site, and (ii) the Museum Site Exterior 
Areas (together, the "Facades and Exteriors"), in order to meet the Maintenance Standard set 
forth in Paragraph 2.4 below. 

(c) At any time and from time to time, the Museum may delegate its 
responsibility to maintain, repair or replace the Facades and Exteriors to any tenant, subtenant or 
other person. 

? ? Maintenance Costs. The costs for maintenance, repair and_replacements 
incun·ed by the Museum pursuant to this Covenant shall be bome .soleLy by the Museum or its 
delegatee. 

2.3 Remedies for Nonperformance. If the Museum fails to provide maintenance, 
repair or replacements of the Facades and Exteriors to the Maintenance Standard, then: 

(a) Catellus shall have the right to notify the Museum in writing of such 
nonperformance, specifying the particulars thereof (a "Notice ofNonperfomnnce"). 

(b) If the Museum fails to commence such remedy within ninety (90) days 
after its receipt of the Notice of Nonperformance, or if the Museum commences such remedy and 
thereafter fails diligently to prosecute the same to completion, then Catellus shall thereafter have 
the right to pursue any remedy at law or in equity against the Museum for any failure by the 
Museum to provide maintenance, repair or replacements of the Facades and Exteriors to the 
Maintenance Standard, pursuant to this Covenant. 

2.4 Maintenance Standard. All maintenance, repair and replacement called for by 
this Covenant shall meet the following standards (together, the "Maintenance Standard"): 

(a) Such maintenance, repair and replacement shall be comparable, in quality 
and in frequency of performance, to the maintenance, repair and replacement undertaken by the 
Museum at its "most favored" other prominent public venues (for purposes of this clause (a), the 
Museum's "most favored" venues shall be determined by references to the foregoing standards, 
i.e., quality and frequency of maintenance, repair and replacement activities, etc.); 

(b) It shall serve to maintain the quality and condition of the Facades and 
Exteriors in a way that does not reflect adversely on the balance of the Santa Fe Depot Site; 

(c) It shall serve to maintain the affected property in a safe, clean and orderly 
condition; and 

3 
SD1.304906.! 5 06-! 5-2004 16:40 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



.(d) It shall comply with all applicable requirements of law. 

2.5 Compliance with Obligations. All construction, maintenance, repair and 
replacements called for by this Covenant shall comply with any and all applicable covenants, 
conditions, restrictions, liens and encumbrances to which the Museum Site may be subject, if 
any. 

2.6 Catellus Responsibility. Without in any way limiting the obligations of the 
Museum under Sections 2.1 through 2.5 above, Catelllls shall abide by the maintenance, repair 
and replacement standards required of it pursuant to: 

(a) Sections A.l and B.4 of Revised Attachment C-1 to the Amended and 
Restated Development Agreement dated April 9, 1993 with the City of San Diego, a mllnicipal 
corporation of the State of California, as amended by a First Amendment thereto dated March 5, 
1996, a Second Amendment thereto dated December 4, 1997, and a Third Amendment thereto 
dated February 18, 2003 and a Fourth Amendment thereto dated [ . ], 2004 (collectively, 
the "DA"); 

(b) Section A.6 of Revised Attachment C-1 to the DA, specifically including, 
without limitation, Catellus's agreement to guarantee the preservation and maintenance of the 
exterior facades of the Baggage Building; 

(c) Sections A.! and B .4 of Revised Attachment No. 5 to the Amended and 
Restated Owner Participation Agreement dated April 9, 1993 with the Agency, as amended by a 
First Implementation Agreement thereto dated March 4, 1996, a Second Implementation 
Agreement thereto dated December 4, 1997, and a Third Implementation Agreement thereto 
dated Febmary 10, 2003 and a Fourth Implementation Agreement thereto dated [ ], 
2004 (collectively, the "OP A"); 

(d) Section A.6 of Revised Attaclunent No.5 to the DA, specifically 
including, without limitation, Catellus's agreement to guarantee the preservation and 
maintenance of the exterior facades of the Baggage Building; and 

(e) Section 402 of the OPA. 

3. Section 1468 Provisions. 

3.1 Running with the Land. The Musellm Site is the land of the Covenantor which 
is affected by this Covenant The Remaining Catellus Property is the land of the Covenantee to 
be benefited by this Covenant (as more fully set forth in Section 3.1 below). This Covenant shall 
run with both the Museum Site and the Remaining Catellus Property. The Museum hereby 
covenants that the Museum Site shall be transferred, encumbered, hypothecated, used and 
improved subject to the covenants, conditions, restrictions, rights and reservations contained in 
this Covenant. 

3.2 Successive Owners. Successive owners of the Museum Site are expressly bound 
by this Covenant, for the benefit of the Remaining Catellus Property. 

4 
S!)'3N'>06.15 06-[5-2004 16:40 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



3.3 Acts Relate to Use. Each act covenanted to be performed in this Covenant 
relates to the use, repair, maintenance or improvement of, or to the payment of taxes and 
assessments on, the Museum Site. 

3.4 Recordation. This Covenant is entered into pursuant to California Civil Code 
Section 1468, and shall be recorded in the Office of the County Recorder of San Diego County, 
Califomia. 

3.5 Allocation of Benefits among Successors. 

(a) Catellus Corporate Successor. As used in this Covenant, the phrase 
"Catellus Corporate Successor" means (i) any entity controlling, controlled by, or under common 
control with Catellus, and/or (ii) any successor to Catellus by merger, consolidation or 
acquisition of its corporate stock. A "Catellus Corporate Successor" need not be a corporation, 
but rather may be a corporation, a partnership, a limited liability company or any other form of 
legal entity. 

(b) When Catellus Owns Remaining Catellu~. Property. If.C:atellus or any 
Catellus Corporate Successor (i) hereafter sells or otherwise transfers fee title to any portion of 
the Remaining Catellus Property to any third party (that is, to a person or entity other than 
Catellus or a Catellus Corporate Successor), but (ii) retains fee title to any other potiion of the 
Remaining Catellus Prope1iy, then, effective upon the date of such transfer, this Covenant shall 
benefit only the portion of the Remaining Catellus Propetiy then still owned by Catellus or by 
such Catellus Corporate Successor. 

(c) When Catellus Transfers Last Parcel. At such time as Catellus or a 
Catellus Corporate Successor sells or otherwise transfers fee title to last portion of the Remaining 
Catellus Propetiy owned by it (the "Last Parcel") to any third party (that is, to a person or entity 
other than Catellus or a Catellus Corporate Successor), then effective upon the date of such 
transfer, this Covenant shall benefit only the parcel upon which the Depot Building is located. 

4. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

4.1 Enforcement. This Covenant may be enforced by proceedings at law or in 
eqLtity, including without limitation proceedings to recover damages and/or to restrain violations. 

4.2 Successors and Assigns. This Covenant shall be binding upon and shall inure to 
the benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 

4.3 No Obligations to Third Parties. Except as otherwise expressly provided 
herein, this Covenant shall not be deemed to confer any rights upon, or obligate any of the 
parties to, any person or entity other than the parties hereto. 

4.4 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence to this Covenant. 

4.5 Waiver. The waiver or failure to enforce any provision of this Covenant shall not 
operate as a waiver of any future breach of any such provision or any other provision hereof. 

5 
SD'.304906.!5 06-!5-2004 16:<10 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



4.6 Severability. If any portion of this Covenant, as applied to either party or to any 
circumstances, ·shall be adjudged by a court to be void or unenforceable, such portion shall be 
deemed severed from this Covenant and shall in no way effect the validity or enforceability of 
the remaining portions of this Covenant. 

4. 7 Captions. The captions in this Covenant are solely for the convenience of the 
parties hereto, and shall not be used for the interpretation or determination of the validity hereof. 

4.8 Exhibits. The Exhibits attached hereto are hereby incorporated herein by this 
reference for all purposes. 

4.9 Applicable Law. This Covenant shall be governed by and construed and 
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

4.10 Legal Fees. In the event that any legal action or other proceeding is brought by 
any party arising fi·om or related to this Covenant, the prevailing party in such action or 
proceeding shall be entitled to recover from the other party all its costs and_expenses, including 
without limitation reasonable attorneys' and experts' fees, and co:;ts and .. expens.e~ incurred in 
enforcing, perfecting and executing any judgment, including without limitation those incurred in 
post-judgment motions, contempt proceedings, garnishment, levy, debtor and third-party 
examinations, discovery and bankruptcy litigation. 

4.11 Amendments. This Covenant may be amended or rescinded only in a writing 
executed by both of the parties hereto and recorded in the Office of the County Recorder of San 
Diego County, California. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Covenant as of the date 
first above written. 

S\Y.30..J.906.!5 

MUSEUM: 

MUSEUM OF CONTEMPOR1\RY ART, SAN 
DIEGO, 
a Califomia non-profit public benefit corporation 

By: 
Name: 

Title: ----------------

[Additional Signature on Next Page] 

6 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Sl)\J0-.1906.15 

CATELLUS OPERATING LIMITED 
PARTNERSHIP, a Delaware limited partnership (as 
successor by merger to Catellus Development 
Corporation, a Delaware corporation) 

By: Catellus Development Corporation, a 
Delaware corporation (formerly known as 
Catellus S ubCo, Inc., a Delaware 
Corporation, its sole general partner 

7 

By: Catellus Urban Development 
Corporation, a Delaware 
corporation, as its Agent 

By: ________ ~----------
Name: Tim Carey 
Title:· Executive ViCe President, 

Urban Development 

06-15-2004 IMO 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Exhibit I 

Exhibit II 

Exhibit III 

SD\JO-I-90C1.! 5 

Table of Exhibits 

Santa Fe Depot Site 

Mttseum Site 

Remaining Catelltts Property 

8 

06-!5-2004 !6:40 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



SD·JD..J.906.15 

EXHIBIT I 

SANTA FE DEPOT SITE 

06- t 5-2004 \6:40 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



SD· .:HJ..j.LJ()(}.l5 

EXHIBIT II 

MUSEUM PROPERTY 

Baggage Building Site and REA Site 

06-15-2004 16:40 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



s [)IJ()-1.906.: 5 

EXHIBIT III 

REMAINING CATELLUS PROPERTY 

06-15-2004 16AO 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



EXHIBITG 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY, 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

The City of San Diego 
1200 Third Avenue, Suite 1700 
San Diego, Ca1ifomia 92101 

Attn: James A. Braun, Property Agent 

APN'--------------------- SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER'S USE 

BREEZEWAY EASEMENT 

TI1e undersigned grantor(s) declare(s): 
Documentary transfer tax is$'--..,..-----
( ) computed on full value of property conveyed (open space lots), or 
( ) computed on full value less value ofliens and encumbrances remaining at time of sale. 

Preamble 

THIS BREEZEWAY EASEMENT (the "Agreement") is made as of 
c::-=:::-::::=-===---=---=--' 2004, by and between CATELLUS OPERATING LIMITED 
PARTNERSHIP, a Delaware limited partnership, as successor by merger to Catellus 
Development Corporation, a Delaware corporation ("Grantor"), and the CITY OF SAl'{ 
DIEGO, a municipal corporation oftl1e State of California (the "City"). 

Recitals 

A. Servient Tenement. Grantor is the owner of certain real property situated 
in the City of San Diego, County of San Diego, State of Califomia, more particularly 
described on Exhibit 1 attached hereto (the "Servient Tenement"). 

B. Purpose. The City desires to acquire certain easement rights in the 
Servient Tenement. 

Agreement 

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1 

SD\331787.12 06-15-2004 14:53 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



l. Grant. Grantor hereby grants to the City an easement in gross as 
hereinafter described (the "Breezeway Easement"). 

? Location. The Breezeway Easement is located upon, under, over and 
across the Servient Tenement (the "Breezeway Easement Area"). 

3. Uses. 

3.1 The Breezeway Easement is for (a) public and private pedestrian 
and vehicular ingress and egress over and across the Breezeway Easement Area, and 
(b) public and private utility purposes, provided, however, that all utility lines installed, 
used or maintained within the Breezeway Easement pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
concealed from public view. 

3.2 The City shall not cut, fill or otherwise change the grade of the 
Breezeway Easement Area, or place drainage or retaining structures on the Breezeway 
Easement Area, without the prior written consent of Grantor. 

3.3 The City's right to install, use and maintain utilities is expressly 
made subject to Grantor's right to review and approve its plans therefor and to supervise 
the City's removal and replacement activities to ensure minimal disruption to the 
Breezeway Easement Area, to Grantor and to adjacent property owners, lessees and 
tenants. Upon reasonable request by Grantor, the City agrees to coordinate its 
construction schedule with Grantor in order to minimize the impact of such activities on 
Grantor and adjacent property owners, lessees and tenants. 

3.4 In connection with any such work of installation, use and 
maintenance by the City, the City shall restore the pavement, sidewalk, surface and other 
improvements located or to be located within the Breezeway Easement Area now or in 
the future to substantially the same condition they were in immediately prior to such 
work, at the City's sole cost and expense. 

4. Subsequent Conveyances. The Breezeway Easement includes a right and 
power in the City to convey the Breezeway Easement or any portion thereof, and all other 
rights herein conveyed, in the form of an easement or an itTevocable offer to dedicate real 
property, to any other govetmental agency, and/or to grant an easement in gross to any 
public or ptivate utility for public or private utility pmposes, without necessity for further 
consent ot· documentation of any kind by Grantor. Grantor hereby consents to any such 
conveyance or grant by the City, and agrees to execute, acknowledge and deliver to and 
in favor of any governmental agency or public or private utility, any instrutnent 
reasonably necessary to implement the intentions expt·essed or implied herein, provided 
that such execution, acknowledgment and delivery shall be at no expense to Grantor. 

5. Non-Exclusivity. The Breezeway Easement is not exclusive. Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, Grantor may also use the Bt·eezeway Easement 
Area for the same purposes as the City's use thereof, and for other purposes which do not 
unreasonably interfere with such uses by the City, and/or convey easements appurtenant 
or in gross upon, under, over and across the Breezeway Easement Area to other persons, 

2 

SDI33t787.t2 06-(5-2004 \4:53 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



public and private, for the same purposes as the City's use thereof, and for other purposes 
which do not umeasonabl y interfere with such uses by the City, without necessity for 
further consent or documentation of any kind by the City. The City hereby consents to 
any such conveyance or grant by Grantor, and agrees to execute, acknowledge and 
deliver to and in favor of any goverrunental agency or public or private utility, any 
instrument reasonably necessaty to implement the intentions expressed or implied herein, 
provided that such execution, acknowledgment and delivery shall be at no expense to the 
City. No amount of uses of the Easement shall constitute an overburdening of the 
Easement. 

6. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall insure to 
the benefit of, the patties hereto and their successors at1d assigns. 

7. Compliance with Laws. The City, at its expense, shall comply with all 
laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations binding on the City and affecting the 
Breezeway Easement Area, now in force or hereafter adopted, with respect to the use by 
the City ofthe Breezeway Easement Area pursuant to this Agreement. 

8. Liens. 

8.1 The City shall promptly pay and discharge all claims for labor 
perfom1ed, supplies furnished and services rendered at the request of the City and shall 
keep the Breezeway Easement Area free of all mechanics' and material suppliers' liens in 
connection therewith; provided, however, that the City may contest the validity of any 
such lien so long as such lien is discharged by bond or otherwise (within thirty 30 days 
after notice thereof) without cost to Grantor. 

8.2 The City shall provide at least ten (10) days' prior written notice to 
Grantor before at1Y labor is performed, supplies fumished or services rendered on or at 
the Breezeway Easement Area which would give rise to a mechanic's lien or any other 
lien, and Grantor shall have the right to post on the Breezeway Easement Area notices of 
non-responsibility. 

9. Burden on Land. The Breezeway Easement granted in this Agreement 
shall be a burden on the Servient Tenement, which burden shall run with the land and 
shall be binding on owners and encumbrances of the Servient Tenement, their successors 
and assigns. 

10. Time. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each and every part 
hereof. 

3 

S0\331787.12 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



11. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended or otherwise modified 
only in a writing signed and acknowledged by Grantor and the City, or their respective 
successors and assigns. 

12. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and constmed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

13. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shalloe held invalid or 
unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this Agreement (or the application of such 
provisions to persons or circumstances other than those in respect of which it is invalid or 
unenforceable) shall not be affected thereby, and each provision of this Agreement, 
unless specifically conditioned upon such invalid or unenforceable provision, shall be 
valid and enforceable to the fullest extent pennitted by law. 

IN WITNESS vVHEREOF, this Breezeway Easement has been executed by the 
parties on the dates set opposite their names. 

Date: _________ , 2004 

Date: --------' 2004 

SD\331787.!2 

CATELLUS OPERATING LIMITED 
PARTNERSHIP, a Delaware limited partnership 
(as successor by merger to Catellus Development 
Corporation, a Delaware corporation) 

By: Catellus Development Corporation, 
a Delaware corporation (fonuerly known as 
Catellus SubCo, Inc., a Delaware 
corporation), its sole general partner 

By: Catellus Urban Development 
Corporation, a Delaware corporation, 
as its Agent 

By: 
Name: Timothy B. Carey 
Title: Executive Vice President, 

Urban Development 

CITY OF SAN DIEGO, a municipal 
corporation of the State of California 

By: 
Name: _____________ _ 
Title: -------------

4 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



APPROVED: 

CASEY GWINN 
City Attorney 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
) ss. 

COlJNTY OF SAN DIEGO ) 

On , 2004, before me, 
------------------'Notary Pttblic, personally appeared 

Personally known to me 
Or 

proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence 

to be the person whose name is subsctibed to the within instrument and acknowledged to 
me that he/sbe executed the same in his/her authorized capacity, and that by his/ber 
signature on the instrument, tbe person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person 
acted, executed the within instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal: 

SIGNATURE OF NOTARY PUBLIC 
(SEAL) 

STATE OF CALIFOR.l\fiA ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO ) 

On , 2004, before me, 
_________________ , Notary Public, personally appeared 

Personally known to me 
Or 

proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence 

5 

SDi33l787.l2 06-!5-2004 [4:53 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to 
me that he/she executed the same in his/her authorized capacity, and that by his/her 
signatme on the instrument, the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person 
acted, executed the within instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal: 

SIGNATURE OF NOTARY PUBLIC 
(SEAL) 

6 

SD\J3l787.l2 06¥[5-2004 l4:53 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



EXHIBIT I 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND MAP OF SERVIENT TENEMENT 
(WHICH ALSO CONSTITUTES THE BREEZEWAY EASEMENT AREA) 

EXHIBIT 1 

SD\331787.12 06-15-2004 14:53 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



EXHIBIT H 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY, 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

The City of San Diego 
1200 Third Avenue, Suite 1700 
San Diego, California 92101 

Attn: James A. Braun, Property Agent 

APN: ----------- SPACE AI30VE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER's USE 

FACADE EASEMENT 

The undersigned grantor(s) declare(s): 
Documentary transfer tax is $.----;;----
( ) computed on fitll value of property conveyed (open space lots), or 
( ) computed on full value less value ofliens and encumbrances remaining ar time of sale. 

Preamble 

THIS FA(ADE EASEMENT (the "Agreement") is made as of 
=--=-=:-=::-:-=--=--:--' 2004, by and between CATELLUS OPERATING LIMITED 
PARTNERSHIP, a Delaware limited partnership, as successor by merger to Catellus 
Development Corporation, a Delaware corporation ("Grantor"), and the CITY OF SAN 
DIEGO, a municipal corporation of the Stat~ ofCalifomia (the "City"). 

Recitals 

A. Servient Tenement. Grantor is the owner of certain real property located 
in the City of San Diego, County of San Diego, State of California, more particularly 
described on Exhibit 1 attached hereto (the "Servient Tenement"). Two historic 
buildings, commonly refetTed to as the "Santa Fe Depot" and the "Baggage Building," 
are situated on the Servient Tenement. 

B. Purpose. Grantor desires to convey to the City, and the City desires to 
acquire from Grantor, certain easement rights pertaining to the maintenance, preservation 
and protection of the exterior fa<;;ades of the Santa Fe Depot and Baggage Building. 

Agreement 

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

SD\356407 .9 06·15<2004 14:55 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



!. Grant. Grantor hereby grants to the City.an easement in gross as 
hereinafter described (the "Facade Easement").-·-

2. Location. The Fa<;:ade Easement is located upon and across the exterior 
fa<;ades of the Santa Fe Depot and Baggage Building (the "Facade Easement Area"). 

3. Uses. The Fa<;:ade Easement is for the purpose of preserving the historic 
exterior appearance of the Santa Fe Depot and Baggage Building. 

4. Maintenance. By accepting this Fa<;:ade Easement, the City, as grantee of 
the Fa<;ade Easement under this Agreement, assumes no duty to maintain, protect or 
preserve the Fa<;ade Easement Area. Rather, Grantor aclmowledges and agrees, for itself 
and for its successors and assigns, that it shall be the duty of the fee owner of the Servient 
Tenement to maintain, protect and preserve the fa<;ades of the Santa Fe Depot and 
Baggage Building in good condition and repair, as an obligation running with the land 
and appurtenant to the fee ownership thereof. 

5. Non-Merger. If the same person or entity ever comes to own both the 
Fa<;ade Easement and fee title to any portion of the Servient Tenement, sttch common 
ownership shall not effect a merger of the Fa<;ade Easement into the Servient Tenement, 
the intent of the parties being that the Fa<;ade Easement survive such common ownership, 
unless otherwise expressly elected in wtiting by such common owner. The pat1ies 
aclmowledge that the MUSEUM OF CONTEMPORARY ART, SAN DIEGO, a 
California non-profit public benefit corporation, has assumed the duty to maintain the 
Facade of the Baggage Building, if the City becomes fee owner of the Baggage Building, 
pursuant to the City Option Agreement dated , 2004. 

6. Binding Effect. Tl1is Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall inure to 
the benefit of, the parties hereto and their successors and assigns. 

7. Burden on Land. The land or land area of the Grantor affected by the 
covenants in this Fa<;ade Easement is the Servient Tenement. The land or land area of the 
City to be benefited thereby is the Fa<;:ade Easement Area. Successive owners of both the 
Servient Tenement and the Fa<;ade Easement Area are expressly bound hereby, for the 
benefit of the Fa<;ade Easement Area. This Fa<;ade Easement is intended to create 
covenants running with the land, and shall be recorded in the Office of the San Diego 
County Recorder, at the expense of Grantor. 

8. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended or otherwise modifted 
only in a writing signed a11d acknowledged by Grantor and the City, or by their respective 
successors or asstgns. 

9. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

2 

SD\356407.L) 06-15-2004 14:55 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE.] 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Fa9ade Easement has been executed by the 
parties on the dates set opposite their names. 

Date: ------' 2004 

Date: ------' 2004 

APPROVED: 

CASEY GWINN 
City Attomey 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

SD\356407.9 

CATELLUS OPERATING LIMITED 
PARTNERSHIP, a Delaware limited pat1nership 
(as successor by merger to Catellus Development 
Corporation, a Delawat·e corporation) 

By: Catellus Development Corporation, 
a Delaware corporation (formerly known as 
Catellus Sub Co, Inc., a Delaware corporation), 
its sole general partner 

By: Catellus Urban Development Corporation, 
a Delaware corporation, as its Agent 

By: 
Name: Timothy B. Carey 
Title: Executive Vice President, 

Urban Development 

CITY OF SAN DIEGO, a municipal corporation of 
the State of California 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

3 

06-15-2004 14;55 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO ) 

On , 2004, before me, 
------------------'Notary Public, personally appeared 

Personally !mown to me 
Or 

proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence 

to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to 
me that he/she executed the same in his/her authorized capacity, and that by his/her 
signature on the instrument, the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person 
acted, executed the within instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal: 

SIGNATURE OF NOTARY PUBLIC 
(SEAL) 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO ) 

Ot1 , 2004, before me, 
------------------'' Notary Public, personally appeared 

Personally known to me 
Or 

proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence 

to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to 
me that he/she executed the same in his/her authorized capacity, and that by his/her 
signature on the instrument, the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person 
acted, executed the within instnm1ent. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal: 

SIGNATURE OF NOTARY PUBLIC 
(SEAL) 

4 

SD\356~07.9 O(J-15-2004 14:55 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



EXHIBIT I 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND MAP OF THE SERVIENT TENEMENT 

SD\356-:1.07.9 06-15-2004 ! -1.:55 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



EXHIBIT I 

Intentionally Deleted 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



EXHIBITJ 

Intentionally Deleted 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



MUSEUM 
BUILDING 

EXTENSION 
INTO VACATED 

"8" STREET 

,---RELOCATED 
TRANSFORMER 

~+-EXISTING 
BALCONY 
ABOVE 

~--+-REBUILT 
STAIRWAY 

McCLINTOCK 
BUILDING 

18'-0" 14'-0" 8'-Q" 14'-Q" 18'-Q" 

KETTNER LEVARD i 
PRELIMINARY PLAN FO VACATED "B" STREET 

PATHWAY IMPROVEMENTS MAY 5, 2004 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED, MAIL TO: 

PROPERTY DEPARTMENT 
CITY OF SAN DIEGO 
1200 THIRD AVENUE 
SUITE 1620 
SANDIEGO,CA 92101 

EXHIBIT L 

FREE RECORDING REQUESTED 
BY CITY OF SAN DIEGO (SEE 
GOV'T CODE 6103) 
NO DOCUMENTARY TAX DUE 

R & T 11922 (Amended) 

PUBLIC PEDESTRIAN EASEMENT 

For valuable consideration, Museum of Contemporary Art, San Diego, a California non­
profit public benefit corporation ("Grantor"), does hereby grant to the City of San Diego, a municipal 
corporation ("Grantee"), a perpetual non-exclusive public easement over, along and across the land 
of Grantor situated in the County of San Diego, State of California, more particularly described on 
Exhibit I and illustrated on Exhibit II, attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof ("B 
Street Pathway"), for exclusive use of the City to operate the public pathway in accordance with City 
practices. 

Grantee agrees to and shall defend, indemnify and hold Grantor, and its officers, employees, 
contractors and agents han11less from and against all claims, liability, loss, damage, costs or expenses 
(including reasonable attomeys' fees and court costs) arising from or as a result of the death of any 
person or any accident, injury, loss or damage whatsoever caused to any person or to the property of 
any person (including without limitation Grantor) which shall occm within the B Street Pathway or 
otherwise in connection with the activities of Grantee under this Grant of Public Pedestrian 
Easement. 

This Grant of Public Pedestrian Easement is made by Grantor pursuant to that certain 
Transfer Agreement and Escrow Instructions dated , 2004, between Grantor, Grantee, 
Catellus Operating Limited Partnership, and Agency. 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



This Grant ofPublic Pedestrian Easement shall bind and enure to the benefit of the respective 
heirs, representatives, successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 

2004. 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, tlus instrument is executed as of this day of 

MUSEUNI OF CONTEMPORARY ART, SAN 
DIEGO, a California non-profit public beneftt 
corporation 

By: ___________ _ 
Name: _____________ _ 
Title: ______________ _ 
(Grantor) 

IITHEMISIO _ CUENT\51595015J4451TRANSIEXHIBlTS TO MUSEUM TRANS AGRMTIEXHIBIT L- PUBUCPEDESTRIANEASEMENT V2 
(OLD EXH lVI). DOC 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



EXHIBITM 

RIGHT OF ENTRY AGREEMENT 

This Right of Entry Agreement, made this day of 2004, by 
and between the Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Diego ("Agency") and 
Museum of Contemporary Art, San Diego, a California non-profit public benefit 
corporation ("Owner"). 

RECITALS 

A. WHEREAS, the Agency desires to install improvements within the Site 
Area designated on Exhibit I, which is the property of Owner, in order to complete the B 
Street Pathway and related landscaping and other improvements within the Centre City 
Redevelopment Project; and 

B. WHEREAS, the improvements to be installed have been designed in 
consultation with Owner and Owner has approved the construction drawings for such 
improvements. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED BY THE PARTIES HERETO, as 
follows: 

1. Permission is hereby granted by the Owner to Agency to enter onto the 
Site Area for the purposes of installing the improvements generally as depicted on 
Exhibit II. 

2. This permission is effective as of the date hereof, and shall remain in effect 
until December 31, 2005. 

3. Agency shall keep the Site Area free from all encumbrances and liens of 
w:hatever nature involved in its activities on the Site Area. Agency shall defend and 
hold harmless and indem..'l.ify Owner from any and all such encumbrances and/ or liens. 
(L.-ccluding all costs and attorneys' fees in defending any claim or liability in any way 
connected with Agency, or Agency's Contractor or subcontractors, failure to pay any 
person(s) referred to in Section 3181 of the California Civil Code, which clairrl or liability 
may be instituted or filed against the Site Area). 

4. Agency hereby releases and agrees to protect, defend, hold harmless and 
indemrify Owner from and against all demands, claims, injury, liability, loss, damage, 
cost and expense, however same may be caused, including all costs and reasonable 

1 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



attorneys' fees in providing the defense to any claim arising therefrom, for any loss of, 
or damage to property (real and/or personal), for personal injury to or death of any 
person or persons arising out of or occurring by reason of, Agency's activities within the 
Site Area. Single limit liability insurance in an amount not less than Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000) in a form acceptable to Owner shall be provided prior to access to the Site 
Area. 

5. It is agreed that Agency, and not Owner, shall bear the cost for any actual 
damage to and/ or use of the Site Area. Agency agrees to protect, defend, hold harmless 
and indemnify Owner from any such costs, including all costs and reasonable attorneys' 
fees in providing the defense to any claim arising therefrom. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, said parties have executed the Right of Entry on the 
day and year first above written. 

AGENCY: 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF 
SAN DIEGO, a public body corporate and politic of 
the State of California 

By:. ____________________ __ 
Name: ___________ _ 
Title:. ___________________ _ 

Date: ____________ _ 

OWNER: 

MUSEUM OF CONTEMPORARY ART, SAN 
DIEGO, a California non-profit public benefit 
corporation 

By:. ______________________ _ 
Name:. _____________________ __ 
Title:. _______________________ _ 

Date: _______________________ _ 

2 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY 
CASEY GWINN 
Agency General Counsel 

By: ____________________ __ 

Date: ___________ _ 

0:\5\5950\53445\ TRA.NS\EXHIBITS TO tviUSEUM TRANS AGRMT\EXHIBIT N.DOC 

3 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



EXHIBITN 

COVENANT TO MAINTAIN PAVING AND LANDSCAPING 

This Covenant to Maintain Paving and Landscaping is made as of , 
2004 between Museum of Contemporary Ati, San Diego, a California non-profit public 
benefit corporation (Museum) and the City of San Diego, a mLmicipal corporation (City), 
who agree: 

l. Museum has provided to the Redevelopment Agency of the City of San 
Diego (Agency) the right to install improvements within the northerly twenty-two feet of 
Parcel4 of Parcel Map No. 19378, in the City of San Diego, County of San Diego, State 
of Califomia, filed in the Office of the County Recorder of San Diego County, November 
26, 2003 as File No. 2003-1418318 of Official Records, together with that portion of 
Kettner Boulevard (fotmerly Arctic Street) as said street is dedicated to Public use, which 
Ltpon closing would revert, by operation of law, to the above described land (Parcel 4); 
the northerly eight feet thereof will be improved by the Agency with a Public Pedestrian 
Pathway (sometimes referred to as the B Street Pathway, which will also encompass the 
southerly eight feet of the property to the north of Parcel 4) and the SOLttherly fourteen 
feet of the northerly twenty-two feet of Parcel 4 will be improved by the Agency with 
landscaping and other improvements (such southerly fourteen feet being referred to as the 
Landscaped Area). 

2. Museum shall, for the benefit of City and Agency, maintain, repair or 
replace the Landscaped Area, as reasonably required. Museum commits to the City that 
so long as it owns Parcel 4, the Landscaped Area will remain in as good condition as 
when the improvement of the Landscaped Area is completed by Agency. 

3. The costs for such maintenance, repair and replacements shall be borne by 
Museum. 

4. The obligations of Museum pll!'suant to this Covenant to Maintain Paving 
and Landscaping shall be subject to the provisions of the Transfer Agreement among the 
City, Agency, IVILtseum and Catellus Operating Limited Partnership dated JLme , 2004, 
pll!'suant to which Museum acquired Parcel4. 

MUSEUM OF CONTEMPORARY ART, 
SAN DIEGO, a Califomia non-profit public 
benefit corporation 

By: ____________ _ 
Name: _____________ _ 
Title: _____________ _ 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



CITY OF SAN DIEGO, a municipal 
corporation of the State of California 

By: 
Nam--e·-. ----------------------------

Title: ________________________ _ 

0:15159501534451Trans1Exhibits to Museum Trans agm1tiExhibit O.doc 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



EXHIBIT 0 

CATELLUS 

Mr. Ron Weathertord 
H.R. Weathcrt(H'i:i 
600 \Vest Broadway 
Suite J iO 
Snn Diego.: Ca!it<>rnia 92H}J 

RF:: San Diego Sama. Fe Depot-Baggage Bu!iding 
Cost T~·ansfer .ApprDvni Letter 
\<Vebcor Change ()rdcr No. 00-4 

Dear Ron: 

\Vebcor the Shel! and Core Contractor executed alf of the fOllowing items at the behesr: of the f'cnant. the Museun' 
of Ccntempornry Art (IV!CAJ. Per our r.ekphone corwersation today during the \veekly Owner- :\ rchi-re-~t­
Contrnctor m..::eting at apprOximately l 0:00am we sen led on ~:be foiln~ving values as MCA'::; shan.' of the cost 

Cost Cateilu.s Owes to the l\>luseum of Contemporary Art 
Credit for fire sprinkler $+ ]8~ l qo 
Credit fnr inter{or siab-O!J-grade (sog) $+9 L820 
Credit for back-flow pre.v·~rHt!r am! 2rr of piping $ +,:;,soo 

Cost the iV!useum vf Coatcrnnorarr Art Owes: to C3teHus 
Shoterete block-outs p~r RF! E4 S -2~5'~ I 
Shift sted columns tfl bu;lding eKterior $- 750 
Demo e:.\:lsting cl1lumn footings 
Saw-cut '.~xistin~ !nterior wails: 
Unden.!:rounJ \>..:d ;Jtilitie:- to J\:Iuscurn 
lnsta.li.:ll.i('f'l t:->f 8J.ggag·~ Bldg .dnmtstk watt-r 
fthUiiatkm ·.~f BQ.ggag-= 8ldg $l0rm wate; 
!nstall;,.ttjon vf Bag:gng.t! Bldg tire 'iervice 
lnt:<t.a!i~.t"ion ~>f REA Bldg north sewer 
Undt.:P.::wurH.i Jn urilitie~_"!~L~fuset:~~ 
in:1ral !ation of Baggag.c Bldg dectrica! 
!n::;ratlc;:i~)n ~;f8aggo1ge Bldg ga . ..; 
\nsta!latirm of Bagg.ag.~ B!dg ekctrica! 
installation of Bngg:age Bidg gas 
Wc!.-:>~;nr Sor"i Co::,t 

Tnt:d thnt Cah:Hus Owes t-o th~ ?t-iCA 

$- 804 
'S - -4,500 

~-?..!50 

s- 2567 

) ·- l_OOO 
$ - 'U!OO 
$- 5~4(}0 

$ - LfJOO 

S99,.J-W 

Pk-.a:;:.:.> itl.dkmc your act-cpti!nc~ by slgn1ng in the- appro~:-riate s!gnot.mn~ b!•.)Ck beicn.·J tHid ret~!:--.: n:! t"""'-'· !'~d!•. 

exc-,.::ut>:d ,~·:rpits n.~ Caklhts t!tbnn D~·"''c-lepmcnt Currorat\nn fi.Jr c·nr flk:s. 

rh::1ni-: ] t)U in ~ldvan.ce f{>r )'i.:tir COOp~n~tion. if )'Ull hG·v~ 8!1} quest[C>HS please fee! free iC· ;...:;!' ·~. .L; ' ~ "l; -;. · --~ l ~-

b.\. ;!~ { 2 ~ 3 ·~ 626--09.18 t.>r -=-rn~i! at: "<m. _Puc k.n:::n·r.?;,cate-U u~;.,..:um. 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



--
Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



EXHIBIT P 

ENVIRONMENTAL REPORTS 
Santa Fe Depot 

Baggage Building and REA site 

San Diego, CA 

I. Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Diego, 4/12/83: Final Environmental Impact 
Report for the Proposed Santa Fe Properties Development Plan 

2. Woodward-Clyde Consultants, 3/26/85: Phase I Geoteclmical Investigation, Santa Fe 
Depot Properties, San Diego, CA [This report has appeared on some lists incorrectly 
dated 312 6/9 5/ 

3. CTL Environmental Services, 9/9/88: Asbestos Report, 1020 and 1050 Kettner Blvd., 
CA0731752, San Diego, CA [This report lws appeared OIZ some lists incorrectly dated 
912188/ 

4. McLaren, 1112/89: Property Transaction Environmental Assessment and Phase II Soil 
Sampling of ATSF Depot and Ace Parking, 1050 Kettner Blvd., Pacific Coast Highway 
and B Street, San Diego, CA (CA0731752 AND CA07317l2) 

5. Leroy Crandall, 5/26/89: Report of Preliminary Geotechnical Investigation, Santa Fe 
Depot Development Area, Between Kettner Blvd, Ash Street, Pacific Highway and 
Broadway, San Diego, CA 

6. Woodard-Clyde Consultants, 5/22/91 (Revised 11/15/91): Environmental Site 
Assessment, Catellus Downtown San Diego Property 

7. CTL Environmental Services, 4/93: Project Record, Asbestos Survey, 1050 Kettner 
Blvd., San Diego, CA, CA0731752 

8. Weston, 6/93: Phase I Environmental Assessment, 1050 Kettner Blvd, San Diego, CA, 
CA0731752 

9. Weston, 8/26/93: Letter Re: 1050 Kettner Blvd., San Diego, CA, CA0731752 

10. CTL Environmental Services, 9/93: Project Manual, Asbestos Abatement for 1050 
Kettner Blvd., San Diego, CA. CA0731752 

11. CTL Environmental Services, 10/93: Asbestos-Abatement Air Monitoring and Contractor 
Observation Close-Out Report of 1050 Kettner Blvd., San Diego, CA, CA0731752 

12. Weston, 12/29/93: Letter Re: 1050 Kettner Blvd. (CA0731752), Outstanding Issues 

13. CTL Environmental Services, 9/94: Reinspection Report of 1050 Kettner Blvd., San 
Diego, CA, CA0731752 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



14. CTL Environmental Services, 3/95: Reinspection Report of 1050 Kettner Blvd., San 
Diego, CA, CA0731 752 

15. CTL Environmental Services, 9/95: Reinspection Report of 1050 Kettner Blvd., San 
Diego, CA, CA0731752 

16. CTL Environmental Services, 1196: Asbestos-Abatement Air Monitoring and Contractor 
Observation Close--Out Report of 1050 Kettner Blvd., San Diego, CA, CA0731752 

17. CTL Environmental Services, 2/96: Reinspection Report of 1050 Kettner Blvd., San 
Diego, CA, CA0731752 

18. CTL Environmental Services, 10/96: Reinspection Report of 1050 Kettner Blvd., San 
Diego, CA, CA0731752 

19. CTL Environmental Services, 2/97: Reinspection Report of 1050 Kettner Blvd., San 
Diego, CA, CA0731752 

20. CTL Environmental Services, 7/14/97: Suspect Lead-Based Paint Sampling at 1050 
Kettner Blvd., San Diego, CA, CA0731 752 

21. CTL Environmental Services, 9/97: Reinspection Repot·t ot' I 050 Kettner Blvd., San 
Diego, CA, CA0731752 

22. Winzler & Kelly, 8/7/02: REA Building- Pre-Demolition Hazardous Materials Survey 

23. Testing Engineet·s, 5/28/03: Geotechnical Evaluation, [proposed] Museum of 
Contemporary Art, 1050 Kettner Blvd., San Diego, CA 

24. Winzler & Kelly, 11/23/03: Lead and Asbestos-Containing Material Removal Closeout 
Document for Santa Fe Depot Baggage Building Seismic and Shell Improvement, 1050 
Kettner Blvd., San Diego, CA 

25. Iris, 11/24/03: Phase I Environmental Site Assessment, Santa Fe Depot Baggage Building 
and Former REA Building, 1050 Kettner Boulevard, San Diego, CA 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



EXHIBIT Q 

LIMITED VEHICULAR ACCESS EASEMENT 

For valuable consideration, Museum of Contemporary Art, San "biego, a 
California non-profit public benefit corporation (Museum) does hereby grant to National 
Rail Passenger Corporation, a corporation organized and existing under National Rail 
Service Act and the laws of the District of Columbia (Amtrak) a non-exclusive easement 
(for so long as Amtrak occupies space as a tenant in the New Museum Building 
constructed or to be constructed on Parcel 4 of Parcel Map No. 19378, in the City of San 
Diego, County of San Diego, State of California, filed in the Office of the County 
Recorder of San Diego County, November 26,2003 as File No. 2003-1418318 of Official 
Records, together with that portion of Kettner Boulevard (formerly Arctic Street) as said 
street is dedicated to Public use, which upon closing would revert, by operation of law, to 
the above described land (Parcel 4)) over and across the northerly eight feet of Parcel 4 
for the purpose of ingress and egress to the space occupied by Amtrak in the New 
Museum Building to and from Kettner Avenue, subject to the following limitations: 

(1) No vehicle (other than an emergency vehicle such as a fire truck) using 
such vehicular ingress and egress shall be larger than nine feet wide and twenty-two feet 
long; 

(2) The Public Pedesttian Pathway (the combined 16 feet thereof, which 
includes the southerly 8 feet of the property adjacent to the northerly boundary of Parcel 
4) shall be maintained by Amtrak (such maintenance to include sweeping, removal of 
trash, and cleaning [including the removal of oil stains and the like], repairing and 
reconstructing the pavers as necessary to keep the pathway in a safe, clean and attractive 
condition); and 

(3) No vehicle may be parked, and nothing can be stored or maintained 
(including without limitation trash containers) on any pol1ion of the Public Pedestrian 
Pathway (or any portion of the landscaped area south of the Public Pedestrian Pathway, 
or the arcade to the east of the Premises (which is an area owned by Museum which it 
intends to use primarily for sculpture, art exhibitions and other Museum purposes). 

With the exception that this Limited Vehicular Access Easement ("Easement") shall in no 
event be construed to require indemnification by Amtrak to a greater extent than 
permitted by the laws and the public policy of the State of Califomia or any applicable 
Federal law, and without in any manner limiting Museum's rights and remedies in the 
event of a breach of this Easement, Amtrak agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold 
hatmless Museum, the City of San Diego, a municipal corporation (City), and the 
Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Diego (Agency), and their respective officers, 
agents, employees, affiliated parent and subsidiary companies, lenders, members, 
managers, successors and assigns (individually, "Indemnified Party" and collectively the 
"Indemnified Parties") from and against any and all claims. causes of action, liabilities, 
losses, costs, damages and/or expenses in law or equity (including, without limitation, 
attorneys' fees and expenses) of every kind and nature whatsoever (collectively, 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



"Claims") arising out of or in connection with this Easement, and any and all access and 
operations permitted hereunder, provided that the Claim (i) is based upon or--relating to 
personal or bodily injury to or death of any person or persons, or damage to or loss of 
property of any kind whatsoever, including, without limitation, loss of use thereof, or the 
violation of any California law or regulation or· any Federal law, and (ii) is caused in 
whole or in part by any act or omission to act or any willful misconduct by Amtrak, 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by Amtrak or anyone for whose acts Amtrak may 
be liable, regardless of whether such injury, death or damage is caused or contributed to 
by any act or omission to act by any Indenmified Party, anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by any Indenmified Party, or anyone for whose acts any Indemnified Party 
may be liable. Amtrak's obligation to indenmify and hold the Indemnified Parties 
harmless shall apply with full force and effect regardless of any active and/or passive 
negligent act or omission by any Indemnified Party or its agents or employees and 
regardless of any concurrent negligence, whether active or passive, primary or secondary, 
by any Indemnified Party, by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any Indemnified 
Party, or by anyone for whose acts any Indemnified Party may be liable. However, 
Amtrak shall have no obligation to indemnify any Indemni lied Party against liability for 
death, injury or damage or other loss, damage or expense arising solely from the 
negligence or willful misconduct of such Indemnified Party. 

Dated: _______ , 2004 MUSEUM: 

MUSEUJV! OF CONTEMPORARY ART, 
SAN DIEGO, a California non-profit public 
benefit corporation 

By: ___________ _ 

Name: -------------
Title: -------------

AMTRAK: 

NATIONAL RAIL PASSENGER 
CORPORA T!ON, a corporation organized 
and existing under National Rail Passenger 
Service Act and the laws of District of 
Columbia 

By: --------------

0:\5\5950\53445\Trans\Exhibits to i\l[useum Trans agrmt\Exhibit R.doc 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



\:" ·• 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF 

THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO 

RESOLUTION NUMBER R-

ADOPTED ON JUN 2 9 2004 

RESOLUTION OF THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF 
THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO APPROVING THE 
REPLACEMENT TRANSFER AGREEMENT AND ESCROW 
INSTRUCTIONS BETWEEN THE REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO, THE CITY OF SAN 
DIEGO, CA TELL US DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AND 
MUSEUM OF CONTEMPORARY ART, SAN DIEGO. 

(RA-2004-138) 

WHEREAS, the Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Diego [Agency] is engaged 

in activities necessary to carry out and implement the Redevelopment Plan for the Centre City 

Redevelopment Project [Project]; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency and Catellus Development Corporation [Catellus] have entered 

into the Amended and Restated Owner Participation Agreement dated April 9, 1993, the First 

Implementation Agreement to Owner Participation Agreement dated March 5, 1996, the Second 

Implementation Agreement to Owner Participation Agreement dated December 4, 1997, and the 

Third Implementation Agreement dated February 10,2003 [the Agreement] and propose to enter 

into a Fourth Implementation Agreement to Owner Participation Agreement for the development 

of certain property located in the Columbia Sub Area of the Centre City Redevelopment Project 

area as described in the Agreement [Site]: and 

WHEREAS, the Third Implementation Agreement and Transfer Agreement and Escrow 

Instructions authorized by the Agency concurrently with the Third Implementation Agreement 

-PAGEl OF 3-

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



(but not executed by the Agency) contemplated the transfer of the Baggage Building and the 

REA property within the site to the City of San Diego; and 

' 

WHEREAS, the Agreement provides that Catellus shall transfer the Baggage Building to 

the City or to any governmental agency or non-profit entity d~signated by the City and the City 

now desires to designate the Museum of Contemporary Art, San Diego [Designee] as transferee 

instead of the City of San Diego; and 

WHEREAS, in order to carry out and implement such Redevelopment Plan, and the 

Agreement, the Agency proposes to enter into a replacement Transfer Agreement and Escrow 

Instructions with the City of San Diego, Catellus and the Museum of Contemporary Art, San 

Diego, in order to effectuate Catellus' obligation to transfer the Baggage Building within the Site 

to the Designee of the City of San Diego; and; 

WHEREAS, Catellus also proposes to transfer the REA property within the Site to the 

Designee of the City of San Diego; and 

WHEREAS, Catellus has submitted to the Agency copies of the proposed replacement 

Transfer Agreement and Escrow Instructions in a form desired by Catellus; and 

WHEREAS, Centre City Development Corporation, Inc., has reviewed and discussed the 

proposed replacement Transfer Agreement and Escrow Instructions and has recommended that 

the Agency enter into such Transfer Agreement and Escrow Instructions; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency has duly considered all terms and conditions of the proposed 

Transfer Agreement and Escrow Instructions and believes that the transfer of the Baggage 

Building and the REA property within the Site to Designee pursuant to the terms of the 

replacement Transfer Agreement and Escro\v Instructions are in the best interests of the City and 

-PAGE 2 OF 3-

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



the health, safety, morals and welfare of its residents, and in accord with the public purposes and 

provisions of applicable State and local law and requirements; NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Diego, as follows: 

I. That the terms and conditions of the proposed replacement Transfer Agreement 

and Escrow Instructions are approved. 

2. That the Executive Director of the Agency, or his designee, is authorized to 

execute for and on behalf of the Agency the replacement Transfer Agreement and Escrow 

Instructions. A copy of the replacement Transfer Agreement and Escrow Instructions is on file 

in the office of the Secretary to the Agency as Document No. 03799-

3. That the Executive Director of the Agency, or his designee, is authorized on 

behalf of the Agency, to sign all documents necessary and appropriate to carry out and 

implement the replacement Transfer Agreement and Escrow Instructions. 

APPROVED: CASEY GWINN, General Counsel 

By 
Elisa A. Cusato 
Deputy Counsel 

EAC:ai 
06/09/04 
Or.Dept:CCDC 
Aud.Cert:nla 
RA-2004-138 
Council:nla 

-PAGE 3 OF 3-

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



c' 

Passed and adopted by The Redevelopment Agency of The City of San Diego JUN 2 9 2004 
by the following vote: 

Members Yeas Nays Not Present Ineligible 

Scott Peters / 0 0 0 

Michael Zucchet r/ 0 0 0 

Toni Atkins c/ 0 0 0 

Charles Lewis cr' 0 0 c•.o 

Brian Maienschein c/ 0 0 0 

Donna Frye ~ 0 0 0 

Jim Madaffer / 0 0 0 

Ralph Inzunza ~ 0 0 0 

Chair Murphy r/ 0 0 0 

AUTHENTICATED BY: 

DICK MURPHY 
Choir ofThe Redevelopment Agency of The City of San Diego, California 

CHARLES G. ABDELNOUR 
Seer 

(Seal) By 

C/· / 

?..F-.-1473 {11/D:;.) 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



r 

RESOLUTION NUMBER R- ?, ~ ~ 4 0 6 

ADOPTED ON --,-.::..:JU::_:._N:_2_9--,:20--=--04.:_ 

A RESOLUTION OF COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO 
APPROVING THE REPLACEMENT TRANSFER 
AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO, THE REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO, CATELLUS 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AND THE MUSEUM OF 
CONTEMPORARY ART, SAN DIEGO. 

(R-2004-1370) 

WHEREAS, in 1993 the City and Agency executed an Amended and Restated 

Development Agreement and an Amended and Restated Owner Participation Agreement, 

respectively, with Catellus which revised development entitlements first granted in 1983 to 

Catellus's predecessor for the approximately 17 acres in the environs of the Santa Fe Depot. The 

1993 Agreements revised the 1983 Agreements to accommodate transit related needs ofMTDB 

and NCTD and updated the development entitlements to bring them into conformance with the 

Centre City Community Plan adopted in 1992; and 

WHEREAS, under the terms of the Catellus Development/Owner Participation . 
Agreements, as amended over time, Catellus was required, by December 7, 2003, to seismically 

retrofit and complete base building improvements to the Baggage Building and to then transfer 

title to the Baggage Building to the City or to any governmental agency or non profit entity 

designated by the City for use as a museum or other cultural use. Catellus was obligated to 

install newcurb,"gutter, sidewalks, etc. on the entire Kettner frontage; and 

WHEREAS, the transfer of the Baggage Building for a cultural use at a minimum must 

include the building itself, its colonnade, the land under the building and the colonnade, an 

-PAGE 1 OF 3-

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



,. 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



access easement through the Breezeway connecting the Baggage Building to the Depot itself, 

and street frontage along Kettner Boulevard for the length of the Baggage Building; and 

WHEREAS, Catellus's obligations for the level of improvements to the Baggage . - . . 

Building include seismic retrofit for cultural use, and "shell improvements" including stub out of 
! 

electricity, water, sewer and telephone to the interior; structurally sound walls and roof; curb, 

gutter and sidewalk improvements on the Kettner frontage; and repair of the facade. Obligations 

of the user of the Baggage Building, therefore, would be typical tenant improvements and 

specialized improvements for the new use; and 

WHEREAS, on December 10, 2002, the City Council authorized a Transfer Agreement 

and Escrow Instructions with the City of San Diego, Catellus and the Museum of Contemporary 

Art, San Diego providing for the transfer for the Baggage Building (and Catellus' transfer of the 

REA property within the site) to the City of San Diego and the City's lease of the properties to 

the Museum of Contemporary Art, San Diego for a term ending July 31, 2091; and 

WHEREAS, such Transfer Agreement and Escrow Instructions has not been executed by 
.. 

the parties and the City of San Diego now desires to designate the Museum of Contemporary 

Art, San Diego [Designee] as transferee of the properties instead of the City of San Diego; and 

WHEREAS, Catellus has submitted to the City copies of a proposed replacement 

Transfer Agreement and Escrow Instructions providing for the transfer of the Baggage Building 

and REA property to Designee and providing for a City option for the City to acquire the 

properties at no cost on or after July 31, 2091, or earlier in the event of a default by Designee; · 

and 

-PAGE2 OF 3- ((--299406 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



' ' 

WHEREAS, City staff has reviewed the proposed replacement Transfer Agreement and 

Escrow Instructions and recommends that the City enter into a replacement Transfer Agreement 

and Escrow Instructions; NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IJ RESOLVED~ by the Council ofthe City of San Diego, as follows: j 

1. That the terms and conditions of the proposed replacement Transfer Agreement 

and Escrow Instructions are approved. 

2. That the City Manager, or his designee, is authorized to execute for and on behalf 

of the City the replacement Transfer Agreement and Escrow Instructions. A copy of the 

replacement Transfer Agreement and Escrow Instructions is on file in the office of the City Clerk 

as DocumentNo~2 9 9 406 

3. That the City Manager, or his designee, is authorized on behalf of the City, to sign 

all documents necessary and appropriate to carry out and implement the replacement Transfer 

Agreement and Escrow Instructions. 

APPROVED: CASEY GWINN, City Attome.;y 

By --~·a,~ 
Elisa A. Cusato 
Deputy City Attorney 

EIC:ai 
06109104. 
Or.Dept: CCDC 
R-2004-1370 

-PAGE3 OF3-

{& 299406 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



' ;' 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Passed and adopted by the Council of San Diego on June 29, 2004 
the following vote: 

by 

YEAS: PETERS, ZUCCHET, ATKINS, LEWIS, MAIENSCHEIN, FRYE, 
MADAFFER, INZUNZA, MAYOR MURPHY. 

NAYS: NONE. 

NOT PRESENT: NONE. / 
I 

AUTHENTICATED BY: 

DICK MURPHY 
Mayor of The City of San Diego, California 

CHARLES G. ABDELNOUR 
City Clerk of The City of San Diego, California 

(SEAL) 

By:. __ ....!M~ar!...lvwA~·~C""e"-~p~e~d!!.a ___ , Deputy 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of 

RESOLUTION NO. R- 299406 , passed and adopted by the 

Council of The City of San Diego, California on~__,J!.!u!!!n!!!.e~2z9,_,2~0!.!!0~4 ________ , 

CHARLES G. ABDELNOUR 
City Clerk of The City of Sim Diego, California 

(SEAL) 

By: ~L(tp~ fDeputy 
M A. Cepeda 

Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Attachment C 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



.. i-· 

____ s_ep~t_e_m_b_e_r_8 ____ ,2006 

The City of San Diego 
Office of the City Clerk 
San Diego, California 92101 

Redevelopment Agency of 
The City of San Diego 
600 B Street, Fourth Floor 
San Diego, California 9210 1 

Re: Amtrak Lease and First Amendment to Amtrak Lease 
Between Museum of Contemporary Art, San Diego, and 
National Railroad Passenger Corporation 

Pursuant to Section 1.16 (e) and Section 2.1.3 of that certain Transfer Agreement and 
Escrow Instructions made as of July 2, 2004, among Catellus Operating Limited 
Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership, as successor by merger to Catellus 
Development Corporation, a Delaware Corporation, the City of San Diego, a municipal 
corporation of the State of California, the Redevelopment Agency of the City of San 
Diego, a public body corporate and politic of the State of California, the Museum of 
Contemporary Art, San Diego, a California non-profit public benefit corporation 
(Museum), and Commonwealth Land Title Company, the undersigned, Museum and 
National Railroad Passenger Corporation, a corporation organized and existing under 
National Rail Passenger Service Act and the laws of District of Columbia (Amtrak), 
hereby submit for your approval: (1) a duplicate original of Amtrak Lease executed as of 
February 1, 2006, between Museum and Amtrak, and (2) a copy of the First Amendment 
to Amtrak Lease. 

MUSEUM: 

MUSEUM OF CONTEMPORARY ART, SAN DIEGO, 
a California non-profit public benefit corporation 

[Signatures continued on next page] 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



."- { ,• ( 

AMTRAK: 

NATIONAL RAILROAD PASSENGER CORPORATION, 
a corporation organized and existing under National Rail 
Passenger Service Act and the laws of District of Columbia 

THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY APPROVE AND CONSENT 
to the attached Lease and First Amendment to Amtrak Lease, and 
City agrees that City shall honor and be bound by the terms of the 
Lease, as amended, if City becomes the owner of the new museum 
building (the Copley Building) during the Lease term. 

CITY OF SAN DIEGO, a municipal corporation 
of the State of California 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF 
SAN DIEGO, a public body corporate and politic of 
the State of California 

0:\5\5950\53445\Trans\Approval Letter to City and Agency-2.doc 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



FIRSTA:MENDMENT-TO-AMTRAKLEASE 

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO AMTRAK LEASE (First Amendment) is made as of 
September 8 , 2006, between the Museum of Contemporary Art, San Diego, a California non­

profit public benefit corporation ("Museum"), and National Railroad Passenger Corporation, a 
corporation organized and existing under National Rail Passenger Service Act and the laws of 
District of Columbia ("Amtrak"), who agree as follows: 

I. This First Amendment is made and entered into with reference to the following 
facts and circumstances: 

a. Amtrak and Museum are parties to that certain Amtrak Lease executed as 
of February I, 2006 ("Lease"), pursuant to which Museum has leased to Amtrak certain 
space in the Copley Building (currently under construction) (the "Premises") in San 
Diego, California. The Lease (including the exhibits attached thereto) is attached hereto 
as Exhibit A and made a part hereof. 

b. The Lease was entered into prior to obtaining the approval of The City of 
San Diego, a municipal corporation of the State of California (City), and the 
Redevelopment Agency of The City of San Diego, a public body corporate and politic of 
the State of California (Agency), as required by Section 1.16 (e) and Section 2.1.3 of the 
Transfer Agreement and Escrow Instructions made as of July 2, 2004, among Catellus 
Operating Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership, as successor by merger to 
Catellus Development Corporation, a Delaware Corporation, City, Agency, Museum, and 
Commonwealth Land Title Company (Transfer Agreement). 

c. The City and Agency have requested revisions to the Lease to meet the 
requirements of the Transfer Agreement, and the Museum and Amtrak have agreed to 
make those revisions which are embodied in this First Amendment. This First 
Amendment and Lease have been submitted for City and Agency approval and by that 
letter attached hereto as Exhibit B, the City and Agency have approved this First 
Amendment and Lease. 

d. This First Amendment is entered into by the Museum and Amtrak 
effective as of the date set forth above, and duplicate originals of the Lease and this First 
Amendment shall be provided to the City and Agency. Capitalized terms used herein 
which are not defined in this First Amendment shall have the definitions as set forth in 
the Lease. 

2. The Lease is hereby amended in the following particulars only: 

a. Paragraph I is deleted in its entirety and is replaced with the following: 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



I. LEASE OF PREMISES 

Museum hereby leases the Premises, as of the date of substantial 
completion ("Substantial Completion") of the Copley Building ("Term Start 
Date"), to Amtrak, and Amtrak leases the Premises from Museum, upon the 
provisions and conditions set forth herein. Substantial Completion shall occur 
when Museum provides to Amtrak a certificate of occupancy (or other 
appropriate governmental permission for occupancy of the Premises) plus a 
certification from Museum's engineer or architect certifying to Amtrak that the 
Premises have been substantially completed pursuant to the Plans, and Amtrak, in 
its sole discretion, determines that the Premises are ready for Amtrak's "Use", as 
hereinafter defined, pursuant to the Plans. The Parties acknowledge that Amtrak 
has reviewed and approved the attached Plans, Exhibit "III" and Exhibit "IIIA", 
and that any amendment or modification, other than insignificant ones, to such 
Plans or Exhibits which affect the Premises must be approved by Amtrak. In 
addition, Amtrak shall have a non-exclusive right with Museum to access 
Museum's loading area in the Copley Building ("Loading Area") but not for its 
garbage removal service (which can be accomplished only through the arcade 
area). Amtrak shall not permit parking, storage, engine idling, or garbage in the 
Loading Area. Amtralc's access to the Museum Loading Area for other purposes 
will be reasonably accommodated by the Museum by prior arrangement with the 
Museum, or by Museum's successors in interest by prior arrangement with such 
successor. The Museum shall not have access to the Premises, but is entitled to 
vehicular access to the "Public Pedestrian Pathway", as hereinafter defined, for 
purposes related to maintenance of the arcade and outdoor sculpture. 

b. Paragraph 4 is deleted in its entirety and is replaced with the following: 

4. USE 

The Premises shall be used for any lawful purpose reasonably 
related to the operation of a railroad and Amtralc' s business operations, including 
but not limited to storage, maintenance, and related railroad purposes ("Use"), and 
for no other use without the prior written consent of Museum. Amtrak shall not 
do or permit anything to be done which will invalidate or increase the cost of any 
fire, extended coverage, fme arts insurance, or other insurance policy covering the 
Copley Building or Museum's property (or art in the possession of Museum by 
reason of an art Joan agreement or similar arrangements) located therein. Amtrak 
shall not do or permit anything to be done in or about the Premises which in any 
way unreasonably interferes with the use by the Museum or the remainder of the 
Copley Building as a museum and related uses (which includes, without 
limitation, the generation of a level of noise, odors, or vibrations incompatible 
with the operation of a museum). The 22' area immediately north of the Copley 
Building owned by Museum is intended to be improved by the City or Agency 
with the southerly 14' thereof to be a landscaped and paved area (generally as 
shown in Exhibit K to the Transfer Agreement, a copy of which is also attached 

2 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025

sanchez
Highlight

sanchez
Highlight



-· 

hereto as Exhibit K), and with the northerly 8' thereof (in conjunction with the 
southerly 8' of the adjacent owner's property, if such arrangements can be made) 
to be a public pedestrian pathway (such reference to include all 16' as indicated) 
("Public Pedestrian Pathway"). Agency has informed Museum that it is uncertain 
as to when the contemplated Public Pedestrian Pathway can or will be 
constructed, so Museum will install a driveway and walkway reasonably adjacent 
to the Copley Building to be utilized by Museum and Amtrak (and the public for 
pedestrian purposes); such driveway and walkway (Driveway) shall be deemed to 
and shall constitute the Public Pedestrian Pathway until the one desired by 
Agency, as above described, is constructed. The Driveway or Public Pedestrian 
Pathway can be utilized by Amtrak for vehicular ingress and egress consistent 
with the following: (I) no vehicle (other than an emergency vehicle such as a fire 
truck) using such vehicular ingress and egress shall be larger than nine feet wide 
and twenty-two feet long; (2) the Driveway or Public Pedestrian Pathway shall be 
maintained by Amtrak with respect to sweeping; removal of trash; cleaning 
(which shall include only the removal of oil stains and the like caused by 
Amtrak's vehicles) and repairing and reconstructing the pavers as necessary and 
only if required due to use by Amtrak's vehicles (with the other aspects of 
maintenance of the Driveway or Public Pedestrian Pathway to be the 
responsibility of Museum or MTDB); and (3) no vehicle may be parked, and 
nothing can be stored or maintained (including without limitation trash 
containers) on any portion of the Driveway or Public Pedestrian Pathway (or any 
portion of the landscaped area south of the Driveway or Public Pedestrian 
Pathway, or the arcade to the east of the Premises (which is an area owned by 
Museum which it intends to use primarily for sculpture, art exhibitions and other 
Museum purposes). Amtrak and Museum agree that the purpose of their 
respective performance of their maintenance obligations is to maintain the 
Driveway or Public Pedestrian Pathway in a safe, clean, and attractive condition. 
The Driveway or Public Pedestrian Pathway may be utilized by Museum for 
vehicular ingress or egress, and either or both may be constructed (if Museum so 
elects) in such manner as to preclude (with posts or other barriers) vehicular 
traffic other than Museum's or Amtrak's, providing that Museum shall indemnifY 
Amtrak and pay for all damage to property or persons, including cleaning (which 
shall include the removal of oil stains and the like caused by Museum's vehicles) 
and repairing and reconstructing the pavers, due to Museum's use of the 
Driveway or Public Pedestrian Pathway. Museum and Amtrak shall, to the extent 
necessary, work out a lock or other mechanism arrangement to permit Amtrak to 
have temporary access for vehicular ingress and egress consistent with the 
foregoing, and Amtrak shall have priority (to the extent necessary) to use the 
Driveway or Public Pedestrian Pathway for Amtrak's regularly scheduled trash 
pick-up. No such posts or other barriers may be installed without the prior written 
consent of City. Amtrak acknowledges that the exact configuration of the Public 
Pedestrian Pathway may later differ from that described by the foregoing 
provisions, and that for an undetermined period of time the Driveway will be the 
only means of such access. 

3 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025

sanchez
Highlight

sanchez
Highlight

sanchez
Highlight



------------------------------------------------~··H--------------------------
e. The incorrect reference (1 O.a Tin line three of paragraph 

9.A.(ii)) is corrected to read "pursuant to this subsection 9.A.(ii) ... " 

d. Subparagraph 9.B. is deleted. 

e. Paragraph 14. Exhibit "I" is corrected as follows: 

Exhibit "I"- Jacobs Building and REA Site Legal 
Description. 

3. Except as expressly amended herein, the Lease shall remain in full force 
and effect. In the event of any inconsistencies between the provisions and conditions of 
the Lease and this First Amendment, the provisions and conditions of this First 
Amendment shall govern. 

MUSEUM: 

MUSEUM OF CONTEMPORARY ART, SAN DIEGO, 
a Califi ·a non-profit public benefit corporation 

AMTRAK: 

NATIONAL RAILROAD PASSENGER CORPORATION, 
a corporation organized and existing under National Rail 
Passenger Service Act and the laws of District of Columbia 

By:~ /B 
Wi11iam fi! Sf~ 
Acting Vice President Rea1 Estate Deve1opment 

4 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



ORIGINAL 
AMTRAK LEASE 

This Amtrak Lease ("Lease") is executed as of February 1, 2006 ("Effective Date"), 

between the Museum of Contemporary Art, San Diego, a California non-profit public benefit 

corporation ("Museum") and National Railroad Passenger Corporation, a corporation organized 

and existing under National Rail Passenger Service Act and the laws of District of Columbia 

("Amtrak"), who agree as follows: 

RECITALS 

A. On July 29, 2004, Museum acquired, pursuant to a Grant Deed recorded in the 

Official Records of the San Diego County Recorder as Document No. 2004-0711683 (as 

provided in the Transfer Agreement and Escrow Instructions ("Transfer Agreement") dated July 

1, 2004 by and between Catellus Operating Limited Partnership, a Delaware corporation 

("Catellus"), the City of San Diego, a municipal corporation of the State of California ("City''), 

the Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Diego, a public body corporate and politic of the 

State of California ("Agency"), and Museum,) the real property as set forth in Exhibit "I", 

attached hereto and made a part hereof. The real property consists of the existing baggage 

building ("Jacobs Building") located adjacent to the railway depot in San Diego, California and 

a lot, adjacent to and located north of the Jacobs Building commonly known as the "REA Site". 

Museurp. is constructed and will thereafter operate, for uses ancillary to a museum (which 

Museum will be primarily located in the J ~cobs Building), a building on the REA Site ("Copley 

Building"). The legal description of the REA Site is Parcel 4 of Parcel Map No. 19378 filed in 

the Official Records of San Diego County, California on November 26, 2003 as File No. 2003-

AMTRAK LEASE 3-17-06 (2).DOC 1 EXHffilTA 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



1418318; said Parcel4, on which the Copley Building will be located, includes a portion of the 

Arcade which runs parallel to the tracks located adjacent to Parcel4. 

B. The Copley Building shall contain approximately 13,563 square feet. 

C. Museum desires to let and Amtrak desires to lease for its exclusive use a portion 

of the Copley Building, such portion to consist of approximately 2,755 square feet as set forth in 

Exhibit "II" attached hereto and made a part hereof ("Premises"). 

D. The Copley Building shall be constructed in accordance with plans and 

specifications prepared for Museum and set forth on Exhibit "ill" and Exhibit "ill A" attached 

hereto and made a part hereof ("Plans") and within the time period designated by Museum 

("Construction Schedule"), also set forth on Exhibit ill. Museum shall be required to provide at 

its own cost and expense within the Premises only such improvements and finish items as are so 

designated in the Plans, which, among other things, will include separate utility services for the 

Premises. 

1. LEASE OF PREMISES 

Museum hereby leases the Premises, as of the date of substantial completion 

("Substantial Completion") of the Copley Building ("Term Start Date"), to Amtrak, and Amtrak 

leases the Premises from Museum, upon the provisions and conditions set forth herein. 

Substantial Completion shall occur when Museum provides to Amtrak a certificate of occupancy 

(or other appropriate governmental permission for occupancy of the Premises) plus a 

certification from Museum's engineer or architect certifying to Amtrak that the Premises has 

been substantially completed pursuant to the Plans and Amtrak, in its sole discretion, determines 

that the Premises are ready for Amtrak's "Use", as herein after defined, pursuant to the Plans. 

AMTRAK LEASE 3-17-06 (2).DOC 2 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



The Parties acknowledge that Amtrak has reviewed and approved the attached Plans, Exhibit III 

and Exhibit III A, and that any amendment or modification, other than insignificant ones, to such 

Plans or Exhibits which affect the Premises must be approved by Amtrak. In addition, Amtrak 

shall have a non-exclusive right with Museum to access Museum's loading area in the Copley 

Building ("Loading Area") but not for its garbage removal service (which can be accomplished 

only through the arcade area). Amtrak shall. not permit parking, storage, engine idling, or 

garbage in the Loading Area. Amtrak's access to the Museum Loading Area for other purposes 

will be reasonably accommodated by the Museum by prior arrangement with the Museum. If at 

anytime the Copley Building is assigned, leased, subleased, sold or in any other manner 

transferred or used by any other entity or party other than the Museum, Amtrak shall have 

priority use of the Loading Area. The Museum shall not have access to the Premises, but is 

entitled to vehicular access to the "Public Pedestrian Pathway'', as herein after defined, for 

purposes related to maintenance of the arcade and outdoor sculpture. 

2. TERM 

The term of this Lease ("Term") shall commence on the Term Start Date, which is 

anticipated to be March 1, 2007, and expire on July 31, 2091 ("Expiration Date"), but the Lease 

is effective as of the Effective Date. At any time during the Term, Amtrak may by the giving of 

written notice to Museum, elect to terminate the Lease ninety (90) days after the giving of such 

notice ("Early Termination"). In the event of an Early Termination, except as provided in 

Paragraph 9, Amtrak shall not be entitled to the return of any amounts paid to Museum. 

3. FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS OF AMTRAK 

A. Amtrak shall pay $850,000 to Museum as Amtrak's agreed share of the costs of 

construction of the Copley Building as follows: After the construction commences, Museum 

AMTRAK LEASE 3-17-06 (2).DOC 3 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025

sanchez
Highlight



shall by the tenth of the following month send to Amtrak a certified statement (signed by an 

officer or executive of Museum) setting forth the total cost of construction and the dollar value of 

the construction work completed within the prior month. The certified statement shall show the 

total construction completed within the prior month, as a percentage of $850,000. Amtrak shall 

be required to pay the amount so computed to Museum within thirty days after the certified 

statement is sent to Amtrak. In no event shall the total of all such payments requested of Amtrak 

exceed $850,000. 

B. If Amtrak fails to make any payment to Museum in accordance with the schedule 

described in 3.A. above, then Amtrak shall be in default of this Lease. 

C. Amtrak and Museum have agreed that Museum shall install during the 

construction of the Copley Building the modifications specified on Exhibit IV, for an agreed cost 

(in addition to the amounts specified in Paragraph 3.A) not to exceed $87,228.40 (but not to be 

less than $79,848.95, the difference depending on the actual amount of the contingency which is 

needed), which shall be paid to Museum when such modifications ha:ve been installed. 

4. USE 

The Premises shall be used for any lawful purpose reasonably related to the operation of a 

railroad and Amtrak's business operations, including but not limited to storage, maintenance, and 

related railroad purposes ("Use"), and for no other use without the prior written consent of 

Museum. Amtrak shall not do or permit anything to be done which will invalidate or increase 

the cost of any fire, extended coverage, fme arts insurance, or other insurance policy covering the 

Copley Building or Museum's property (or art in the possession of Museum by reason of an art 

loan agreement or similar arrangements) located therein. Amtrak shall not do or permit anything 

AMTRAK LEASE 3-17.06 (2).DOC 4 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



to be done in or about tbe Premises which in any way unreasonably interferes with the use by tbe 

Museum or the remainder of the Copley Building as a museum and related uses (which includes, 

without limitation, the generation of a level of noise, odors, or vibrations incompatible witb the 

operation of a museum). The 22' area immediately nortb of the Copley Building owned by 

Museum is intended to be improved by the City or Agency with the southerly 14' tbereofto be a 

landscaped and paved area (generally as shown in Exhibit K to tbe Transfer Agreement, a copy 

of which is also attached hereto as Exhibit K), and with the northerly 8' tbereof (in conjunction 

with the southerly 8' of the adjacent owner's property, if such arrangements can be made) to be a 

public pedestrian pathway (such reference to include all 16' as indicated) ("Public Pedestrian 

Patbway''). Agency has informed Museum that it is uncertain as to when the contemplated 

Public Pedestrian Pathway can or will be constructed, so Museum will install a driveway and 

walkway reasonably adjacent to the Copley Building to be utilized by Museum and Amtrak (and 

the public for pedestrian purposes); such driveway and walkway (Driveway) shall be deemed to 

and shall constitute the Public Pedestrian Patbway until the one desired by Agency, as above 

described, is constructed. The Driveway or Public Pedestrian Pathway can be utilized by Amtrak 

for vehicular ingress and egress consistent with tbe following: (1) no vehicle (other tban an 

emergency vehicle such as a fire truck) using such vehicular ingress and egress shall be larger 

tban nine feet wide and twenty-two feet long; (2) tbe Driveway or Public Pedestrian Patbway 

shall be maintained by Amtrak with respect to sweeping; removal of trash; cleaning (which shall 

include only tbe removal of oil stains and the like caused by Amtrak's vehicles) and repairing 

and reconstructing the pavers as necessary and only if required due to use by Amtrak's vehicles 

(with tbe otber aspects of maintenance of the Driveway or Public Pedestrian Patbway to be tbe 

responsibility of Museum or MTDB); and (3) no vehicle may be parked, and notbing can be 

AMTRAK LEASE 3·17 ·06 (2).DOC 5 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025

sanchez
Highlight

sanchez
Highlight

sanchez
Highlight

sanchez
Underline

sanchez
Highlight



stored or maintained (including without limitation trash containers) on any portion of the 

Driveway or Public Pedestrian Pathway (or any portion of the landscaped area south of the 

Driveway or Public Pedestrian Pathway, or the arcade to the east of the Premises (which is an 

area owned by Museum which it intends to use primarily for sculpture, art exhibitions and other 

Museum purposes). The Driveway or Public Pedestrian Pathway may be utilized by Museum 

for vehicular ingress or egress, and either or both may be constructed (if Museum so elects) in 

such manner as to preclude (with posts or other barriers) vehicular traffic other than Museum's 

or Amtrak;s, providing that Museum shall indemnify Amtrak and pay for all damage to property 

or persons, including cleaning (which shall include the removal of oil stains and the like caused 

by Museum's vehicles) and repairing and reconstructing the pavers, due to Museum's use of the 

Driveway or Public Pedestrian Pathway. Museum and Amtrak shall, to the extent necessary, 

work out a lock or other mechanism arrangement to permit Amtrak to have temporary access for 

vehicular ingress and egress consistent with the foregoing, and Amtrak shall have priority (to the 

extent necessary) to use the Driveway or Public Pedestrian Pathway for Amtrak's regularly 

scheduled trash pick-up. Amtrak acknowledges that the exact configuration of the Public 

Pedestrian Pathway may later differ from that described by the foregoing provisions, and that for 

an undetermined period of time the Driveway will be the only means of such access. 

5. UTILITIES, SERVICES, MAINTENANCE AND CONSTRUCTION 

A. Amtrak shall pay for all utilities and services for the Premises commencing on the 

Term Start Date; Museum will arrange for same to be separately metered. Museum shall have 

no obligations with respect thereto, except to provide the services to the Premises as required by 

the Plans. 

AMTRAK LEASE 3-17.06 (2).DOC 6 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025

sanchez
Underline

sanchez
Highlight



B. With respect to the Copley Building Amtrak shall only be required to maintain the 

interior of the Premises. Museum shall maintain the remainder of the Copley Building including 

without limitation the roof, windows, structural elements, exterior walls, plumbing, drainage, and 

sewage systems, and the loading area. If Museum does not maintain the Copley Building as 

required by this Section and such lack of maintenance materially affects the Premises, Amtrak 

may, but shall not be obligated to (and only after giving thirty (30) days notice to Museum of its 

intention to do so and such maintenance not being accomplished by Museum within such thirty 

(30) day period), perfonn such maintenance for the Copley Building and bill Museum for all 

costs associated with such maintenance as long a such costs do not exceed $5,000.. Museum 

shall reimburse Amtrak with in thirty (30) days of receipt of the bill. 

6. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

A. This Lease is made upon the express condition that Museum shall have no 

liability for claims, causes of action, liabilities, losses, costs, damages and! or expenses in law or 

equity (including, without limitation, attorneys' fees and expenses) of any kind or nature 

whatsoever (collectively, "Claims") by reason of any injury to any person or property arising out 

of or in ·anyway connected with the Premises except those Claims that are caused by the 

negligence or willful misconduct of, or violation of any law or ordinance by Museum or any 

contractor, subcontractor, employee, guest or invitee of Museum, by reason of any injury to any 

person or property of any kind arising out of or in any way connected with the Premises, or their 

use or occupancy, during the Term of this Lease or any extensions. Museum shall not be liable 

under any circumstances for consequential damages or damages or injury to Amtrak's business 

or potential business. 

AMTRAK LEASE 3-17-06 (2).DOC 7 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



B. This Lease is made upon the express condition that Amtrak shall have no liability 

for Claims by reason of any injury to any person or property of any kind arising out of or in any 

way connected with the Copley Building other than the Premises, and the Public Pedestrian 

Pathway when being used by Amtrak, except those Claims that are caused by the negligence or 

willful misconduct of Amtrak (or any of its employees or agents). Amtrak shall not be liable 

under any circumstances for consequential damages or damages or injury to Museum's business 

or potential business. Amtrak shall not be liable for damages or injuries to portions (including 

the loading area) of the Copley Building, other than the Premises, except those damages or 

injuries that are caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of Amtrak (or any of its 

employees or agents). Amtrak shall not be liable for the conduct of any visitor, passenger or 

invitee to the Premises, the Copley Building or the Public Pedestrian Pathway. 

7. INDEMNITY 

A. With the exception that this Lease shall in no event be construed to require 

indemnification by Amtrak to a greater extent than permitted by the laws and the public policy of 

the State of California or any applicable Federal law, and without in any manner limiting 

Museum's rights and remedies in the event of a breach of this Lease by Amtrak, Amtrak agrees 

to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Museum, City, and the Agency, and their respective 

officers, agents, employees, affiliated parent and subsidiary companies, lenders, members, 

managers, successors and assigns (individually, "Indemnified Party'' and collectively the 

"Indemnified Parties") from and against any and all Claims arising out of or in connection with 

this Lease, the Premises (including the loading area) the Public Pedestrian Pathway, to the extent 

and only to the extent Amtrak is responsible pursuant to the Lease, provided that the Claim (i) is 

based upon or relating to bodily injury to or death of any person, or damage to or loss of property 

AMTRAK LEASE 3-17-06 (2).DOC 8 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



of any kind whatsoever, including, without limitation, loss of use thereof, and (ii) is caused by 

sole negligence or willful misconduct of an Amtrak employee or agent 

B. With the exception that this Lease shall in no event be construed to require 

indemnification by Museum to a greater extent than permitted by the laws and the public policy 

of the State of California or any applicable Federal law, and without in any manner limiting 

Amtrak's rights and remedies in the event of a breach of this Lease by Museum, Museum agrees 

to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Amtrak, City, and the Agency, and their respective 

officers, agents, employees, affiliated parent and subsidiary companies, lenders, members, 

managers, successors and assigns (individually, "Indemnified Party" and collectively the 

"Indemnified Parties") from and against any and all Claims arising out of or in connection with 

this Lease, the Premises (including the loading area) the Public Pedestrian Pathway, the 

landscaped areas, the arcade, or the Copley Building to the extent but only to the extent Museum 

is responsible pursuant to the Lease, provided that the Claim (i) is based upon or relating to 

bodily injury to or death of any person, or damage to or loss of property of any kind whatsoever, 

including, without limitation, loss of use thereof, and (ii) is caused by the negligence or willful 

misconduct of the Museum or any employee or agent of Museum. 

8. IMPROVEMENTS AND ALTERATIONS 

Except for construction of the Copley Building pursuant to the Plans, Museum has made 

no promise to alter or improve the Premises, except that Museum will require its general 

contractor to construct the Copley Building in accordance with the Plans and the Construction 

Schedule. As provided in 5.B. Amtrak shall only be required to maintain the interior of the 

Premises which shall be maintained in good condition and repair (normal wear and tear 

excepted) and shall not make any penetrations through the walls of the Premises. Amtrak will 

AMTRAK LEASE 3-17-06 (2).DOC 9 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



not cause the Premises (including, without limitation, the exterior of the Copley Building) to be 

damaged or defaced in any manner whatsoever (although Amtrak shall have the right to install 

one or more small signs for directional purposes only (if needed), with the design, size and 

location of such sign(s) to be subject to the reasonable approval of Museum), and Amtrak shall 

immediately repair any damage it solely causes to the Copley Building. Amtrak will return the 

Premises at the end of the Term in the same condition and repair as when Amtrak took 

possession, except for normal wear and tear, or destruction of the Premises because of an 

occurrence beyond Amtrak's control. 

9. DESTRUCTION OF PREMISES. EMINENT DOMAIN 

A. In the event of destruction or substantial damage to the Premises during the Term 

which renders the Premises unusable to Amtrak, Museum shall have the option of: 

(i) Museum shall notify Amtrak within thirty days after such damages or 

destruction of Museum's decision to rebuild the Copley Building including the Premises 

or declining to rebuild. During the 180-day repair or replacement period identified in 

Subparagraph A( iii) below, Amtrak shall have no obligation to: (1) pay any costs or 

expenses associated with the Premises required under this Lease; or (2) provide any 

services to the Premises required under this Lease. 

(ii) Declining to replace or rebuild, in which event Amtrak shall have the 

option of terminating this Lease by written notice. If Amtrak elects to terminate this 

Lease pursuant to this subsection lO.a. (ii) during the first fifteen (15) years of the Term 

and Museum receives casualty insurance proceeds related to the destruction of the Copley 

Building , then Museum shall pay to Amtrak, in full compensation for all amounts paid 

AMTRAK LEASE 3·17 .{)6 (2).DOC 10 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



by Amtrak hereunder, a portion of the insurance proceeds actually received by Museum 

related to the reconstruction of the Copley Building (and not related to the personal 

property, including art displayed or stored in the Copley Building ) equal to the amount 

paid by Amtrak hereunder as related to the cost of the construction of the Copley 

Building (e.g. if the cost of the Copley Building is $17,000,000 and Amtrak paid 

$850,000, then Amtrak would be entitled to received 5% of the insurance proceeds 

actually received by the Museum directly related to the Copley Building structure. 

(iii) Within one hundred eighty days after such damage or destruction, 

replacing or rebuilding the Copley Building , including the Premises, and in such manner 

and according to such plans and specifications which would restore the Copley Building , 

including the Premises, to substantially the same condition as immediately before its 

destruction or substantial damage. 

B. If by reason of the damage or destruction of the Copley Building, the City or any 

third party becomes the owner of the REA Site,. Amtrak shall have the right to cause the 

Premises to be reconstructed. If the reconstruction does not occur within a reasonable period of 

time, to the extent Museum has the power to grant such rights, Amtrak shall have the right to 

occupy the land upon which the Premises were constructed so as to have a place to locate its 

necessary facilities for its operations. Museum shall have no involvement with such 

arrangements. 

10. INSURANCE 

A. Unless Amh·ak makes the election permitted by 1 O.B., Amtrak shall, at its sole 

expense, obtain and maintain at all times during the Term of this Lease (1) commercial general 

liability insurance coverage, on "occurrence" type forms acceptable to Museum, specifically 

AMTRAK LEASE J. I 7-06 (2).DOC 11 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



relating to the Premises including without limitation the loading area, the Puhlic Pedestrian 

Pathway, the landscaped areas, and that portion of the Arcade owned by the Museum, and 

providing annual limits of liability of at least $3,000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 in the 

aggregate; and (2) commercial property insurance coverage, on forms acceptable to Museum, for 

the full replacement value of the Premises as determined by an independent commercial property 

appraiser as of the effective date of this Agreement. Amtrak shall ensure that Museum is named 

as an Additional Insured on all general liability policies obtained pursuant to this requirement, 

and that all such policies are expressly endorsed to be primary and non-contributing with any 

coverage maintained by Museum. The coverage provided by such general liability and property 

insurance policies may be adjusted at least every five years, as market conditions may require. 

Prior to occupying the Premises, Amtrak shall furnish Museum with Certificates of Insurance 

and Additional Insured endorsements evidencing the above coverages. On written request of 

Museum, Amtrak shall also provide complete copies of all policies responding to the 

requirements herein. 

B. Amtrak may elect to self-insure its obligations under this Lease provided Amtrak 

has in place, prior to its occupancy of the Premises, nationwide, a comprehensive and properly 

funded self-insurance program, provided that Amtrak has delivered to Museum an appropriate 

letter from Amtrak's risk-management department. If Amtrak makes such election, it shall, upon 

Museum's written request, provide Museum with documentation evidencing the existence and 

principal aspects of such self-insurance program insofar as they pertain to the Premises. 

C. Prior to commencement of construction on the REA Site, Museum shall, at its 

sole expense, obtain and maintain at all times during construction, a builder's risk insurance 

policy covering the risk of direct physical loss of or damage to the Copley Building and all 

AMTRAK LEASE 3-17-06 (2).DOC 12 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



materials, supplies, fixtures, and equipment to be used in or consumed during construction. 

Builder's risk coverage shall be provided on an "all-risk" policy form and shall include, without 

limitation, coverage for physical loss or damage due to fire, theft, collapse, vandalism, malicious 

mischief, faulty workmanship or materials, windstorm, explosion, mechanical or electrical 

breakdown or failure, delay, testing and startup. Coverage shall be provided on a replacement 

cost basis. 

D. Museum shall, at its sole expense, obtain and maintain at all times during the term 

of this Lease (1) commercial general liability insurance coverage specifically relating to the 

Copley Building and providing annual limits of liability of at least $3,000,000 per occurrence 

and $3,000,000 in the aggregate; and (2) commercial property insurance coverage for the full 

replacement value of the Copley Building, less the value of the Premises as determined by 

Museum in its sole discretion. TI1e coverage provided by such policies shall be increased within 

the sole discretion of Museum. Museum shall ensure that Amtrak is named as an Additional 

Insured on all general liability policies obtained pursuant to this requirement. 

E. All insurance policies obtained pursuant to the above requirements shall, if 

possible, provide sixty ( 60) days' prior written notice to the Named Insured prior to any 

cancellation of substantive change in coverage. All such policies shall be in effect on or before 

the Effective Date of the Lease, except that the builder's risk policy shall be in force on 

commencement of construction on the REA Site. 

11. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING 

A. Amtrak may not transfer or assign this Lease, or sublet the Premises or any part 

thereof, without Museum's written approval. These prohibitions shall not apply to a transfer or 

AMTRAK LEASE 3·17·06 (2).DOC 13 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



assignment by Amtrak to a successor entity resulting from Congressional or judicial action. The 

rights and obligations of this Lease shall benefit and burden all successors and assigns of this 

Lease. 

B. Museum may not transfer or assign this Lease, or sublet the Copley Building or 

any part thereof, without Amtrak's written approval. The rights and obligations of this Lease 

shall benefit and burden all successors and assigns of this Lease. 

12. DEFAULTS 

Neither party shall be deemed to be in default under this Lease unless and until it has 

failed to perform any obligation within thirty days after receipt of written notice from the other 

specifying the manner in which it has failed to perform such obligation; provided, however, that 

if the nature of such obligation is such that more than thirty days are required for its 

performance, then the party receiving such written notice shall not be deemed to be in default if 

it shall commence performance within such thirty day period and thereafter diligently prosecute 

the same to completion. Amtrak may, if the circumstances warrant such action, exercise self­

help in resolving a default by Museum (in which event Amtrak must timely report to the 

Museum the circumstances and the actions taken). 

13. MISCELLANEOUS 

A. Amtrak shall pem1it Museum and its agents at all reasonable times to enter the 

Premises as may be necessary or desirable for the operation or improvement of the Premises or 

in order to comply with the Jaws, orders or requirements of govemmental or other authorities; an 

Amtrak employee must accompany the Museum representative except in an emergency situation. 

AMTRAK LEASE 3-17-06 (2).DOC 14 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



B. Amtrak shall not affix, paint, erect or inscribe any sign (except as otherwise 

permitted), projection, awning, signal or advertisement of any kind to any part of the Premises, 

or the Copley Building , including, without limitation, the inside or outside of windows or doors, 

·without the written consent of Museum. 

C. Museum acknowledges it is aware that pursuant to 494.S.C. § 2430, Amtrak is 

exempt from all State and local taxes, surcharge or fees. 

D. The pa1iies shall promptly take such actions to give effect to the provisions of this 

Lease. 

E. This Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 

State of California. Proper venue for any action shall be in the federal courts of San Diego, 

California. 

F. Time is of the essence with respect to the performance of every provision of this 

Lease. 

G. If any condition or provision of this Lease shall be held invalid or unenforceable 

to any extent under any applicable law or by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder 

of this Lease shall not be affected thereby, and each condition and provision of this Lease shall 

be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

H. This Lease, along with any exhibits affixed hereto, constitutes the entire and 

exclusive agreement between Museum and Amtrak relative to the Premises. 

AMTRAK LEASE 3-17-06 (2).DOC 15 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



I. Any notice required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing and 

may be served personally or by United States mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

Museum of Contemporary Art, San Diego 
Attention: Dr. Hugh M. Davies 
700 Prospect Street 
La Jolla, California 92037 

AMTRAK 
National Railroad Passenger Corporation 
30'h Street Station 
Fourth Floor, South Tower 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19104 
Attention: Vice President Real Estate Development 

National Railroad Passenger Corporation 
530 Water Street 
Oakland, California 94607 
Attention: Real Estate Department 

or, at such appropriate address designated in writing by the respective party. 

J. Any party entitled or required to receive notice under this Lease may by like 

notice designate a different address to which notices shall be sent. 

K. Amtrak shall not record this Lease or any short form memorandum referring to 

this Lease. 

14. EXHIBITS. 

Exhibit I Jacobs Building and Rea Site Legal Description 

Exhibit II Copley Building 

AMTRAK LEASE 3-17-06 (2).DOC 16 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



--------~Exhib_Ltlii_and_Exh_ihit_lli/\.-=---I'lans/SJlecifications and Construction Schedule 

Exhibit IV Amtrak Modifications 

ExhibitK Copy of Exhibit K to Transfer Agreement 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed their signatures the day and year first 
above written. 

MUSEUM: 

MUSEUM OF CONTEMPORARY ART, SAN DIEGO, 
a California non-profit public benefit 
corporation 

AMTRAK: 

NATIONAL RAILROAD PASSENGER CORPORATION, 
a corporation organized and existing under National Rail 
Passenger Service Act and the laws of District of Columbia 

AMTRAK LEASE 3·17.06 (2) DOC 17 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025

sanchez
Highlight



In consideration of the terms herein and for other valuable consideration which receipt is 
acknowledged, the undersigned acknowledges and agrees to be bound by the terms set forth in 
Paragraph 9B herein. · 

CITY OF SAN DIEGO, 
a municipal corporation of the State of California 

By:. ________________________________ __ 

AMTRAK LEASE 3-17.06 (2).DOC 18 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



0:\5\5950\53445\Trans\AMTRAK LEASE 3-17-06.DOC 

AMTRAK LEASE 3-17-06 (2).DOC 19 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Exhibit "I" 

All that certain real property situated in the County of San Diego, State of 
California, described as follows: 

Parcel A: Baggage Building Fee Parcel (natl kn= as Jacobs Building) 

Being all of Parcel 3 of Parcel Map No. 19378, in the City of San Diego, County of 
San Diego, State of California, filed in the Office of the County Recorder of San 
Diego County, November 26, 2003 as File No. 2003-1418318 of Official Records, 
together with that portion of Kettner Boulevard (formerly Arctic Street) as said 
street is dedicated to Public use, which upon closing would revert, by operation of 
law, to the above described land. 

Parcel B: REA Site : 

Being all of Parcel 4 of Parcel Map No. 19378, in the City of San Diego, County of 
San Diego, State of California, filed in the Office of the County Recorder of San 
Diego County, November 26, 2003 as File No. 2003-1418318 of Official Records, 
together with that portion of Kettner Boulevard (formerly Arctic Street) as said 
street is dedicated to Public use, which upon closing would revert, by operation of 
law, to the above described land. 

Assessor's Parcel Number: [533-472-02] (Portion) 

SD\434922.1 

EXHIBIT I 
l>O)oaP. 1 nf 1 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



EXHIBIT 'II' 

COPLEY BUILDING 

All that certain real property situated in the County of San Diego, State of 
California, described as follows: 

Being all of Parcel 4 of Parcel Map No. 19378, in the City of San Diego, County of 
San Diego, State of California, filed in the Office of the County Recorder of San 
Diego County, November 26, 2003 as File No. 2003-1418318 of Official Records, 
together with that portion of Kettner Boulevard (formerly Arctic Street) as said 
street is dedicated to Public use, which upon closing would revert, by operation of 
law, to the above described land. 

Assessor's Parcel Number: [533-472-02] (Portion) 

EXHIBIT II 
Page 1 of2 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



0 '<""" 

II • "' 
~ ~. td :; II !I ~ 

'<""" 
<( 

;; ~ ~ H I.IJIIII B;:: ~I i ~ ipf ~ ~= ii! ::ah 1 

H~ u i"' <1-z • ~ 
~ ,a J foo~t [!] ~i~ ~ ~ _,, I - 8 ~'~ !' -WilL ::i E " i 

"' ~ 

:J:~. m 0 ' 
. ; 3 

~ 

EXHIBIT II 
Poono ') nf' ') 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



DRAWING LIST 

Drawing Number 
AOOO 
A001 
A002 

BD001 
BD002 
BD101 
BD151 
BD200 

C.1 
C.2 
C.3 

D101 
D102 
A010 
A020 
A101 
A102 
A104 
A111 
A112 
A151 
A152 
A153 
A154 
A161 
A162 
A163 
A121 
A171 
A172 
A173 
A200 
A201 
A202 
A250 
A251 
A252 
A253 
A300 
A301 
A302 
A350 
A351 
A352 
A353 
A420 
A440 
A441 
A442 

Drawing Title 
Cover Sheet 
Drawing List 
Drawing Symbols and Abbreviations 
General Notes 
General Notes 
Evacuation Plan - Baggage Building 
Evacuation Plan -Addition 
Accessibility Compliance Diagrams 
Public Improvements 
Public Improvements 
Erosion Control Plan 
Ground Floor, Baggage Building 
Clerestory Level, Baggage Building 
Vicinity Plan 
Site Plan 
Plan - Ground Floor, Baggage Building 
Plan - Clerestory Level, Baggage Building 
Plan - Roof, Baggage Building 
Power and Signal Plan - Ground Floor, Baggage Building 
Power and Signal Plan - Clerestory, Baggage Building 
Plan- Ground Floor, Addition 
Plan - Second Floor, Addition 
Plan- Third Floor, Addition 
Plan - Roof, Addition 
Power and Signal Plan - Ground Floor, Addition 
Power and Signal Plan - Second Floor, Addition 
Power and Signal Plan - Third Floor, Addition 
Furniture Plan - Ground Floor, Baggage Building 
Furniture Plan- Ground Floor, Addition 
Furniture Plan - Second Floor, Addition 
Furniture Plan - Third Floor, Addition 
Elevation - East, Baggage Building 
Elevation - South, Baggage Building 
Elevation -West, Baggage Building 
Elevation - East, Addition 
Elevation - South, Addition 
Elevation -West, Addition 
Elevation - North, Addition 
Section, Looking North - Baggage Building 
Section, Looking North - Baggage Building 
Section, Looking West- Baggage Building 
Section, Looking South -Addition 
Section, Looking South -Addition 
Section, Looking West- Addition 
Section, Looking West- Addition 
Exterior Details- Baggage Building 
Entry - Baggage Building 
Entry Details- Baggage Building 
Clerestory Details - Baggage Building 

Date 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Deb-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 

EXHIBIT III 
Pa!!e 1 of9 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



A443 
M44 
A450 
A451 
A452 
A453 
A460 
A470 
A471 
A472 
A473 
A474 
A475 
A476 
A477 
A478 
A479 
A480 
A481 
A482 
A483 
A484 
A485 
A490 
A491 
A492 
A493 
A500 
A501 
A502 
A503 
A504 
A505 
A506 
A507 
A508 
A509 
A550 
A551 
A552 
A553 
A554 
A555 
A556 
A557 
A558 
A601 
A602 
A651 
A652 
A653 
A700 
A701 
A702 
A703 

Clerestory Details - Baggage Building 
Clet~s_tp_ry Details - Baggage Building 
Exterior Wall Sections, Norht- Addition 
Exterior Wall Sections, East- Addition 
Exterior Wall Sections, South - Addition 
Exterior Wall Sections, West- Addition 
Exterior Wall Types- Addition 
Exterior Wall Details- Addition 
Exterior Wall Details -Addition 
Exterior Wall Details - Addition 
Exterior Wall Details - Addition 
Exterior Wall Details -Addition 
Exterior Wall Details -Addition 
Exterior Wall Details - Addition 
Exterior Wall Details - Addition 
Exterior Wall Details - Addition 
Exterior Wall Details- Addition 
Exterior Wall Details -Addition 
Exterior Wall Details -Addition 
Exterior Wall Details - Addition 
Exterior Wall Details -Addition 
Exterior Wall Details -Addition 
Exterior Wall Details - Addition 
Entry and Canopy - Addition 
Entry and Canopy Details- Addition 
Gate Details- Addition 
Loading Dock and Trash -Addition 
Interior Elevations - Baggage Building 
Interior Elevations- Baggage Building 
Interior Elevations- Baggage Building 
Interior Elevations - Baggage Building 
l.nterior Elevations - Baggage Building 
Interior Elevations - Baggage Building 
Interior Elevations - Baggage Building 
Interior Elevations - Baggage Building 
Interior Elevations- Baggage Building 
Interior Elevations- Baggage Building 
Interior Elevations -Addition 
Interior Elevations - Addition 
Interior Elevations -Addition 
Interior Elevations -Addition 
Interior Elevations -Addition 
Interior Elevations -Addition 
Interior Elevations -Addition 
Interior Elevations - Addition 
Interior Elevations - Addition 
RCP, Ground Floor- Baggage Building 
RCP, Clerestory Level- Baggage Building 
RCP, Ground Floor- Addition 
RCP, Second Floor - Addition 
RCP, Third Floor- Addition 
Door Schedule - Baggage Building 
Door Schedule - Addition 
Window Schedule 
Finish Schedule 

8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dei::-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 

EXHIBIT III 
Page 2 of9 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



A704 Partition Types 
A-cos f'artitionTypes 
A710 Interior Details - Baggage Building 
A711 Interior Details- Baggage Building 
A712 Interior Details- Baggage Building 
A713 Interior Details - Baggage Building 
A714 Interior Details- Baggage Building 
A715 Interior Details - Baggage Building 
A716 Interior Details- Baggage Building 
A717 Interior Details - Baggage Building 
A718 Interior Details- Baggage Building 
A720 Interior Details- Baggage Building 
A725 Interior Details- Baggage Building 
A726 Interior Details- Baggage Building 
A727 Interior Details - Baggage Building 
A730 Interior Details- Baggage Building 
A740 Interior Details- Addition 
A741 Interior Details- Addition 
A750 Interior Details -Addition 
A751 Interior Details -Addition 
A755 Interior Details- Addition 
A756 Interior Details -Addition 
A757 Interior Details - Addition 
A760 Interior Details- Addition 
A761 Interior Details -Addition 
A770 Interior Details -Addition 
A771 Interior Details- Addition 
A800 Stair 1 -Addition 
A801 Stair 2 - Addition 
A802 Stair Details- Addition 
A803 Stair Details- Addition 
A804 Stair Details- Addition 
A805 Ramps - Addition 
A806 Ramp Details -Addition 
A810 Elevator- Addition 
A811 Elevator Details -Addition 
A812 Elevator Details -Addition 

8-Dec-04 
8"Qe~c,,4 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 
8-Dec-04 

EXHIBIT III 
Pa!!e 3 of 9 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



DOCUMENT 0001 0 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

BIDDING REQUIREMENTS. CONTRACT FORMS. AND CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT 

SeGti9R 997Q9 
Sesti9R QQ!lQ9 
Sesti9R 99g15 

GeReFal C9mliti9RS I~ICORPORATHliNTO CONTRI\CTCR'S CmiTRACT 
S~flfllemeRtary C9Raiti9RS INCORPORATED !~ITO Cm!TRACTOR'S CONTRACT 
PF9jeGt Start Ufl/Cgmmissi9RiR!J PF9!JFam NOT ISSUEQ 

SPECIFICATIONS: VOLUME I (Division 1 -Division 141 

DIVISION 1 -GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

Section 011 00 
Section 01150 
Section 01230 
Section 01250 
Section 01290 
Section 01300 
Section 01320 
Section 01330 
Section 01400 
Section 01500 
Section 01600 
Section 01700 
Section 01710 
Section 01730 
Section 01732 
Section 01770 

Summary of Work 
Environmental Procedures 
Alternates + Unit Prices 
Contract Modification Procedures 
Payment Procedures 
Project Management and Coordination 
Construction Progress Documentation 
Submittal Procedures 
Quality Requirements 
Construction Facilities+ Temporary Controls 
Product Requirements 
Execution Requirements 
Cutting + Patching 
Operation + Maintenance Data 
Selective Demolition 
Closeout Procedures 

DIVISION 2- SITE CONSTRUCTION 

Sesti9R 921 99 
Sesti9R 92229 
SeGti9R 92249 
SeGti9R 92259 
Sesti9R 92315 
Section 02380 
SeGti9R 924@5 
Sesti9R 92599 
Sesti9R 92€l29 
Section 027 43 
Section 02754 
Section 02780 

Site Remeaiati9R ~lOT ISSUED 
Qem9liti9R 
De WateFiRfl ~lOT ISSUEQ 
SI19RRfl .. UREleFpiRRiR!l 
Exsavati9R, P:illiR!J aRe GFaa.iR!l ~lOT ISSUEQ 
Drilled Piers 
B9Fea Piles 
Utility Services NOT ISSUEQ 
S~9 QFaiRa!Je ~lOT ISSUEQ 
Bituminous Concrete Pavement 
Cement Concrete Paving 
Unit Pavers 

DIVISION 3- CONCRETE 

Section 03100 
Section 03200 
Section 03300 
Section 03330 

Concrete Formwork 
Concrete Reinforcement 
Cast-In-Place Concrete 
Architectural Cast-In-Place Concrete 

Ovmers C9Rs~ltaRt 

OwRer's C9Rs~ltaRt 

UvY\lCi'lil 
ARUP/Str~st~Fal 

LMA/Ci•;il 
ARUP/Structural 
i\RUP/Str~st~ral 

ARUP/Structural 
ARUP/Structural 
ARUP/Structural 

EXHIBIT ill 
Page 4 of9 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



DIVISION 4- MASONRY 

Section 04200 
Section 04220 

DIVISION 5- METALS 
Section 05120 
Section 05300 
Section 05400 
Section 05500 
Section 05510 
Section 05530 
Section 05700 

Masonry Work 
Unit Masonry Construction 

Structural Steel 
Metal Decking 
Cold-formed Metal Framing 
Metal Fabrications 
Metal Stairs 
Gratings ana Cal?.•:all<s 
Ornamental Metal 

DIVISION 6- WOOD AND PLASTICS 

Section 06100 
Section 06400 
Section Q@€l5Q 

Rough Carpentry 
Architectural Woodwork 
l\srylis Assemblies (bllmasite Partitions) 

DIVISION 7- THERMAL AND MOISTURE PROTECTION 

Section 071 00 
Section 07115 
Section 0721 0 
Section 07260 
Section 07270 
Section 07321 
Section 07412 
Section 07510 
Section 07620 
Section 07720 
Section 07762 
Section 07810 
Section 07840 
Section 07900 

Concrete Sealer 
Bituminous Dampproofing 
Building Insulation 
Underslab Vapor Barrier 
Vapor Permeable Air Barrier Membrane 
Clay Roof Tile Repair 
Metal Wall Panels 
Built-Up Bitllminells Roofing 
Flashing + Sheet Metal Trim 
Roof Accessories 
Terrace Pavers 
Applied Fireproofing 
Firestopping 
Joint Sealants 

DIVISION 8 -DOORS AND WINDOWS 

Section 08110 
Section 08210 
Section 08212 
Section 0831 0 
Section 08333 
Section 08400 
Section 08450 
Section 08505 
Section 08550 
Section 08710 
Section 08800 
Section 08955 

Steel Doors and Frames 
Flush Wood Doors 
Stile and Rail Wood Doors 

Access Doors and Panels 
Overhead Coiling Doors 
Glass Storefront Windows 
All-Glass Entrances and Interior Doors 
Channel Glass Clerestory Windows 
Wood Windows 
Door Hardware 
Glass and Glazing 
Channel Glass Curtain Wall 

ARUP/Structural 

ARUP/Structural 
ARUP/Structural 

EXHIBIT III 
PageS of9 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



DIVISION 9- FINISHES 

Section 0921 0 
Section 09253 
Section 09260 
Section 09265 
Section 09300 
Section 09512 
Section 09650 
Section 09655 
Section 0991 0 

Gypsum Plaster 
Gypsum Sheathing 
Gypsum Board Assemblies 
Gypsum Board Shaft Wall Assemblies 
Tile 
Acoustic Plank Ceilings 
Resilient Flooring 
Cork Tile Flooring 
Painting and Finishing 

DIVISION 10- SPECIAL TIES 

Section 1 0150 
Section 10210 
Section 1Q24Q 
Section 1 0440 
Section 1 QaQa 
Section 1 052 3 
Section 1 Q67Q 
Section 10810 

Toilet Com~aFI:ments Partitions 
Wall Louvers 
Meclo!anical E~ui~ment Screens NOT ISSUED 
Interior Signage 
Metal beckers I"I".,E (~IIC) · 
Fire Extinguishers + Cabinets 
Storage Slo!elving l"f"'Ei (~IIC) 
Toilet Accessories 

DIVISION 11 - EQUIPMENT 

Section 11130 
Section 11132 
Section 11452 

Audio-Visual Systems Accessories 
·Projection Screens 
Residential Appliances 

DIVISION 12- FURNISHINGS 

Section 12490 
Section 12a1Q 
Section 126QQ 

Window Treatments 
Office I"YrnitYre I"I""'Ei (NIC) 
Multiple Seating fhE (NIC) 

DIVISION 13- SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION 

Section 131 QQ 
Section 13700 

biglo!tning Protection 
Building Access System 

DIVISION 14- CONVEYING SYSTEMS 

Section 14240 Hydraulic Elevators 

SPECIFICATIONS: VOLUME 2 !DIVISION 15- DIVISION 16) 

DIVISION 15- MECHANICAL 

Section 1 aQQQ 
S_ection 1501 0 
Section 15015 
Section 15140 
Section 15170 

GEi'Mii;RAb PROVISIONS 
Basic Mechanical Requirements 
Unit Prices 
Supports and Anchors 
Motors and Drives 

GMNOwne~s Consultant 

ARUP/Audio-Visual 
ARUP/Audio-Visual 

ARlJP.IEiectrical 

ARUP/Mechanical 

EXHIBIT III 
P~uP h of 'l 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Section 15171 Variable Frequency Drives 
--------~s~ec~t~ion15~1~9~0~----~M~e~ch~a~n~ic~a~l~ld~e~n~ti~fic~a~t~io~n~~~--~--------------------------------------------

Section 15242 Vibration Isolation and Seismic Control 
Section 15260 Piping Insulation 
Section 15280 Equipment Insulation 
Section 15290 Ductwork Insulation 
Section 15300 Fire Standpipe and Sprinkler System Protection 
Section 1 aJJO Wet Pipe Sprinkler System 
Section 1541 0 Plumbing Piping 
Section 15420 Plumbing Valves 
Section 15430 Plumbing Specialties 
Section 15440 Plumbing Fixtures 
Section 15450 Plumbing Equipment 
Section 1 a a 1 o lolyeronic Piping ane Valves 
Section 1 a a 1 a lolyeronic Specialties 
Section 15520 Steam and Steam Condensate Piping and Valves 
Section 15525 Steam and Steam Condensate Specialties 
Section 1 aa40 lo!V/>,C Pumps 
Section 1 aa4 a Chemicai'A'ater Treatment 
Section 1 aa47 Moeular loleating lolot '.11/ater Boilers (bow ~lOx) 
Section 1 aa7a Boiler flues 
Section 1 a797 Propeller Unit loleaters 
Section 15790 Electric Heating Reheat Coils 
Section 15812 Electric Steam Humidifiers 
Section 1 aBJO fan Coil Units 
Section 15850 Air Handling Units 
Section 15.860 Centrifugal General "'xhaust Fans 
Section 15880 Ductwork 
Section 15885 Ductwork Accessories 
Section 15886 Air Outlets and Inlets 
Section 15887 Sound Attenuators 
Section 15888 Air Terminal Units 
Section 15950 Building Management System (BMS) 
Section 1 a990 Sequence of Operation ane Points bist 
Section 15990 Testing, Adjusting and Balancing 
Section 15992 HVAC Commissioning 

DIVISION 16- ELECTRICAL 

Section 19000 
Section 16050 
Section 1611 0 
Section 16112 
Section 16121 
Section 16130 
Section 16131 
Section 16132 
Section 16133 
Section 16140 
Section 16141 
Section 16170 
Section 16180 

GeNeRAb PROVISIONS 
Basic Electrical Materials and Methods 
Conduits and Raceways 
Surface Metal Raceways (Piugmold} 
Conductors 
Outlet and Junction Boxes 
Interior Pullboxes 
Exterior Pullboxes and Manholes 
Cabinets 
Wiring Devices 
Nameplates and Warning Signs 
Switches, Disconnects and Safety 
Overcurrent Protection 

GMA 

ARUP/Eiectrical 

EXHIBIT III 
Pa!!e 7 of9 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Section 16190 Vibration Isolation * Noise CoRtrol 
----~S=ectiorL1_6j_9,_,_ __ __,Res_!@ining Devices 

SestioR 16JG1 U~mE::RGR
1

C::OC''..!cc~l":g:'"e;:c'bccE::~C~T=R::clc:Ccc/'c-,b'-c'l'c-:lD=Rc-=Kc--------------------
SeG!ioR 16J61 PAl) MOU~lTE::I) l~lTE::RRUPTE::R S'NITCFI 
SestioR 164GG EbE::CTRIC SE::RVICE:: 
SestioR 1641 G S'NITCFIBOi\RI)S 
Section 16425 Distribution Switchboards: 600 Volt and Below 
SeG!ioR 164J1 COMPUTE::R GRAI)E:i ISObi'.TION TRI\NSF'ORME::RS 
SeG!ioR 164Ja PAl) MOUNTE:il) I)ISTRIBUTION TRANSF'ORME::RS 
Section 16450 Grounding and Bonding System 
Section 16460 Transformers 
Section 16470 Panelboards 
Section 16510 Lighting 
Section 16571 Architectural Dimming System 
SestioR 1661 G At~tornatis TraRsfer Switshes 
SeGtioR 1662G E::rner§eRsy EleG!risal GeAerator Set 
Section 16710 Communication Cabling System 
Section 16720 Fire Alarm System 
SestioR 1674G TEbEPF!mlEfi),11.TA'CA:rv SYSTEMS 
Section 16930 Lighting Control System 
Section 16931 Contractors, Relays and Time Switches 

END OF TABLE OF CONTENTS 

EXHIBIT III 
Pa!!e 8 of9 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



View photo 

Amtrak Space 

l11l Close 

http://eshare.hpphoto.com/en!home/fullscreen.asp?JobiD=747d2b33-87b2-49e8-aba7-9, 
EXlllBITID 

Pa!!:e 9 of9 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



~s 
>-

1Di0 DD~o1'-l+Rniew&,.t,pprGnl go liD 28AI'R03 D1SV'OJ DODII~Il.k!laltRa'linrlAp~ 

1010 C~~lrjPb:lln(511'1o). 711 175 DZS!POJ QS ...... YQ4 r ~~l'h:llll(~'!lo) 
ltlll!l ,.,... e-n..__ i>r--*IW. n n n~...:<><n tnn,......._ r 50'!1. co OI>Oli!Tlml PrWJ>ITillon 

~eorn.tru<:llt>n DPC\1'111111 PIAn 11!0'%) 

CO Pa~ !-:-ely l'lln Cflt'd! 

Feonttrnt~on Dt>o...,.,..,;i Phnt (100'!1.) 

ctJ~m~ .. 

~~~~1d- Oblolr> aut~ p.,,.,.. 

l""'==~·:·j~==~":"""::·'~·~· ;Prctanl: Slum.etw/l!lfYIS!IWMEP 
COI'QIInltlion P~nt (12mh Cc:n!rJiml OWntr) 

HR Weatherford Company 
Mugeum of Contemporary Art San Diego 

_. ____ , ______ .,PrgJiclnl· Com!. Ph. 11lrrh CtnrJiml avnmj 

Prloo "C~rlll. Do<l. lor nnot ~udg.r 

--SDnnm)'h•r 

<> Shtl """"',.,. r""~ 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



,...., 
~s 

> 

Plllot 

;: ;;;::;~~; .... ,_ ., ~ ;:_~;, ;;~"' I ~...,,,...,.,..,.~, 
1070 <Mm"""'""'""""""'"""'' 75 175 02SEP<IJ OSMAYO< ~. ·'Com"""'"'D"'"""'"""'"'"l 

'""" 'rll4ll. rn '""""--•,. <>.-..un!!.-.. 77 77 07SEP03 IODECil3 ·· 5(l'JI; CD DC>C1.1T>!1111 Pnp-;motloo 

~le Prtptnllon 

~COII$Iruel(on Doct.menll'hll.uo (60"%) 

~eov. CD Doewnent PIAu 
CD~KyRem:-

~100% CD Do<:O.mtrt Rlt'o'lr.v&Appraval 

•~Actu~1- 100% CD Oocunartt1o;.Ctyon 1211710( 

Y~h/Eng. rup. 1.;-loal:ll Pllln Check Commmlt 

rnp. 1o hi Plan C1t. Cormttn! 

~ PnofK!ed -2nd Pada~ re-Mw by cty Plln Ck. 

,~~9- I"HJ'. lo 2nd Pbn Chick Conmelllt 
) 

- PrC>)tcltd- Ardo/E:19- rHp. 1.;. 2nd Plan C1<. 

~Bid tnd Awlrd 

HR Weatherford Company 
Museum of Contemporary Art San Diego 

l-J, Profleled • ObU~ BUidlng Pwm'l 

~PnplCoonl)ltllle ComL Doct./gr f'r1t1 GMP 

tnd Amrd Ur!y .nd M;qo.- Tridtg 

-"'1<--~Protecled.. • l'foo:m.· SIHllflebu/EliYI'SklniMEP 

Phut (12ml:o Conlr Jlni o.mtr) 

liE!iii!IZII'fojldtd. Com!. Ph. (12.-nll Co:VJ1ni Clw!w) j 

"Coos!. Dl>cJ. lor lb;ll b\ld_..,1· 

)~Cr·~·lb.a.r 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



I 
' 
~ 
~ • fl. 

~ • 

I ~ ~ 
~ ~ ii 
~· 1 • .. • ~ 
!, ! ~ 
~· ~ 0 < 

" l ! 

! 
f 
• 

[ ~ 

[ ! (j 

iH < 
l 1! "' c:: i . & 

I P"' ~ l1 1 ~ s ' l 0 u 

! ' 0 

l ' u . 
i J ! • 

0 
u 

EXHIBIT Ill A 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



I 
8 
> 

I ~DO Doc\men!IE.tn.it R~ & ~PfOVII 
· C0f$11clloo Dll........t l'hl.1e (SO%) 

~50,., co Dlltunlnt F'nlplrallon 

Prtpanllon 

~ COtlltrucllon Doemltnt PilaR! (0~) 

~~leRe-Mw&,l,ppf<l'flll 

P.tltlgtte CJ.y Plm Chl~k 

1 -p-aaAclull-1~ CO O~lll'!lllocty m 12117104 

P~ • Arctl!Eng. rup. te 1st Pt.n Ck. Conmlnl 

__. Projeeled- A.rt:h'!!ng. re1p. 1-:- 2nd Plln Ck. 

~Prtp./CooniJltl'lll (;(,ML Ooco. for hi GMP 

L : 'f -··- ""'"" ,_,,.,., .. ,.,., .. , 
' : .. FCOflltructl~l'hl. .. (12!rtiConl.r.llmlOwtlM) ' 

... J>rotecled- COflll. Ph. (12ml1 CortrJiml Owner), 

HR Weatherford Company 
Museum of Contemporary Art San Diego 

. fM fm.J bud.,_t" 

.:::::::::< 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



I 
s 
> 

S""=-===="Com'lrucllon Doo.nlent I'N~ (5Q411.) 

CO PtWI1' 1o Clty Plan Oo~k 

~Corrrlruellon Ooclrnont Ph:uo (100"11.) 

~Aet\ltl-100% CO O~t1o Clyon 12f17f04 

Y~· '''P· 1-:-lnl!JI Plgn Cl!edl CCIIIIlltfl!1; 

'. • Arch/Eng. rnp. 1o 1ol l'llln Ck. Conmenl 

- PJ-o!ed~cl -2nd hckage m!r.ofby CJy Pl8n Cit. 

t-;l3~ retp, 1o 2lld P'"n Cl11ck Cornnl<!ll 

~~ltd· ArdltEng.. rup. 1o 2lld Plln Clt. 

Ptcktge 1o City Plio CI>Kk 

~J>repJCoordJissue Coos!. DocJ. for f'lQI GMP 

oro:! Mljorlnodn 

L ., •: ; Proted~ • Proem!: Slte~tlwlfuvi6ki'IIMEP 

! iConWvdJon PhiH (12rru ConlrJ1ml Dwnlr( 

HR Weatherford Company 
Museum of Contemporary Art San Diego 

--... --+------m Projoeltcl- cor-~. Ph. ( 12ml• eontrJiml o--)1' 

. 01;Hlo. m 1ilo;ll bWgl1" 

.~:::,:;::::: 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



MUSEUM 
BUILDING 

EXTENSION 
INTO VACATED 

"B" STREET 

18'-0" 

EX11BIT K 

14'-0" 8'-0" 

KETINER ~OIJLE:VARD 

PRELIMINARY PLAN FO VACATED "B" STREET 
PATHWAY IMPROVEMENTS 

,--- RELOCATED 
TRANSFORMER 

.----1-- EXISTING 
BALCONY 
ABoVE . 

.-----+- REBUILT 
STAIRWAY 

McCUNTOCK 
BUILDING 

MAY 5, 2004 

EXHIBITK 
(of Transfer Agreement) 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



', 

-------' 2006 

The City of San Diego 
Office of the City Clerk · 
San Diego, California 9210 I 

Redevelopment Agency of 
The City of San Diego 
600 B Street, Fourth Floor 
San Diego, California 921 0 I 

Re: Amtrak Lease.and First Amendment to Amtrak Lease 
Between Museum of Contemporary Art, San Diego, and 
National Railroad Passenger Corporation 

Pursuant to Section 1.16 (e) and Section 2.1.3 of that certain Transfer Agreement and 
Escrow Instructions made as of July 2, 2004, among Catellus Operating Limited 
Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership, as successor by merger to Catellus 
Development Corporation, a Delaware Corporation, the City of San Diego, a municipal 
corporation of the State of California, the Redevelopment Agency of the City of San 
Diego, a public body corporate and politic of the State of California, the Museum of 
Contemporary Art, San Diego, a California non-profit public benefit corporation 
(Museum), and Commonwealth Land Title Company, the undersigned, Museum and 

·National Railroad Passenger Corporation, a corporation organized and existing under 
National Rail Passenger Service Act and the laws of District of Columbia (Amtrak), 
hereby submit for your approval: ( 1) a duplicate original of Amtrak Lease executed as of 
February 1, 2006, between Museum and Amtrak, and (2) a copy of the First Amendment 
to Amtrak Lease. 

MUSEUM: 

MUSEUM OF CONTEMPORARY ART, SAN DIEGO, 
a California non-profit public benefit corporation 

[Signatures continued on next page] 

EXHIBITB 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025



AMTRAK: 

NATIONAL RAILROAD PASSENGER CORPORATION, 
a corporation organized and existing under National Rail 
Passenger Service Act and the laws ofDistrict of Columbia 

By.l>~£.:£t ~,__,_., 

THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY APPROVE AND CONSENT 
to the attached Lease and First Amendment to Amtrak Lease, and 
City agrees that City shall honor and be bound by the terms of the 
Lease, as amended, if City becomes the owner of the new museum 
building (the Copley Building) during the Lease term. 

CITY OF SAN DIEGO, a municipal corporation 
of the State of California 

B~-------------------------Name: __________________________ __ 

Title:--------------

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF 
SAN DIEGO, a public body corporate and politic of 
the State of California 

B~---------------------------
Name: 
Title: ----------------

0:\5\5950\53445\Trans\Approval Letter to City and Agency-2.doc 

Attachment D 
Agenda Item: G.1 
Meeting Date: October 16, 2025


	Attachment B_Draft Second Amendment Header Added.pdf
	RECITALS
	A. Civic is a nonprofit public benefit corporation organized under the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law (Corp. Code § 5110 et seq.), for charitable purposes to raise capital for and engage in activities that promote economic growth ...
	B. On December 3, 2021, Civic and Consultant amended the Agreement to add scope of work for B Street Pedestrian Corridor and increase the Time and Material Not to Exceed Amount by $140,747.75 from the previous amount of $49,600 (“First Amendment”).
	C. The Parties now desire to enter into a Second Amendment and to amend the Agreement to add to the Scope of Services, increase the maximum compensation, and extend the term.
	D. Amendment Authority.  This Amendment is authorized pursuant to Section 14(h) of the Agreement.
	1. SCOPE OF SERVICES: The Scope of Services, Agreement Exhibit “A”, is hereby amended and supplemented by the Scope of Services (SUPPLEMENTAL), attached to this Amendment as Exhibit “A” and incorporated into the Agreement by this reference.
	2. COMPENSATION:  The Time and Materials Not to Exceed Amount defined in Section 2 “COMPENSATION” of the Agreement is hereby amended to increase by $100,000.00, from the previous amount of $190,347.75 to the current amount of $290,347.75, attached to ...
	3. EXTENSION OF TERM: The Term of the Agreement is hereby extended through December 31, 2026.
	4. CONTINUING EFFECT OF AGREEMENT.   Except as amended by this Amendment, all other provisions of the Agreement as previously amended, remain in full force and effect.  From and after the date of this Amendment, whenever the term “Agreement” appears i...
	5. AUTHORIZATION.   The individual executing this Amendment on behalf of the Consultant represents and warrants they have the legal power, right and actual authority to bind Consultant to the terms and conditions of this Amendment.
	6. ADEQUATE CONSIDERATION.  The Parties stipulate and agree that they have each received adequate and independent consideration for the performance of obligations undertaken pursuant to this Amendment.
	7. COUNTERPARTS.   This Amendment may be executed in duplicate originals, each of which is deemed to be an original, but when taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.





